Public Document Pack
COMMITTEE:

JOINT AUDIT AND STANDARDS
COMMITTEE

DATE:

MONDAY, 29 JULY 2019
9.30 AM

VENUE:

FRINK ROOM (ELISABETH) ENDEAVOUR HOUSE, 8
RUSSELL ROAD, IPSWICH

BABERGH MEMBERS
Conservative Group

Green Group

Honor Grainger-Howard
Mary McLaren

Robert Lindsay

Independent
Group
Alastair McCraw

Liberal Democrat
Group
Bryn Hurren (Co-Chair)

MID SUFFOLK MEMBERS
Conservative and
Independent Group
James Caston
Dave Muller (Co-Chair)

Liberal Democrat
Group
Mike Norris

Green Group
Oliver Amorowson
John Matthissen

The Council, members of the public and the press may record/film/photograph or
broadcast this meeting when the public and the press are not lawfully excluded.
AGENDA
PART 1
MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PRESS AND PUBLIC PRESENT
Page(s)
1

SUBSTITUTES AND APOLOGIES
Any Member attending as an approved substitute to report giving
his/her name and the name of the Member being substituted.

2

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Members to declare any interests as appropriate in respect of items
to be considered at this meeting.

3

JAC/19/1 TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD
ON 11 MARCH 2019

4

TO RECEIVE NOTIFICATION OF PETITIONS IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE COUNCIL'S PETITION SCHEME

1-4

5

QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC
To consider questions from, and provide answers to, the public in
relation to matters which are relevant to the business of the meeting
and of which due notice has been given in accordance with the
Committee and Sub-Committee Procedure Rules.

6

QUESTIONS BY COUNCILLORS
To consider questions from, and provide answer to, Councillors on
any matter in relation to which the Committee has powers or duties
and of which due notice has been given in accordance with the
Committee and Sub-Committee Procedure Rules.

7

JAC/19/2 JOINT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2018/19

5 - 30

Report from Corporate Manager – Internal Audit
8

JAC/19/3 ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 2018/19

31 - 60

Report from Corporate Manager – Internal Audit
9

JAC/19/4 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2018/19

61 - 92

Report from Corporate Manager - Finance
10

JAC/19/5 END OF YEAR RISK POSITION STATEMENT AND
PROGRESS REPORT AND REVISIONS TO RISK MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY

93 - 140

Report from Audit and Risk Management Officer
11

JAC/19/6 REPORT FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER

141 - 156

Report from the Monitoring Officer
12

JAC/19/7 FORWARD PLAN

157 - 160

Report from Corporate Manager – Democratic Services

Date and Time of next meeting
Please note that the next meeting is scheduled for Monday, 30 September 2019 at 9.30
am.
For more information about this meeting, including access arrangements and facilities for
people with disabilities, please contact Committee Services on: 01449 724684 or Email:
Committees@baberghmidsuffolk.gov.uk

Introduction to Public Meetings
Babergh/Mid Suffolk District Councils are committed to Open Government.
The
proceedings of this meeting are open to the public, apart from any confidential or exempt
items which may have to be considered in the absence of the press and public.

Domestic Arrangements:




Toilets are situated opposite the meeting room.
Cold water is also available outside opposite the room.
Please switch off all mobile phones or turn them to silent.

Evacuating the building in an emergency: Information for Visitors:
If you hear the alarm:
1.

Leave the building immediately via a Fire Exit and make your way to the Assembly
Point (Ipswich Town Football Ground).

2.

Follow the signs directing you to the Fire Exits at each end of the floor.

3.

Do not enter the Atrium (Ground Floor area and walkways). If you are in the Atrium
at the time of the Alarm, follow the signs to the nearest Fire Exit.

4.

Use the stairs, not the lifts.

5.

Do not re-enter the building until told it is safe to do so.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
BABERGH AND MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCILS
Minutes of the meeting of the JOINT AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE held in the
Frink Room (Elisabeth) - Endeavour House, 8 Russell Road, Ipswich on Monday,
11 March 2019
PRESENT:
Councillor:

Jennie Jenkins (Chair)

Councillors:

Peter Beer
Michael Creffield
John Hinton
Suzie Morley
Mike Norris
Kevin Welsby

James Caston
Derek Davis
Lesley Mayes
Dave Muller (Co-Chair)
Nick Ridley

In attendance:
Officers:

Corporate Manager - Internal Audit (JS)
Senior Governance Support Officer (BN)

Apologies:
Councillors:

31

Tony Bavington
Tom Burrows
Frank Lawrenson
John Levantis
Peter Patrick

SUBSTITUTES
31.1 Councillor Andrew Stringer was unable to be present.
31.2 Councillor Peter Beer substituted for Councillor Peter Patrick and Councillor
Nick Ridley substituted for Councillor Frank Lawrenson.

32

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
32.1 There were no declarations of interests.

33

JAC/18/18 TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 14
JANUARY 2019
33.1 Page 2, it was noted that the wording to the question “6.1 What is the status of
the government guidance which councils have chosen not to follow?” and the
extract from the guidance read as a double negative implying the guidance was
not being followed and this was not thought to be the case.

Page 1

33.2 Page 6, Funding Circle - a suggestion was made that for future reference
numbers be written as a decimal rather than a fraction ie. £1/4 million be
referred to as 0.25 million.
33.3 It was noted that a request to minute the weak attendance by Babergh
Councillors attending meetings of this Committee had been omitted from the
Minutes.
It was RESOLVED:That, subject to an addendum being added to the Minutes to include the weak
attendance by Babergh Councillors to meetings of this Committee, that the
Minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2019 be confirmed as a true record.
34

PETITIONS
34.1 There were no petitions received.

35

QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC
35.1 None received.

36

QUESTIONS BY COUNCILLORS
36.1 None received.

37

JAC/18/19 MANAGING THE RISK OF FRAUD AND CORRUPTION - ANNUAL
REPORT
37.1 John Snell, Corporate Manager – Internal Audit, introduced Paper JAC/18/19
detailing the current arrangements in place across both Councils to ensure
there is a pro-active corporate approach to preventing fraud and corruption and
creating a culture where fraud and corruption will not be tolerated. The report
provided details of the proactive work undertaken by Internal Audit to deter,
prevent and detect fraud and corruption.
37.2 The Officer pointed out a typographical error on page 11, within the third bullet
point to paragraph 4.11, the year should read “2019” and not 2109.
37.3 In response to questions from Councillors, the Corporate Manager – Internal
Audit advised that the following information would be made available outside of
the meeting:


Housing Tenancy Fraud Investigations – What agencies do we work
alongside to help prevent tenancy fraud and the level of engagement
Housing Officers have with the Councils’ Enforcement Team?

Page 2



Pre-employment checks carried out by Human Resources and
Organisational Development (HR & OD) on Officers of a senior grade i.e.
Senior Leadership Team (SLT) officers. Would it include their financial
status – credit checks; past/present company ownership etc? Such
checks would help determine a candidate’s suitability in a senior post
where they would be required to make important and rational decisions
affecting the Councils.



Funding secured by the Shared Revenues Partnership (SRP) from
Suffolk County Council (SCC) to carry out a monthly review of single
resident discount during 2018/19. The report provided a table showing
the current number of discounts removed and the value of debt created
since April. How does this compare to other authorities?



Regarding Housing Benefit cases classified as ‘claimant error’ (paragraph
4.16 – page 12), how many ‘authority error’ cases were there?

37.4 The Officer provided clarification on a question raised regarding paragraph
4.23, Illegal Occupation, confirming the wording should read “Tenancy ended
following Notice to Quit served to the tenant” and not “served from the tenant”.
37.5 In response to a question seeking clarification on the entry “Withdrawn after
Offer Notice sent” contained in the table headed “Reason for
Withdrawal/Denied” in paragraph 4.26 on page 15, the Officer considered this
would be due to a change in the applicant’s circumstances, eg. unable to get
the necessary funding etc.
37.6 A question was raised on fraud detection within the other organisations we are
working alongside eg. CIFCO. The officer reported that Internal Audit check
the holding companies, he was also in liaison with Emily Atack, Corporate
Manager – Assets and Investments on the assurances being received on those
investments.
Councillor Ridley provided some clarification on CIFCO,
confirming it is a fully audited company with external auditors as well as internal
audit.
37.1 The Corporate Manager – Internal Audit included a caveat, providing a
distinction between what Internal Audit do and what is actually the
responsibility of Management, outlining the three lines of defence:




First line: Management oversight – management responsible for;
Second line: Operational issues – Corporate Managers looking at risk
management and controls;
Third line: Internal Audit.

The recommendation was proposed by Councillor Peter Beer and seconded by
Councillor Dave Muller. By unanimous vote.

Page 3

It was RESOLVED:That the contents of the Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption - Annual
Report (Paper JAC/18/19) detailing the progress made in ensuring there are
effective arrangements and measures in place across both Councils to
minimise the risk of fraud and corruption has been reviewed and noted.
38

JAC/18/20 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20
38.1 The Corporate Manager – Internal Audit introduced Paper JAC/18/20 detailing
the proposed Internal Audit Plan for the next financial year 2019/20 providing
Councillors with a view of the variety and scope of projects and corporate
activities that will be supported through the work of the team.
The recommendation was proposed by Councillor Dave Muller and seconded by
Councillor Suzie Morley. By unanimous vote.
It was RESOLVED:That the contents of the Internal Audit Report 2019/20 (Paper JAC/18/20),
supported by Appendix A, has been reviewed and noted.

39

JAC/18/21 FORWARD PLAN
It was RESOLVED
That the Committee Forward Plan set out in Paper JAC/18/21 be noted.

The business of the meeting was concluded at 10.18 am.

……………………………………..
Chair

Page 4

Agenda Item 7
BABERGH AND MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCILS
TO:

OFFICER:

Joint Audit and
Standards Committee

REPORT NUMBER:

John Snell – Corporate
Manager – Internal Audit

DATE OF MEETING: 29 July 2019

JAC/19/2

JOINT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2018/19
1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report reviews the Council’s Corporate Governance arrangements as required
by the Accounts and Audit Regulations.

1.2

The Joint Audit and Standards Committee has responsibility for being satisfied that
the Joint Annual Governance Statement (AGS), to accompany each Council’s
financial accounts 2018/19, properly reflects the risk environment and any actions
required to improve it.

2.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1

The Committee could request further information on which to base its views. Failure
to act will weaken corporate governance and could have an impact on service
delivery and lead to adverse comments from the External Auditor and other
inspectorates and impact on how the Councils demonstrate good governance to its
residents.

3.

RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

That Councillors satisfy themselves that the Joint Annual Statement (AGS) 2018/19
(Appendix A to this report) properly reflects the governance environment and any
actions to improve it.

3.2

That subject to 2.1 above, the AGS be endorsed subject to the Assistant Director –
Corporate Resources (in the absence of the Assistant Director – Law & Governance
and Monitoring Officer) being authorised to make any minor amendments and
corrections prior to the Statement being finalised for publication.

3.3

Further that approval of any significant amendments identified by the Assistant
Director – Corporate Resources be delegated to her in consultation with the Chairs
of this Committee and the Leaders of each Council.

3.4

That it be noted that the finalised AGS will be signed by the Leader of each Council
on behalf of the respective Council together with the Chief Executive on behalf of
both Councils.

Page 5

REASON FOR DECISION
The preparation and publication of the AGS will meet the statutory requirement of
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which require an authority to, each year,
conduct a review of the effectiveness of its system of internal control, and to prepare
an annual governance statement. It is the responsibility of the Joint Audit and
Standards Committee to review the Councils’ Corporate Governance arrangements.
4.

KEY INFORMATION

4.1

The preparation and publication of an AGS is necessary to meet the statutory
requirement set out in Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

4.2

Governance is about how each Council ensures that it is doing the right things, in the
right way, for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable
manner. It comprises the systems, processes, cultures and values, by which the
Council is directed and controlled and through which it is accountable to, engages
with and, where appropriate, leads communities.

4.3

This Committee is responsible for overseeing each Council’s work around corporate
governance.

4.4

The Council has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance
which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government 2016.

4.5

The AGS explains how the Councils have complied with the Local Code and also
meets the requirements of Regulation 6 (Part 2) of the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 in relation to the publication of an Annual Governance Statement.

4.6

The AGS is required to be published to accompany the published Statement of
Accounts.

4.7

The AGS has been prepared in consultation with key senior officers to reflect the
operations of each Council during 2018/19.

4.8

The AGS provides an assurance of the effectiveness of each Council’s system on
internal control. The arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in
accordance with the governance framework. There have been no governance issues
identified during the year that are considered significant in relation to each Council’s
overall governance framework.

4.9

We are already addressing the key governance risks and challenges set out in this
Annual Governance Statement and will continue to do so over the coming year to
further strengthen our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps
will continue to address the need for any improvements that are required and that
arrangements are in place to monitor the issues raised as part of each Council’s
annual review.

Page 6

5.

LINKS TO JOINT STRATEGIC PLAN

5.1

Governance touches all aspects of the Councils’ activities. To ensure the successful
delivery of the Joint Strategic Plan it is essential that the principles of good
governance are applied consistently across the Councils.

6.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1

A sound system of internal controls forms a significant part of the framework and is
essential to underpin the effective use of resources.

7.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

Regulation 6 (Part 2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulation 2015 requires the
Councils to conduct an annual review of its systems of internal control and following
the review, the Councils must approve an annual governance statement, prepared in
accordance with proper practices in relation to internal control.

8.

RISK MANAGEMENT

8.1

A strong internal control environment contributes to the overall effective management
of each Council and will help minimise the risks of each Council failing to achieve its
ambitions and priorities, and service improvements.
Risk Description

Likelihood

Failure
to
regularly Highly
monitor and improve the Unlikely (1)
Council’s arrangements
could weaken corporate
governance, have an
impact on service delivery
and lead to adverse
comments
from
the
External Auditor.

Impact

Mitigation Measures

Bad (3)

Internal and External
Audit help ensure a
systemic,
disciplined
approach to evaluate and
improve the effectiveness
of
risk management,
control and governance
processes.

9.

CONSULTATIONS

9.1

The AGS was prepared following input from key senior officers.

10.

EQUALITY ANALYSIS

10.1

Equality and diversity implications have been considered within the AGS
arrangements.

11.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

11.1

There are no known environmental implications associated with the AGS.

Page 7

12.

APPENDICES
Title

Location

(a) Joint Annual Governance Statement 2018/19

Attached

13.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

13.1

CIPFA/SOLACE framework – ‘Delivering good Governance in Local Government
2016’

Page 8

Appendix A

Annual
Governance
Statement
2018/19
This Annual Governance Statement is
presented as a joint statement of Babergh
District Council (BDC) and Mid Suffolk
District Council (MSDC)

1|Page
Page 9

Introduction
The Leaders of each Council and the Chief Executive all recognise the importance of having
good rules, systems and information available to guide the Councils when managing and
delivering services to the communities of Babergh and Mid Suffolk.
Each year the Councils are required to produce an Annual Governance Statement which
describes how its corporate governance arrangements have been working.

What is Corporate Governance?
Corporate governance is both the policies and procedures in place and the values
and behaviours that are needed to help ensure the Councils run effectively, can be
held to account for its actions and delivers the best possible outcomes for the
communities it serves with the resources available.
Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils have adopted a Local Code of Corporate
Governance that sets out a commitment to corporate governance and summarises
the governance arrangements and activities in place to which it is accountable to
and engages with its communities.
The Local Code reflects the core and sub-principles outlined in the 2016
CIPFA/SOLACE* Framework, ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’.
(* CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, SOLACE –
Society of Local Authority Chief Executives)

The Councils’ responsibility in relation to Corporate
Governance
Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils are responsible for ensuring that its business
is conducted in accordance with the law and to proper standards and that public money
is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.
The Councils also have a duty under the Local Government Act 1999, to make
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
In discharging this overall responsibility, Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils are
also responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs,
facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which include arrangements for the
management of risk.
This Statement explains how the Councils have complied with the Local Code of
Corporate Governance, which is consistent with the principles and reflects the
requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework, ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government’.
The Statement also meets the statutory requirements in section 6 of the 2015 Accounts
(England) Regulations, which requires all relevant bodies to prepare an Annual
2 | Pand
a gAudit
e
Governance Statement.
Page 10

What is a Governance Assurance Framework?
Assurance provides confidence. Based on sufficient evidence, that internal controls are in
place and are operating effectively and that priorities/objectives are being achieved. An
Assurance Framework is a structure within which Members and Senior Management
identify the principal risks to the Council meeting its key priorities, and through which they
map out both the key controls to manage them and how they have gained sufficient
assurance about the effectiveness of those controls. The assurance framework underpins
the statements made within the Annual Governance Statement.
An assurance process is in place to provide a framework for the annual assessment of the
effectiveness of the governance arrangements operating within the Councils. This includes
robust challenge by the Councils’ Joint Audit and Standards Committee, Statutory Officers
i.e. the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer, Assistant Director – Corporate Resources (S151
Officer) and the Senior Leadership Team.
In addition, ‘the three lines of defence assurance model’ is in place which helps Members
and Senior Management to understand where assurances are being obtained from, the
level of reliance they place on that assurance and identify potential gaps in assurance.
Below summarises the Councils’ governance assurance framework, which is based on the
three lines of defence model.

3|Page
Page 11

Annual Governance Statement

Joint Audit and Standards Committee
(AGS Approval Committee)

Leaders, Chief Executive, Senior Leadership Team, which includes the Monitoring Officer and
Assistant Director – Corporate Resources (S151 Officer)
Provides oversight of the 3 lines of defence assurance framework

1st Line of Defence
Business and Operational
Management

2nd Line of Defence
Oversight and Support
Strategy/Policy/Direction
setting, decision-making,
assurance oversight

Committee
Functions

Independent Assurance
Delivering priorities,
identifying risks and
improvement actions,
implementing controls,
progress reporting,
provides management
assurance and ensuring
compliance

Independent challenge
and audit, reporting
assurance, audit opinion
assurance levels

Operational
Management
and Staff

Senior Management
Functions
Quality Control
Checks

3rd Line of Defence

Internal Audit
External Audit

Support

Managing
Performance
and Data
Quality

Risk Management
Functional compliance
(Information Management,
HR, Legal, Contract &
Financial Management)

Delivery of
Strategic &
Operational
Business Plans

4|Page
Page 12

External Inspections
Validate
Regulators

How do the Councils monitor and evaluate the effectiveness
of its governance arrangements?
The Councils annually review the effectiveness of its governance arrangements. The key
sources of assurance that inform this review are outlined below:
o

o
o

o
o
o

The development and implementation of a Governance Assurance Framework,
which enables the Councils to gain assurance that good governance actions and
behaviours are operating within the Councils;
The work of Members and Senior Officers of the Councils who have responsibility
for good governance;
The Corporate Manager – Internal Audit’s annual report on Internal Audit activity
2018/19, which provides the independent assurance that key risks (financial and
non-financial) are being managed and provides an opinion on the effectiveness of
these arrangements;
Reports on Risk Management and Performance activity during 2018/19;
Any comments made by the Councils’ External Auditors; and
Any other reviews by inspectorates.

5|Page
Page 13

Core Principles of Good Governance
The diagram from the International Framework, below illustrates how the various principles
for good governance in the public sector relate to each other. Principles A and B permeate
implementation of principles C to G. The diagram also illustrates that good governance is
dynamic, and that an entity as a whole should be committed to improving governance on a
continuing basis through a process of evaluation and review.
A summary of the local arrangements in place for 2018/19 to comply with each of the
principles is set out on the following pages.

6|Page
Page 14

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and
respecting the rule of law

Page 15

The standards of conduct and personal behaviour expected of Members and Officers and its partners are defined and communicated
through Codes of Conduct and Protocols and each Council’s Constitution. Arrangements are in place to ensure that Members and
Officers are aware of their responsibilities under these codes and protocols. The Councils’ website outlines the arrangements for
making a complaint that a Member of the Council has failed to comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct and sets out how the
Council will deal with allegations of a failure to comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct. Complaints about Members and allegations
that a Member has breached the Code of Conduct would be dealt with initially by the Monitoring Officer and referred to the Standards
Committee where appropriate under the Localism Act 2011. In addition, the Councils have appointed an Independent Person, to
consult on alleged breaches to the Member Code of Conduct. Each Council’s Constitution sets out the employment procedures for
the Head of Paid Service. Strategic and Assistant Directors, Monitoring Officer and Assistant Director – Corporate Resources (s151
Officer).
The Councils’ five corporate values are underpinned by a behaviour framework for staff. The values have been developed by our own
employees and set out what we ‘believe in’. These values influence everything we say and do – from our working environment to our
policies, leadership, language and, of course, our behaviours. A set of desired behaviours associated with each of the Values has
been developed and form part of the Councils’ formal review and 121 conversations process for officers.
The Councils’ also have a Prevention of Financial Crime Policy, which includes the Whistleblowing Policy.
The Statutory Officers’ Group continues to meet regularly and review processes and procedures as well as any breaches that may
have occurred to establish lessons learned.

7|Page

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

The Councils have laid out its purpose, direction, vision and objectives in its Joint Strategic Plan which can be obtained either on the
Councils’ website or the Councils’ office. The Plan also seeks to enthuse our councillors and staff – now working in totally new and
more flexible ways – to build on their track records of innovation and success to focus even more of their energies on delivering our
key outcomes for our communities and businesses.
The Councils’ planning and decision-making processes are designed to include consultation with stakeholders and the submission
of views by local people. This is evidenced as follows:

Page 16

 The Councils have developed a Home’s Strategy and Homeless Reduction Strategy following engagement with residents,
covering the period 2019-24, The Homes Strategy lays out how the councils aim to increase the number of new homes being
delivered in their districts. This strategy also aims to increase housing options for older households and those requiring
accessible homes and to ensure the existing housing stock is fit for 21st century living. The Homelessness Reduction Strategy
aims to reduce homelessness in both districts and support the most vulnerable Babergh and Mid Suffolk residents in finding
and sustaining a home.
 The Councils have developed a Joint Communities Strategy (2019 – 2036) following engagement with residents, Town and
Parish Councils, representatives from the Voluntary and Community sector as well as District Councillors. The strategy is the
Councils’ collective response to some of the big community-related changes we have experienced in the districts and the
challenges and opportunities that lie ahead. The Strategy seeks to find the right balance between creating a sense of
expectation that the Councils can live up to and empowering those who want to do more and can make a real difference.
Ultimately, the Councils’ ambition is for communities that thrive; stronger and healthier places, built on a balanced and targeted
range of services and support, equally accessible to all our residents and to future generations.
The Councils publish certain data in accordance with the Local Government Transparency Code, which enables more power to be placed into
citizens’ hand to increase democratic accountability. And make it easier for local people to contribute to the local decision-making process.
The Councils’ democratic function is responsible for ensuring agendas and key decisions are published in line with the statutory legal
requirements.

8|Page

Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable, economic, social and environment benefits

The Councils take an annual approach to business planning, allowing a close link between business and financial planning. The Joint Medium
Financial Term Plan is reviewed annually and forms the basis of the annual budgeting process.
The Councils’ operational services are divided into Directorates. Business plans for each service area are regularly reviewed between the Assistant
Directors and their Corporate Managers and which identify objectives and targets. In addition, monthly forecasts are discussed and variances
challenged with the budget holder. This process is further supported by the Finance Business Partners who meet regularly with the Assistant
Directors and attend Portfolio Holder’s meetings to discuss the quarterly financial performance. Quarterly financial reports are discussed with SLT
providing challenge and scrutiny of the major variances as they occur throughout the year.
As part of the 2018/19 budget review SLT supported a thorough review of each service area and the associated resources; explored the
productivity and efficiency, and identified the priorities along with the risks, as well as a thorough review of the use of reserves.

Page 17

The Councils’ business planning, performance and risk management framework enables the monitoring of progress against service
strategic/business plans priorities and objectives, key performance indicators and targets.
The Councils aim to ensure that the purchase of goods, services or works required to deliver services is acquired under Best Value terms.
The Councils have developed business continuity plans to ensure that critical service delivery can be maintained or recovered during an
emergency.
The Councils’ decision-making process requires consideration of the economic, social and environmental impacts of policies and plans when
taking decisions about service provision.
Programme and project management arrangements require consideration of Political, Environmental, Societal (i.e. increased demand for a
service and demographic changes), Technological, Legislative, Economic and Efficiency issues, risks and opportunities and value for money.
Each Council has a Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan. It’s a strategic plan for managing and maintaining their housing stock. It
sets out the Council’s short to medium plans and priorities for its housing management services and provides a long term (30 year) perspective
on stock investment and financial planning.

9|Page

Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended
outcomes
The Councils’ Joint Strategic Plan was formulated following the results of a survey which sought feedback from the public, Members, staff and
other key stakeholders. The Joint Medium Financial Term Plan is used to align resources to key priorities. The Councils have templates to ensure
authors cover all the requirements to enable a decision to be made; they include options, if required, cost and risk analysis in addition to key
signatories such as legal, finance and risk.
Financial management arrangements conform to the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer
in Local Government (2016)
Internal financial control is based on a framework of management information, financial regulations and administrative procedures, which include
separation of duties, management supervision, appropriate staffing structure including appropriately skilled, trained or qualified staff, and a system
of delegation and accountability.

Page 18

The Councils’ framework of internal financial control is supported by Financial Regulations, Contract Standing Orders, Scheme of Delegation and
the Constitution. The regulations provide the framework for managing the Councils’ financial affairs. They set out the procedures that the Council
has adopted for financial planning, budgeting, risk management, auditing, treasury management and procurement of goods and services.
All Committees meetings are held in public and decisions made by Cabinet Members and officers are published in line with the statutory legal
requirements, although some items are considered as exempt. Minutes of all Council meetings are made available to the public, and members of
the public have the opportunity to contribute to Council meetings. The Councils have a complaints and feedback system, which records and
monitors customer comments, complaints and requests for information.
We maintain an effective scrutiny function which encourages constructive challenge and enhances the Councils’ performance overall.
The Councils have a performance management and monitoring process in place. Performance reports analysing trends are monitored by
management Portfolio Holders and the relevant Committees.
The Councils’ have a Data Quality Policy which outlines the Councils’ commitment to ensuring data quality and arrangements are in place to
monitor and enhance the quality of performance data.

10 | P a g e

Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the
individuals within it

The following diagram shows the Council’s political structure which mirrors one another in their make-up. Councillors from each
council meet together as a Council. Meetings are generally open to the public, now streamed live onto YouTube and feature a main
topical debate item. Each Council has an approved Constitution which details how the Councils operate, how decisions are made and
the procedures that are to be followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. The Monitoring
Officer ensures that the Constitution remains fit for purpose, that legal requirements are met and that the public interest is paramount
in all decision making.

Governance Structure of Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils
Page 19

Full Council

SHARED
REVENUES
PARTNERSHIP

CABINET
(Comprising
Leader, Deputy
Leader & up to 8
other Councillors)

OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

JOINT
APPOINTMENT
COMMITTEE

PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE

LICENSING &
REGULATORY
COMMITTEE

LICENSING SUB
COMMITTEES

Political balance required
under Local Government
Housing Act 1989
No political balance required

11 | P a g e

COUNCIL ALSO APPOINTS TO OTHER
OUTSIDE BODIES

AUDIT &
STANDARDS
COMMITTEE

The Chief Executive is the Councils’ Head of Paid Service and is responsible for delivering the Councils’ vision and leadership supported
by the Senior Leadership Team (SLT). The Chief Executive leads the organisation to achieve demanding strategic goals, ensuring that
SLT drives performance that focuses on outcomes and delivery. The Chief Executive has strong and productive relationships with all
stakeholders, working especially with the Leaders of the Councils and their senior councillor colleagues.
The Councils also appoint officers, qualified to undertake statutory responsibilities, such as:
 Chief Financial Officer as contained in the Local Government Act 1972 – S151 – responsible for ensuring the proper
administration of the Councils’ financial affairs; and
 Monitoring Officer as contained in the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 – S5 – responsible for ensuring that decision
making is lawful and fair.

Page 20

The SLT has been structured to drive the development of a more sustainable, customer orientated and commercial operating model.
The model is focused upon delivering the right services to the right standards, at the right time for the district’s residents and businesses.
Recent appointments have been made to ensure Senior Leadership Team have the right skills and experience to deliver the priorities.
Following District Elections, all Members are required to undertake a comprehensive and compulsory training programme. This includes
Planning training, Code of Conduct training and Licensing training. Members are not allowed to sit on the Planning or Licensing
Committees until such training has been undertaken. The training programme ensures that they understand the procedures and
protocols of the Councils. In addition, other non-compulsory training has been provided, e.g. Finance, Internal Audit and Risk
Management.
Skills required by officers are assessed through 121’s and the appraisal process to identify and address any training gaps, to enable
roles to be carried out effectively.

12 | P a g e

Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public
financial management

The Councils consider and counter risk across a broad range of areas supported by an approved Risk Management Strategy. As part of good
governance, the Councils manage and maintain a register of its Significant risks which are linked to the Councils’ priorities and reviewed and
monitored on a quarterly basis by the Senior Leadership Team, and regularly reported to both Cabinets and the Joint Audit and Standards
Committee. Operational and Project risk registers are in place and managed by the appropriate Corporate Manager. Their Assistant Director and
the Lead Risk Officer have oversight of these.
The Joint Audit and Standards Committee receive an annual report entitled ‘Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption’ that provides a summary
of the outcomes of our work to deter, prevent and detect frauds and corruption.

Page 21

Internal Audit has produced a Fraud Risk Register, which contains a list of areas where Internal Audit and service managers believe the Councils
are susceptible to fraud. The register enables the Councils to focus on suitable internal controls to mitigate any subsequent risk. The register also
influences the Internal Audit planning process.
Internal Audit has also produced a single document entitled ‘Prevention of Financial Crime Policy’ which includes the Whistleblowing Policy, which
is available to all staff on the Councils’ intranet.
Information governance issues including processes, procedures and breaches are now taken to and reviewed by the ‘Statutory Officers Group’,
which meet regularly throughout the year.
Each committee report is required to be formally signed off by a representative in Legal, Finance and Internal Audit – Risk to ensure due
consideration has been given by the author to address areas before the report is released to Councillors.
The Councils consider their Internal Audit and Risk Management Services team to be a key component of its governance framework.
One of the key assurance statements the Councils receive is the annual report and opinion of the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit. In respect
of the twelve months period ending March 2019, it is the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit’s opinion that the Councils’ framework of governance,
risk management and internal control is ‘(Sufficient) – Reasonable Assurance’ – the system, process or activity should achieve its objectives safely
and effectively. However, whilst there are some control weaknesses most key controls are in place and operating effectively. Where weaknesses
have been identified through internal audit review, Internal Audit have worked with management to agree appropriate corrective actions and a
timescale for improvement.

13 | P a g e

Our outcome performance framework enables officers, Councillors and Communities to track progress against the delivery of the
Joint Strategic Plan, understand our key risks and share in the celebration of our achievements. Performance data is available and
visible through quarterly formal reports provided to both Cabinets.
The outcome framework shifts us from the traditional measurement of outputs and inputs, to one that focuses us on measuring the
desired results and outcomes of our key projects, activities and services, and in particular the impact we have on our communities.
It provides a strong evidence base for service improvement and transformation, and facilitates better decision making and the efficient
use of our resources.
The Council has adopted the Plan, Do, Check & Act approach to managing health and safety as recommended by the HSE to help
it to comply with the law, HSE encourages a common-sense and practical approach to managing health and safety.
Page 22

Robust budget management arrangements are in place including regular monitoring and reporting to senior management and
Members. External review and report on each Council’s financial statements by the Councils’ External Auditor to the Joint Audit
and Standards Committee (including this Annual Governance Statement), providing an opinion on the accounts and concluding on
the arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources (the value for money
conclusion).
The Joint Audit and Standards Committee are responsible for undertaking the Councils’ responsibilities in relation to financial
governance issues. Furthermore, they support the S151 officer responsible for the administration of the relevant Council’s financial
affairs in their statutory role in connection with financial probity.
The Councils have a record of setting balanced budgets and no history of overspending; modest increases in council tax; and no
significant reductions in service levels during reductions in government funding.

14 | P a g e

MOVING FORWARD
The approach over the medium term is to transform the Council into an
organisation that is thriving and not just surviving, by reviewing, remodelling
and reinventing the way the Council operates. The Councils agreed that the
following overarching principles should be considered when evaluating ideas
and opportunities for change as set out below:



Page 23





Provide a better service for our customers
Increased social value
Reduce our costs (both internally and across the wider
system)
Increase our income
Provide better / “best” value
Reduction in administration costs, without compromising
service

The focus will be on internal efficiencies and improvements within existing
structures. Continuously looking to streamline work and reduce waste in
processes. Greater cross-functional working and multi-skilling and improving
ways of working to move away from ‘professional silos’ and toward integrated
services for the public. Where customer demand is understood, analysed and
met through new services and business models, and where the demand itself
is re-shaped and managed while engaging service users to ascertain
priorities.

15 | P a g e

Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective
accountability

Agendas and minutes of Council, Cabinet and Committee meetings are publically available on the Councils’ website. A live stream of Council meetings
held in the King Edmund Chamber is now available on YouTube.
The Councils’ have a Freedom of Information Act publication scheme to ensure the members of the public have access to all recorded information
held by the Councils.
Compliance with the Local Government Data Transparency Code which sets out the minimum data that the Councils should be publishing, the
frequency it should published and how it should be published. This makes it easier for local people to contribute to the local decision-making processes
and help to shape public services.
Page 24

The published Annual Statement of Accounts is the statutory summary of each Councils’ financial affairs for the financial year. The purpose of the
Annual Statement of Accounts is to give clear information on the income and expenditure of the Councils and to demonstrate the Councils’
stewardship of public money for the year.
The Councils publish an Annual Governance Statement in order to report how we have monitored the effectiveness of our governance arrangements
against the seven key principles set out within our Code of Corporate Governance in year and on any planned changes in the coming year.
The Joint Audit and Standards Committee review and approve the Annual Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement. The Committee
also provide independent assurance to the Councils on the adequacy and effectiveness of the governance arrangements and internal control
environment operating within the Councils.
Accountability and decision-making arrangements are clearly defined within the Councils’ Constitution. It is an important mechanism through which
public accountability can be exercised. The primary role of the Councils’ Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee is to hold Cabinet to account and to
help improve services.
Risk based internal auditing provides ongoing assurance that the key risks material to achieving the Councils’ objectives are being managed.

16 | P a g e
Based

Last year’s improvement areas
In the 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement a number of improvement areas were identified. Below are the actions taken during 2018/19.

Improvement area

Action Taken

A small number of senior officers have been tasked with facilitating the
development of a set of core values across both Councils. It is intended
that the core values will support the vision, shape the culture and reflect
what the Councils value and how we operate. They will be developed in
consultation with all staff across the organisation and will then form the
essence of the Councils’ identity. Establishing strong core values
provides both internal and external advantages in terms of decisionmaking processes and educating our stakeholders. Once established
they will underpin how we go about our everyday business.

Following a significant amount of work with officers, a set of values
was established and a ‘soft launch’ carried out in January 2019.
The 5 values are, ‘we believe in ………
 Being open and honest
 Our Customers
 Our People
 Being Ambitious
 Taking Ownership
These values will influence everything we do, from our working
environment, HR policies, recruitment, training, performance
management, leadership, language and will ultimately contribute
to the culture we want for our future.

Page 25
The Councils are refreshing their Customer Access Strategy, which will
build on; our vision of improving public access, making it easy for
customers to do business with us, ensuring our channels are effortless to
navigate, promote individual and community self-service and services
which are available when our customers want them. The Strategy will
focus
on
4
overlapping
customer
themes
including:
insight/understanding, access, experience and organisational customer
focus. This will ensure we are working towards providing excellent access
to our services for customers.

17 | P a g e

MOVING FORWARD
Much of the work to date has been behind the scenes, our HR
recruitment site, corporate inductions, performance review
sessions and 121s. There is further work to do, to ensure that the
building blocks are in place to embed our values across the
organisation, so that we can ensure our values are more than just
a poster on a wall.
During the Summer of 2018 both Councils agreed a refreshed
Customer Strategy, whose focus is to put the customer at the heart
of our organisation, and by doing so helps us to better understand
and be able to deliver their needs. An action plan is in progress
with improvements made during 2018/19 with respect to customer
service performance, including satisfaction levels, time taken to
answer calls/fewer abandoned calls and increases in website
visitors. We have also been working in partnership with Suffolk
Libraries to trial alternative methods of in-person customer service
delivery and will continue to review this.

Improvement area

Action Taken

The Councils will need to develop a procurement strategy by mid-2018
that will set out options for the future management of the Councils’ leisure
facilities. The future contractual management arrangements will have a
greater emphasis on the delivery of the Councils’ wider strategic
objectives and will be a key factor in the delivery of the Councils’ strategy.
The Councils will also need to develop an action plan and key
performance indicators with its key stakeholders for the delivery of the
Leisure, Sports and Physical Activity Strategy.

Leisure Procurement Strategy – Officers continue to investigate
options for the future management arrangements for the Mid
Suffolk leisure facility contract. Both legal and procurement advice
has been received and informal soundings were presented to the
Council’s Administration (in December 2018) and to Overview and
Scrutiny (in December 2018). A Cabinet report will be presented in
July 2019 confirming the future approach.

In addition, the Councils will look to develop an Environment Strategy;
Housing Strategy; and Communities Strategy, as well as a refresh of the
Councils’ Joint Strategic Plan.

Environment Strategy – the joint authorities commissioned
consultants, Insight Intelligence, to scope out a future Environment
Strategy. A cross party task and finish group of Councillors was
established, and a number of key stakeholders were consulted.
The joint authorities produced a joint Environment Position
Statement that will be considered by the new Administrations after
the 2019 elections as the basis for an Environment Strategy.

Page 26

Housing Strategy – The Councils have developed the Homes and
Housing and the Homelessness Reduction and Rough Sleeping
Strategies 2019-2024, which were approved by Full Council in
March 2019. Both strategies created the strategic direction for the
next five years and include associated detailed action plans. ‘Our
vision is for residents to live in affordable and high-quality homes
that enable them to build settled, safe and healthy lives, within
sustainable and thriving communities’.
Communities Strategy - The Councils have developed a Joint
Communities Strategy which was approved by Full Council in
March 2019 following public consultation.
A working group formed from Senior Leadership Team members
were tasked with reviewing the Councils’ Corporate Pan preelection. Officers are continuing to develop the Plan alongside the
newly elected Members.

18 | P a g e

Improvement area
During 2018/19 work will be undertaken to develop a finance strategy
2019-22 and focussed work to deliver a balanced budget for the 3-year
period.

Action Taken
As a result of the budget setting process savings were identified
as well as additional income invested in commercial opportunities
to provide income over the medium term to mitigate some of the
impact of the reduced funding from central government. The
work is continuing during 2019/20.

Page 27

Specific health of the organisation indicators are being developed with
our Senior Leadership Team to ensure regular internal monitoring.

The following sickness absence indicators are regularly reported to
senior management:
 Highest sickness % - focus on service area
 % off sick based on available working hours
 Number of days lost to sickness per person
 Total number of days lost to sickness and by team
 Number of days due to mental health.

Each service area to produce an annual service plan to give a detailed
picture of how the Councils will operate designed to align current delivery
arrangements with changing patterns of demand, making the most
effective use of available and future resources. Each service plan will
detail the following:
 Sets out the key activities the service area delivers;
 Reflects on the key service activity and achievements for 201718;
 Sets out the key targets for the service area and the resources
allocated to achieve these targets;
 Identifies the main risks and performance measures associated
with the delivery of the service;
 Provides a high-level workforce development plan for the service.

Each service area has a plan. Each directorate has identified how
they will deliver their services and what they will be doing to support
the Councils’ Strategic priorities, as outlined in their service plans.
These plans directly link back to the Councils’ priorities and are
performance managed by the relevant Assistant Directors.

Each service plan to be ‘signed off’ by senior management and will be
used throughout the year to manage service delivery.

19 | P a g e

Improvement area

Action Taken

An Organisational Development Plan is being developed that will better
assess the skills required by Members to ensure they are adequately
equipped to enable their roles to be carried out effectively.

A Training and Development Policy, role descriptions and a rolling
4-year programme of training and Member Induction were
approved by Cabinet in March and has been implemented.

Internal Audit will look to further embed risk management across the
Councils, particularly at an operational level and develop stronger links to
performance.

Risk registers are now in place for all service areas. The Risk
Officer prompts the update of these on a quarterly basis and
oversees that this is done.
Project risk registers are being created. Project Managers and
Corporate Managers are working together to identify links between
operational and project risks.

Page 28

Ongoing improvements to register and reports have been made.
Internal Audit are working with our performance and finance
colleagues to ensure reporting times are aligned.
This also has the advantage of helping officers and Members to
have a better understanding of the Councils’ overall strategic and
operational position.

20 | P a g e

Approval of Statement
Approval of Statement by Chief Executive and Leaders of each Council
The Annual Governance Statement provides an assurance of the effectiveness of each Council’s system on internal
control. The arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance framework.
There have been no governance issues identified during the year that are considered significant in relation to each
Council’s overall governance framework.
We are already addressing the key governance risks and challenges set out in this Annual Governance Statement and
will continue to do so over the coming year to further strengthen our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that
these steps will continue to address the need for any improvements that are required and that arrangements are in
place to monitor the issues raised as part of each Council’s annual review.
Page 29

Signed .................

Signed ......................

Arthur Charvonia, Chief Executive

John Ward, Leader of the Council – Babergh DC

Date .............................

Date ..................................

Signed ......................
Suzie Morley, Leader of the Council – Mid Suffolk DC
Date ..................................

21 | P a g e

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
BABERGH AND MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCILS
TO:

Joint Audit and Standards
REPORT NUMBER:
Committee

OFFICER:

Corporate Manager –
Internal Audit

JAC/19/3

DATE OF MEETING: 29 July 2019

ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 2018/19
1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The purpose of this report is to inform Councillors of the work undertaken within the
Internal Audit Service for the year, 2018/19 and provides Councillors with a review of
the variety and scope of projects and corporate activities which are supported through
the work of the team.

2.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1

This is a regulatory report and there are no options to consider.

3.

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That the contents of this Internal Audit report, supported by Appendix A, be agreed.
REASON FOR DECISION
For the Committee to agree the Internal Auditors annual report for 2018/19.

4.

KEY INFORMATION

4.1

Requirement of Internal Audit - Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
The PSIAS require the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit to report periodically to
senior management and this Committee on Internal Audit’s performance relative to
its Internal Audit Plan including significant risk exposures and control issues where
relevant, fraud risks and governance issues.

4.2

As the Councils’ Delivery Programme continues and re-shapes and transforms its
services the demand on Internal Audit’s services to provide assurance, support and
guidance on a diverse range of activities continues. The Corporate Manager –
Internal Audit monitored requests, with a risk-based approach, for the re-allocation of
Internal Audit resources from the approved 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan.
This delivery plan was enhanced following the 20% increase in hours of a member of
the Internal Audit Team and the transfer on 8th October 2018 of Business Continuity
responsibility out of the team. The work has been assumed by a new Corporate
Manager along with Health and Safety and Emergency Planning.

Page 31

4.3

There was due consideration in conducting this year’s audits to ensure that Internal
Audit maintained its objectivity and independence. As further demonstration of
organisational independence, the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit can confirm
that there has been no inappropriate scope or resource limitations placed upon him.

4.4

In line with the Councils’ Internal Audit Charter the work was conducted to ensure
that it delivers against the PSIAS and the requirement to produce an annual Head of
Internal Audit opinion. In doing this it can be confirmed that the work conducted
covered the following activities:







Governance processes
Monitoring
Ethics
Information and Information technology governance
Risk Management
Fraud management

4.5

Audits conducted (as opposed to Audit investigations) are also split into two types,
‘Fundamental’ and ‘Risk’ reviews. ‘Fundamental’ reviews are conducted in the latter
half of the financial year to meet with External Audit testing requirements.

4.6

The Corporate Manager – Internal Audit is responsible for the delivery of an audit
opinion and report that can be used by the Councils to inform its governance
statement. The annual opinion concludes on the overall adequacy and effectiveness
of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control.
In giving this opinion, assurance can never be absolute and therefore, only
reasonable assurance can be provided that there are no significant weaknesses in
the processes reviewed. In assessing the level of assurance to be given, the
Corporate Manager – Internal Audit has based his opinion on:


Written reports on all internal audits completed during the course of the year, both
assurance and consultancy;



Results of any follow up exercises undertaken in respect of previous years’
internal audit work;



The results of work of other review bodies where appropriate;



The extent of resources available to deliver the internal audit work; and



The quality and performance of the internal audit service and the extent of
compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

Audit Opinion – the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit is satisfied that sufficient
assurance work has been carried out to allow him to form a reasonable conclusion
on the adequacy and effectiveness of each Council’s internal control environment.
It is the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit’s opinion that the Councils’ framework of
governance, risk management and internal control is ‘(Sufficient) – Reasonable
Assurance’ – the system, process or activity should achieve its objectives safely and
effectively. However, whilst there are some control weaknesses most key controls
are in place and operating effectively.
Page 32

Where weaknesses have been identified through internal audit review, Internal Audit
have worked with management to agree appropriate corrective actions and a
timescale for improvement.
5.

LINKS TO JOINT STRATEGIC PLAN

5.1

The delivery of a comprehensive Internal Audit service supports the Councils’
objectives, in particular:
An enabled and efficient organisation – The right people are doing the right things, in
the right way, at the right time, for the right reasons.

5.2

However, all Internal Audit work has been associated with the Councils’ strategic
themes and the attached report, Appendix A, provides a summary of the work
undertaken by theme. This work will contribute to the 2018/19 overall Internal Audit
opinion on the Councils’ control environment provided by the Corporate Manager –
Internal Audit, as required by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.

6.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. All Internal Audit
recommendations must be considered in terms of their cost effectiveness.

7.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report other than the statutory
framework under which Internal Audit operates.

8.

RISK MANAGEMENT

8.1

This report is not directly linked with any one of the Councils’ Significant Risks. The
key risk, however, is set out below:
Risk Description

Likelihood

Internal controls within each Unlikely 2
Council may not be efficient and
effective.
As a result, each Council may
not identify any significant
weakness that could impact on
the achievement of their aims
and/or lead to fraud, financial
loss or inefficiency.

Impact

Mitigation Measures

Bad 3

Councillors receive and
approve the internal audit
work programme and other
reports on internal controls
throughout the year.
The work programme is
based on an assessment of
risk for each system or
operational area.

9.

CONSULTATIONS

9.1

The 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan was agreed and noted by this Committee on 12th
March 2018 (Paper JAC/17/20), having previously been endorsed by the S151 Officer
and the Senior Leadership Team.

Page 33

As part of the preparation for this Plan, auditors engaged with senior management to
identify their view of the coming year’s risks linked to the Joint Strategic Plan and
Delivery Programme, and to gather and map management assurance across the
Councils’ functions.
9.2

The half year report on progress towards completion of this report was presented to
this Committee in November 2018 (Paper JAC/18/9).

9.3

During preparation this report has been shared with both Chairs of the Joint Audit
and Standards Committee; Cabinet Lead Members for Customers, Digital
Transformation & Improvement; the Senior Leadership Team, including the Section
151 Officer.

10.

EQUALITY ANALYSIS

10.1

An equality analysis has not been completed because the report content does not
have any impact on the protected characteristics.

11.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

11.1

There are no environmental implications arising from this report.

12.

APPENDICES
Title

Location

(a) Appendix A - Overview of Internal Audit Work

Attached

13.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

13.1

Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 – Paper JAC/17/20.

13.2

Half yearly Internal Audit progress report – Paper JAC/18/19

Authorship:
John Snell
Corporate Manager – Internal Audit

Page 34

01473 825822/ 01449 724567
john.snell@baberghmidsuffolk.gov.uk

Appendix A

Overview of Internal Audit Activity, 12 Months to 31st March 2019
1.

Introduction

1.1

The work completed by Internal Audit for the Financial Year 2018/19 is reported here
to the Joint Audit and Standards Committee.

1.2

Internal audit within the public sector in the United Kingdom is governed by the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which have been in place since 1 April 2013,
were revised on 1 April 2016 and further revised on 1 April 2017.
The standards require periodic self-assessments and an independent assessment,
by an external source, every five years.
An external review was carried out during February 2018 where the External
Assessor identified no areas of non-compliance with the standards that would affect
the overall scope or operation of the internal audit activity.
Furthermore, the team were commended for their structured and focussed
approach. Auditees clearly value their input, requesting reviews, consultancy
and their advice.
A few minor areas were identified where the standards have not been followed. The
External Assessor made some practical and pragmatic recommendations to address
these. Since this was last reported to the Committee the Corporate Manager –
Internal Audit has materially completed these actions.
Further enhancements have been made to our reporting and recording in the period.
The changes strengthen oversight; simplify communication; and clarify interpretation
and understanding. These were discussed at the time with both Chairs of this
Committee and are outlined in the following paragraphs (1.3 to 1.5 below).

1.3

Discussions with the recipients of audit reports, and outcomes from interviews
conducted during the External Assessment, indicated that a clearer audit opinion
should be provided in audit reports.
Research and analysis of the offerings of neighbouring local authorities audit teams
ensured a solution that was clearer in narrative and appearance, was produced.
The outcome now has a clear ‘Red Amber Yellow Green’ (RAYG) status applied with
a narrative clearly indicating the condition of the control environment and potential
consequence to the service area objectives. This has been implemented in recent
audit reports and is attached in Annexe 1 below.

Page 35

1.4

To comply with the audit standards the full audit report is naturally a comprehensive,
and potentially lengthy document. Again, in line with client feedback, we have
developed a single page executive summary as the frontispiece to all audit reports to
provide ‘results on a page’. Refer to Annex 2.

1.5

Following the Independent external review of Internal Audit compliance with PSIAS
the Councils’ Senior Leadership Team (SLT) determined that all Audit Reports should
be sent to Assistant Directors (AD), who would file them on a dedicated folder on the
SLT drive, and that the AD would copy the appropriate Cabinet Lead. The Audit
Charter has been amended in Section 16 to reflect this.

2.

Internal Audit reports with Adverse Opinions

2.1.

Five audits with an Audit opinion of ‘Limited’ or ‘No Assurance’ (Formerly ‘Poor’ or
‘Ineffective’) have been issued this period (2018/19) and are detailed below. A
summary of all Audits conducted this year are listed in Section 6 below.
The reviews that returned an audit opinion on the control environment of “Ineffective”
in the last financial year (2017/18) where actions were outstanding have been kept
under review by audit and, where appropriate, the management actions have been
reassessed with the appropriate manager. These audits, with their present status are
outlined below:
Issued 2017/18
1.
2.
3.
4.

General Ledger (Reconciliation processes) - (Closed 2018/19)
Receivables / Debtors (Debt Management) - (Closed 2018/19)
Payroll (IR 35 processing) - (Closed 2018/19)
GDPR – (Closed 2018/19)

Issued 2018/19
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Land Charges (Fee reconciliations)
Sourcing contracts and tendering process and Contract management
Governance - Gifts and Hospitality and Declarations of Interest
Contract Spend
Housing Delivery

The nature of the control weaknesses that have given rise to these findings has led
Internal Audit to introduce a classification for future audit reviews as ‘Back to Basics’
(150 days in plan), where the primary focus of the audit review will be to assess the
efficiency and effectiveness of the key controls operating in a given process to provide
management with comfort that the detective and preventative controls originally
established continue as designed to combat the inherent risks identified within the
function. (See the Audit Plan 2019/20 submitted to this Committee 11th March 2019,
Paper JAC/18/20).

Page 36

2.1.1 2017/18 General Ledger: Internal Audit Opinion: “Ineffective” (improved) to
(Sufficient) Reasonable Assurance and closed
Key Risk

Issue Raised

Management Response

Control
accounts
and Material arrears in key Staff resources are in place
reconciliations
are reconciliations undermine and being trained. These will
mismanaged or ineffective controls.
address the backlog.
and mis postings may go
unnoticed.
Present status at this report date:
Following our 2018/19 review it is pleasing to note that s151 reports are now produced
monthly and there is evidence of minutes documenting decisions at TM meetings which
has strengthened the control environment and decreased trading risk. Significant
improvements have been made to online and phone payment channels, minimising error
and subsequent resources to correct these through journal transfers. Whilst the cashflow
module in Integra is still in the testing environment. Rollout is dependent on Suffolk County
Council’s IT resource the current risk is being accepted by the Corporate Manager,
Finance.
Consequently, the present Internal Audit Opinion has changed (improved) from
“Ineffective” to (Sufficient) Reasonable Assurance and will be closed.

2.1.2 2017/18 Receivables / Debtors: Internal Audit Opinion: “Ineffective” (improved) to
(Sufficient) Reasonable Assurance and closed
Key Risk

Issue Raised

Management Response

Poor,
or
lack
of,
management information on
the application of the Debt
Recovery policies result in
customers with poor credit
history ratings continuing to
be
serviced,
and /or
accounting report figures
that are incorrect.

Debt management has not
received as much attention
from management and staff
over the long term, as is
necessary
to
maintain
sound debt recovery and
credit management support
to Services.

A prolonged period of
sickness
absence
has
stalled progress on the
planned
debt
recovery
project, however work has
now commenced on this
project. The findings and
recommendations from this
audit report will help to
inform this, along with
support from the audit team
and shared legal services.

Present status at this report date:
Internal Audit have supported the finance transaction team, as a ‘critical friend’, in
developing procedures, resulting in:
1. devolution of invoice raising into the service areas;
2. improved engagement of shared legal services;
3. major review of historic debt levels;
Page 37

4. enhanced reporting suite and system support;
5. more finance support and challenge to the service on income management; and
6. refinement of debt reporting and management within core transactions.
A subsequent review by another of the Internal Audit team determined that since the
previous audit a staffing restructure within the Finance Team, took place. In August 2018
an Admin and Technical Officer – Income and Credit Control was appointed to a newly
created role. This post is to address debt management and recovery and, in addition to
the management of current debt, historical debt for both Councils. Management oversight
of this role, the use of management information and communication to Corporate
Managers are consequently improving.
Therefore, the present Internal Audit Opinion has changed (improved) from “Ineffective”
to (Sufficient) Reasonable Assurance and will be closed.

2.1.3 2017/18 Payroll (IR 35 processing) Internal Audit Opinion: “Ineffective” – audit closed
although will be revisited during 2019/20
Key Risk
Penalty or censure arising
from incorrect treatment for
contractors and temporary
employees assessed as
inside IR35.

Issue Raised
A lack of awareness of the
legislation by Corporate
Managers.

Management Response
A new officer (start Nov18)
working on the recruitment
toolkit.

Procedures require clarity A brief including IR 35 roles
on roles and responsibilities. and responsibilities stored
on Connect and linked in
Working Together.
IR35 raised at the next ELT
with a request to cascade
down.
Recruitment (IR35) added to
Business Partner agenda
with Corporate Managers.
Monthly - list of contractors
from Commissioning and
Procurement
verified
against HR records.

Present status at this report date:
Although the audit has been closed there is an acknowledgement that these actions will
need time to embed and Internal Audit will therefore follow up on the above early in 2019
(and time is incorporated into the 2019/20 plan).

Page 38

2.1.4 2017/18 GDPR: Internal Audit Opinion: “Ineffective” (improved) to (Sufficient)
Reasonable Assurance and closed
Key Risk

Issue Raised

Management Response

Fine, Censure or regulatory
intercession after errors or
omission managing our data
in the requirements of the
Act.

Using the ICO’s ’12 Steps to
Compliance’ to gauge the
Councils’ position it was
concluded
that
more
resources were required to
ensure the implementation
date was met.

Using the Internal Audit
report
the
Corporate
Manager – Information
Management produced for
SLT a business case setting
out the resources required
to ensure compliance by
May 2018.

Present status at this report date:
Following our 2018/19 review it is pleasing to report that Management has taken prompt
action in response to Internal Audit's Phase 1 testing to ensure GDPR was successfully
implemented in May 2018. Therefore, the present Internal Audit Opinion has changed
(improved) from “Ineffective” to (Sufficient) Reasonable Assurance and will be closed.

2.1.5 2018/19 Land Charges (Limited Assurance)
Key Risk
Fee
income
is
not
recognised
through
inadequate process and
controls.

Issue Raised
Fee levels have not been
reviewed recently; nor the
two
largest
self-billing
customers’
invoices
reconciled
to
searches
conducted.

Management Response
We need to annually review
the land charges search
fees to ensure that the
income covers the cost of
delivery of the service,
(which is currently the case).
Formal annual reviews to be
established
December
2018.
Regular reconciliation of
searches against income
will be established, along
with
a
retrospective
reconciliation.

Present status at this report date:
These actions will need time to embed and Internal Audit will therefore follow up
appropriately, early in 2019 /20 work plan.

Page 39

2.1.6 2018/19 Sourcing contracts and tendering process and Contract management (Limited
Assurance)
Key Risk
The Councils vulnerable to
reputational and financial
risks as Contract may fail to
meet
performance
expectations,
exceed
budget
and/or
breach
compliance.

Issue Raised
Although no issues were
identified during testing, due
to a lack of meeting minutes,
it was not clear for all
contracts
tested,
what
actions take place to
address any service delivery
issues should they arise.

Poor communication with
contractor fails to correct It could not be:
performance.
 evidenced
that
contracts
include
expected performance
measures
and
associated penalties for
not meeting these;
 confirmed
that
appropriate contractor
insurance is in place as
no
evidence
was
obtained by contract
managers.

Management Response
Many
of
the
recommendations
made
within this report could
potentially be addressed
through appropriate training
provided to the Contract
Managers which they would
benefit from.
It remains however, the
responsibility of Managers to
manage this process once
equipped with the tools to do
so.
Furthermore, consideration
could be given to escalating
these
issues
to
the
Procurement Board which
would strengthen this course
of action.

Present status at this report date:
Controls to be improved via workshops and further guidance on contract management
due to be undertaken in late Summer/early Autumn. Internal Audit will arrange to follow
up on recommendations during Quarter 3.
2.1.7 2018/19 Governance - Gifts and Hospitality and Declarations of Interest (Limited
Assurance)
Key Risk
Undeclared gifts or interests
may lead to challenges of
independence; of inability to
demonstrate fair and lawful
actions; and a lack of
transparency
to
our
stakeholders.

Issue Raised
Staff gifts, hospitality and
‘declarations of interests’
are not subject to review and
would appear that staff are
unaware of this log and
procedures to report.

Management Response
Online form generated. A
user guide to go alongside
this is being produced and a
process
for
logging
completed forms is to be
agreed.
All Senior staff are currently
required to complete annual
related party transaction
declarations which covers
part of the Declaration of
Interests already.

Page 40

Present status at this report date:
Internal Audit have planned to follow up the recommendations within the 2019/20 plan.

2.1.8 2018/19 Contract spend – (Limited Assurance)
Key Risk
Issue Raised
Loss of money through poor Inconsistent
operating
and/or
inadequate model
to
describe
contractual arrangements relationship and service
for supplier services.
provision between Contract
Manager and the Finance
and Procurement Business
Partners.

Management Response
Whilst management have
responded positively to the
findings
and
recommendations in the
report it is recognised that
the Councils' operational
services are embarking on a
significant
restructuring.
Whilst the principles of the
findings should not be lost it
is likely that the detail of how
and when they will be
considered and enacted is
presently open.

Present status at this report date:
Internal Audit have planned to follow up the recommendations within the 2019/20 plan.
Timing will be dependent on the outcome of the management review.

2.1.9 2018/19 Housing Delivery - (Limited Assurance)
Key Risk
Failure to implement an
agreed Compliancy Action
Plan may lead to a lack of
focus and critical deadlines
for
compliance
improvements being missed

Issue Raised
Without full confidence that
all relevant Council owned
properties are registered on
the Open Housing system,
no assurance can be given
that the Councils are
compliant in meeting the
required housing servicing
and maintenance checks.

Management Response
An Interim Corporate Asset
Manager has recently been
appointed to undertake this
task.

Close liaison between the
Corporate Asset Register
and the OH system should
continue to ensure all known
properties meet the required
standards.
Present status at this report date:
Internal Audit have planned to follow up the recommendations within the 2019/20 plan.

Page 41

2.2 As well as conducting audit reviews Internal Audit had significant involvement within
the period in a variety of different Council activities/issues, which included:
Section Reference:
3
4
5
6
7

Council Governance
Risk Management
Probity
Audits conducted
Business support activities

3

Council Governance

3.1

Annual Governance Statement (AGS)
Internal Audit has led on the production of the AGS which was completed again as at
the end of the financial year 2018/19, presented to this Committee today, 29th July
2019, alongside an Assurance Mapping exercise across the Councils designed to
identify gaps in good practice and aid the 2019/20 Internal Audit planning process.
The outcome of the planning was reported to this Committee on 11th March 2019
(Paper JAC18/20).

3.2

Statutory Officers Working Group
The Corporate Manager – Internal Audit attends this meeting when required, should
Governance matters arise that require appropriate professional determination. This
Group has responsibility for managing Information Governance and compliance with
the requirements of the Information Governance General Data Protection Regulation
(GDPR) 2018.

3.3

Deputy Monitoring Officer

3.4

The Corporate Manager - Internal Audit undertakes the role of Deputy Monitoring
Officer for the Councils with the specific duty to ensure that the Councils, their officers,
and Elected Councillors, maintain the highest standards of conduct in all they do,
pursuant to Section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, as amended
by Schedule 5 paragraph 24 of the Local Government Act 2000.
Developing our Values
The Councils have championed a development of values through a natural work team
approach. The Corporate Manager - Internal Audit believes that a clear set of values
and behaviours is a cornerstone to supporting good governance and has provided
team resource to support the project.

4

Risk Management

4.1

Internal Audit continues to maintain and facilitate development of the Significant Risk
Register with Senior Management and Councillors. As a living document Internal
Audit regularly review the contents with management and half yearly to Cabinet (last
presented June 2019).

Page 42

The End of Year Significant Risk Register is being presented to this Committee as
part of a separate report today, along with the annual review of the Risk Management
Strategy.
.
4.2

Internal Audit continue to support Corporate Managers with the production and review
of the Operational Risk Registers and also support report authors with sign off of the
risk section of Committee reports.

5

Probity

5.1

Full details of the anti-fraud and corruption work undertaken during the year was
reported to this Committee in a report entitled ‘Managing the Risk of Fraud and
Corruption’. The last report was for 2018/19 and presented on 11th March 2019
(Paper JAC18/19).

5.2

The data requirements and data specifications for the 2018/19 National Fraud
Initiative (NFI) exercise commenced in October 2018 using the NFI’s secure
electronic upload facility. Elections and Single Discounts data were uploaded in
December 2018. The release of matches and data investigations by Officers
commenced in January 2019. Fair Processing Notices are complied with and follow
GDPR guidelines.
The release of matches of information across all the contributor’s data is managed
on a risk-based approach by the system users, supported by Internal Audit. The
system users access their data from the NFI and can investigate, in conjunction with
the matched partner / contributor, to evaluate the potential fraud indicated by the
match.
The exercise identified 968 Babergh matches, of which 127 are classified as High
Risk and 1,046 Mid Suffolk matches, of which 123 are classified as High Risk. All
High-Risk matches will be investigated.

6

Audits conducted

6.1

In line with the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan reporting of outcomes is associated with
all the Councils’ strategic themes and are reported below, with their associated audit
opinion on the control environment.

6.1.1 Assets and investments
AUDIT

PURPOSE OF AUDIT

KEY RISK(S)

1
Receivables
(Focus on debt
management,
analysis and
reporting)

Audit worked with Finance
Staff to review and evaluate
the
revised
working
practices in the transaction
team.

Monies due to the
Councils are not
recognised,
accounted for or
collected on a timely
basis.

Page 43

SUMMARY OF KEY
FINDINGS
This was consultative
and advisory work and
does not result in a
report with findings.
This area was subject
to a subsequent review
by a second audit team
member in early 2019.
(1a Below)

AUDIT
OPINION

No
formal
opinion
is
currently
offered.

AUDIT

KEY RISK(S)

SUMMARY OF KEY
FINDINGS

AUDIT
OPINION
(Sufficient)
Reasonable
Assurance

Monies due to the
Councils are not
recognised,
accounted for or
collected on a timely
basis.

A subsequent review
has determined that,
since the previous
audit,
a
staffing
restructure within the
Finance Team, took
place. In August 2018
an
Admin
and
Technical Officer –
Income and Credit
Control was appointed
to a newly created role.

Following several years with little concern identified over the major controls
operating in the area this review has been conducted as a ‘light touch’,
following up on the previous year’s minor finding, which is incorporated into
the General Ledger report in 6.1.5 below.

(Sufficient)
Reasonable
Assurance

PURPOSE OF AUDIT

1a
Receivables
(Focus on debt
management,
analysis and
reporting)

2
Treasury
Management

A follow up from the
previous Year’s review and
associated
management
actions.

6.1.2 Business Growth
AUDIT

3
BMS Invest

4
Procurement –
Tendering

PURPOSE OF AUDIT

Internal
audit
provides
services (charged) to BMS
Invest. Contracts for service
have been agreed.
An initial audit has been
undertaken to review the
Governance framework of
BMS Invest.

Audit requested by Assistant
Director-Housing,
and
following up on the 2015/16
audit
and
subsequent
findings
Determine if the Councils’
contract
management
activities assure compliance
with
its
procurement
requirements.

KEY RISK(S)

The actions of the
Board, including the
development
of
strategic objectives
and
legal
frameworks,
are
taken without due
consideration of the
impact
on
the
organisation.

Loss of money
through poor and/or
inadequate
contractual
arrangements
for
supplier services.

Page 44

SUMMARY OF KEY
FINDINGS
The
evolution
of
governance continues
from
the
original
company framework.
The appointment of the
Assistant
Director
Assets & Investments
(Managing
Director
BMS
Invest)
has
enabled
further
development
and
articulation of this
growth with enhanced
processes and control
frameworks.
Discrepancies
were
identified throughout
the
process
and
although none were of
material impact, they
highlighted weakness
in
the
control
environment.
These supported the
contents
of
the
procurement
update
provided
by
the
Corporate Manager –
Commissioning
and
Procurement to SLT in
June 2018.

AUDIT
OPINION

(Sufficient)
Reasonable
Assurance

Limited
assurance
(follow-up
planned
during
2019/20)

AUDIT

PURPOSE OF AUDIT

Audit requested by Assistant
Director – Housing and
following up on the 2015/16
audit
and
subsequent
findings.

5
Spend
Contracts

on

Determine that appropriate
contracts
or
services
agreements are in place,
relevant to the contract
spend incurred.

KEY RISK(S)

Loss of money
through poor and/or
inadequate
contractual
arrangements
for
supplier services.

Page 45

SUMMARY OF KEY
FINDINGS
Following this update
SLT
created
a
Commissioning
and
Procurement
Board,
chaired
by
the
Strategic
Director
supported
by
the
Section 151 Officer, the
Corporate Manager –
Commissioning
and
Procurement and two
additional
Assistant
Directors.
There
is
an
inconsistent operating
model to describe the
relationship
and
service
provision
between the Service
(Contract
Manager)
and
the
Finance
Business Partner /
Procurement Business
Partner or staff within
the service. Whilst this
in itself may not
undermine the financial
control
framework,
custom and practice
may
result
in
suboptimal detective
controls.
Whilst
management
have
responded
positively
to
the
findings
and
recommendations
in
the
report
it
is
recognised that the
Councils' operational
services are embarking
on
a
significant
restructuring.
Whilst
the principles of the
findings should not be
lost it is likely that the
detail of how and when
they will be considered
and
enacted
is
presently open.

AUDIT
OPINION

Limited
assurance
(follow-up
planned
during
2019/20)

6.1.3 Community capacity building and engagement
AUDIT

6
S106

7
Community
Infrastructure
Levy

PURPOSE OF AUDIT

KEY RISK(S)

SUMMARY OF KEY
FINDINGS
In July 2017 a new
Planning
system
(Uniform)
was
implemented
which
allows an improved,
holistic
case
management
approach. With the
addition
of
the
Infrastructure Team’s
Exacom system the
audit trail of planning
applications
from
receipt to community
realisation
of
the
infrastructure is fully
transparent
and
managed.

This
audit
has
been
requested by Assistant
Director, Planning & Growth
to review and assess the
process for: capturing and
recording S106 agreements
information; monitoring of
S106 triggers; the collection
of monies; management and
spending
of
monies
received;
and
S106
reporting.

Funding (Income) is
lost or misapplied,
with
ensuing
adverse publicity or
Regulatory
Intercession.

This
audit
has
been
requested by Assistant
Director, Planning & Growth,
and the CIL team requested
Internal Audits involvement
in ensuring that CIL has
sound
controls
and
processes.

Funding (Income) is
lost or misapplied,
with
ensuing
adverse publicity or
Regulatory
Intercession

There
is
clear
accountability in fund
allocation and the
review process follows
CIL
policy
and
demonstrates
collaborative working.

KEY RISK(S)

SUMMARY OF KEY
FINDINGS

AUDIT
OPINION

(Sufficient)
Reasonable
assurance

(Sufficient)
Reasonable
assurance

6.1.4 Housing Delivery
AUDIT

8
Housing
Delivery

PURPOSE OF AUDIT
Following the 4i Solutions
review (Note: in May 2017,
4iSolutions
were
commissioned to carry out a
Planned
Investment
Compliancy
review),
Property Services employed
an interim Project Manager
to ensure findings were
addressed.
However, as no project
progress evidence was
available, Internal Audit
conducted an audit to
ascertain progress against
the BMSDC - Compliancy
Action Plan.

Statutory
and
regulatory
obligations are not
complied with (e.g.
servicing of boilers;
fire alarms etc.)

Page 46

Although initially new
controls were promptly
implemented following
the 4i Solutions report,
these actions were not
captured
in
the
Management
Improvement Plan and
it appears momentum
has tailed off in
maintaining
policies
and procedures to
ensure they are fully
embedded and up to
date.

AUDIT
OPINION

Limited
Assurance
(follow-up
planned
during
2019/20)

AUDIT

9
BMBS
(Not a formal
Audit)

10
Disabled
Facilities
Grants

PURPOSE OF AUDIT

Following a request from
Housing
management
Internal Audit were able to
provide support as a critical
friend
to
evaluate
management proposals.

This audit focussed on the
Disabled Facilities Grant
(DFG), and the function to
ensure grants are awarded
in accordance with the
Councils'
criteria.
The Councils DFG allocation
for 17/18 was: BDC £469k,
MSDC £431k.

KEY RISK(S)

SUMMARY OF KEY
FINDINGS

AUDIT
OPINION

That
decisions
would be based on
misleading
or
erroneous
information.

A detailed critique was
presented
to
staff
engaged
in
the
development
and
delivery
of
the
document,
with
suggestions
for
enhancements
and
change to clarify the
report

No opinion is
offered
for
this work

Funding is not given
to
the
correct
people, meeting the
correct criteria or
reclaimed
appropriately

The grant application
process, and reporting
and budgeting are
rigorous, effective and
transparent.
However,
internal
controls
around
monitoring of repaid
charges
requires
strengthening.

(Sufficient)
Reasonable
assurance

6.1.5 An enabled and efficient organisation
AUDIT

11
Land charges
(Public Access
Land Charges
(PALC) online
system)

12
General Data
Protection
Regulation
compliance

PURPOSE OF AUDIT

KEY RISK(S)

SUMMARY OF KEY
FINDINGS
Whilst statistics on the
data migration status
and Land Charges
performance
are
regularly reviewed:

The Corporate Manager
Information
Management
requested Audit to assess
the effectiveness of the
control environment, in the
context of the project
transitioning
from
two
systems to one.

Fee income is not
recognised through
inadequate process
and controls.

This audit follows up findings
from the Audit review
undertaken
in
2017/18
which received a Limited
Assurance audit opinion, to
assure the stakeholders that
significant
improvements
have been completed in line
with management's agreed
action.

Fine, Censure or
regulatory
intercession
after
errors or omission
managing our data
in the requirements
of the Act.

Fee levels have not
been
reviewed
recently;
nor

AUDIT
OPINION

Limited
Assurance
(follow-up
planned
during
2019/20)

The invoices for the
two largest self-billing
customers reconciled
to searches conducted.

Page 47

Management
has
taken prompt action in
response to Internal
Audit's Phase 1 testing
and further illustrates
the progress that has
been made.

(Sufficient)
Reasonable
assurance

AUDIT

PURPOSE OF AUDIT

13
(Ethical
Behaviour)
Governance of
Gifts
and
Hospitality and
Declarations
of Interest

A
review
to
include
Declaration of Interests and
Gifts and Hospitality.

KEY RISK(S)

Undeclared gifts or
interests may lead
to challenges of
independence; of
inability
to
demonstrate
fair
and lawful actions;
and a lack of
transparency to our
stakeholders.

SUMMARY OF KEY
FINDINGS
Gifts, hospitality and
‘declarations
of
interests’ disclosures
for
Members
are
subject to an annual
review.
However, staff gifts,
hospitality
and
‘declarations
of
interests’ not so.
BMSDC
does
not
currently
have
a
consistent approach in
managing Gifts and
Hospitality.

AUDIT
OPINION

Limited
Assurance
(follow-up
planned
during
2019/20)

Management
information reporting is
now effective, with
Reconciliations
appropriately
signed
off.

This year's audit has
focussed on last year's
recommendations and in
response
to
another
Council’s
fraud
alert
regarding fraudulent Direct
Debits, included testing in
principle
to
ensure
appropriate controls for
unallocated DDs are in place
for our Councils to protect
the public purse.

Control
accounts
and reconciliations
are mismanaged or
ineffective and misposting may go
unnoticed.

Health and
Safety

Audit provided operational
risk assessment support to
the H&S Manager for
numerous service areas.

7 areas were looked at by the Auditor, identifying what Risk
Assessments were in place, which format and where these
are located. Generic Risk Assessments were identified and
shared to ensure a consistent approach going forwards. No
opinion is offered for this work

16

The IT infrastructure and estate is provided to the Councils by SCC. Our own
Audit opinion on the operation of the controls in this environment relies on our
partner Internal Audit service who, in their 2018/19 Annual Internal Audit
Report to SCC Audit Committee Meeting, 29/05/2019, reported Information
Governance / ICT to have a Reasonable Level of Assurance.

14
General
Ledger

15

Information
Technology

17

Whilst
the
Integra
system
applies
validation checks on
data received the cash
module
is
not
implemented. The risk
is being accepted by
the
Corporate
Manager, Finance.

(Sufficient)
Reasonable
assurance

Appropriate
controls
are in place to ensure
unallocated DDs are
identified
and
investigated.

In addition, the SCC Head of ICT’s Opinion in the SCC Annual Governance
Statement concluded that “It is the opinion of the Chief Technology Officer
that the IT Services and technology assets of the Council are run effectively,
efficiently and economically”
Ipswich Borough Council undertake an annual review of SRP service
provision on our behalf.

Page 48

(Sufficient)
Reasonable
assurance

Adequate

SUMMARY OF KEY
FINDINGS

AUDIT

PURPOSE OF AUDIT

Shared
Revenues
Partnership –
Revenues and
Benefits

An overall opinion of *adequate has been provided this year, 1
recommendation raised relating to exemptions and discounts. Another issue
relating to the correct authorisation of NNDR refunds over £5,000 was
identified for part of the year but the delegation limits were reviewed and
amended mid-year.
*Definition of Adequate - controls exist but there is some inconsistency in their
application. This means that a few of the risks in the audit may need attention.

KEY RISK(S)

AUDIT
OPINION

6.1.6 Environment
Audit
18
Waste
Brown
(Garden
Waste)
Service
delivery

6.2

–
Bin

PURPOSE OF AUDIT

KEY RISK(S)

SUMMARY OF KEY
FINDINGS

AUDIT
OPINION

This audit was conducted to
support
the
Corporate
Manager Waste Services in
identifying
potential
enhancements to service
delivery.

Weak or ineffectual
process mean that
Brown bin income
and
customer
service
management is not
optimised.

Whilst
the
audit
identified
some
procedural
issues,
service
income
is
effectively reconciled,
and performance is
reported regularly.

(Sufficient
Reasonable
Assurance)

The Corporate Manager Internal Audit provided staff resource to the Health and
Wellbeing Team 1 day per week (or its equivalent), from February 2019 initially until
the end of June 2019, supporting delivery of outcomes around the wider determinants
of health, contributing to the work of the team by ensuring appropriate governance
that supports our commitment to the delivery of Suffolk Health and Wellbeing Board
Outcomes, particularly Outcome 1: Every Child in Suffolk to have the best start in
life. (Further detail of this role is provided in Annexe 3 below).
This has enabled the Health and Wellbeing team to benefit from an ‘external
perspective’ and has provided Internal Audit with a valuable opportunity for staff
development and an exposure to, and understanding of, delivery of service.

6.3

Work conducted during the year compared to the approved 2018/19 Audit Plan
The audit plan was approved by this Committee (Paper JAC/17/20) and initially
Internal Audit work conducted is derived from this source. The Corporate Manager
Internal Audit exercised discretion at the time of drafting the specific audit brief to
ensure that the work was still appropriate and of a sufficient risk ranking to continue
the review.
Of those audits proposed in the plan only 4 were not undertaken:



‘Fixed and Flexible Tenancies’, which was risk assessed as ‘Low’ at the time of
review;
‘Capital Accounting’, which given the material focus provided each Year End by
External Audit (due to the materiality in the Financial Accounts), was deemed
within Risk Appetite by the Corporate Manager Finance;

Page 49




‘New Public Access Requirements’ which, given the appointment of a new
Corporate Manager Customer Access, was removed from immediate review; and
‘Creditors’ – audit deferred at the request of the Corporate Manager – Finance to
focus on processes during 2019/20. The Corporate Manager – Internal Audit was
agreed to this request given the audit opinion against key internal controls in this
area for the past two years was deemed ‘Effective’.

Internal Audit staff did, however, undertake other reviews and consultations for
Management as agreed between the Corporate Manager Internal Audit and Service
Managers and are included in the above summary of work undertaken.
The proposed review of Ethics was partially completed, and is reported above, but
more time is placed within the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan. The outcomes and
consequences of our audit reviews has, of course influenced and been reflected in
this forthcoming plan.

Page 50

6.4

Outcome of opinion compared to prior years:
2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

6.1 Assets and investment
Receivables

Effective

Ineffective

Treasury Management

Effective

Effective

Effective

No formal opinion issued

Payroll

Sufficient (Reasonable)
Assurance
Sufficient (Reasonable)
Assurance

6.2 Business Growth
Fees and Charges

Ineffective

BMS Invest - Goverance
Procurement - Tendering
Procurement - spend on contracts
Creditors

Actions implemented

Sufficient (Reasonable)
Assurance
Limited Assurance
Limited Assurance

Ineffective
Effective

Effective

6.3 Community capacity building and engagement
Safeguarding
Building Control procedural review
Building Control financial proposition analysis
JOSIE Project delivery
Communitiy Grants

Effective
High Standard
No formal opinion issued
Ineffective
Effective

Sufficient (Reasonable)
Assurance

s106
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

High Standard

Effective

Sufficient (Reasonable)
Assurance

6.4 Housing Delivery
Open Housing project.
Housing delivery
Housing Procurement
Support and challenge to BMBS reporting

Effective
Limited Assurance
No formal opinion issued
No formal opinion issued

Disabled Facilities Grants

No formal opinion issued

Housing Rents

Effective

Sufficient (Reasonable)
Assurance

Effective

6.5 An enabled and efficient organisation
Limited Assurance

Land Charges (PALC)
Information Governance General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)

Ineffective

Sufficient (Reasonable)
Assurance

Ineffective

Sufficient (Reasonable)
Assurance

Limited Assurance

Ethical Behaviour - gifts and hospitality
General Ledger

Effective

Health and Safety

No formal opinion issued

Information Technology

SCC Sufficient

Shared Revenue Partnership internal processes
Shared Revenue Partnership feeder systems and Finance controls
Budgetary control survey
Capita Financial Systems Upgrade
Termination Letters
EU Elections
Electoral Expenses
Scanning

SCC Sufficient

Good

Good

Adequate

Effective
No formal opinion issued
Effective
No formal opinion issued
No formal opinion issued
No formal opinion issued
No formal opinion issued

6.1.6 Environment (Waste & Leisure)
Sufficient (Reasonable)
Assurance

Trade Waste

6.5

In undertaking this work there was due consideration to ensure that Internal Audit
maintained its objectivity and independence. The prioritisation of special work took
account of the requirements of the approved audit plan.

Page 51

Objectivity was maintained in that the auditors had no personal or professional
involvement with or allegiance to the area audited. The determination of appropriate
parties to which the details of an impairment to independence or objectivity is
disclosed was dependent upon the expectations of the activity and was expressed
during the planning of each audit.
Annual declarations of interest were signed by each auditor.
6.6

Performance review

6.6.1 In line with the findings on the external review Audit clients continue to express a high
level of satisfaction with the service delivered. The latest figures are based on a 50%
return (out of 14 issued) of the completed customer satisfaction surveys.
Customer Satisfaction

17/18 18/19
Before the Audit

Were you given adequate notification of the audit?

100% 100%

Were you informed of the audit objectives?

100% 100%

Were you able to discuss with the auditor the risks you felt should be addressed?

100% 100%

Carrying out the Audit
Did you feel that an environment of trust and confidence was achieved?

100% 100%

Was the audit carried out in an efficient and timely manner?

100% 100%

If not were you kept informed of the progress towards final report?

100% 100%

Did the auditors work in a professional and helpful manner, with appropriate
integrity?

100% 100%

Reporting the Audit
Were you given the opportunity to discuss the findings with the auditor throughout
the audit as well as at draft report stage?

100% 100%

Were the findings adequately supported by evidence?

100% 100%

Were the recommendations in the final report practical?

100% 100%

Was the report issued in a timely manner following testing?

100% 100%

Will the audit improve internal controls?

100% 80%

Will the audit enable you to improve your service

100% 80%

Overall, how would rate the audit?
Excellent

80% 80%

Good

10%
20% 10%

Satisfactory

6.6.2 Internal Audit continue to perform well against the agreed Key Performance
Indicators. The reduction in time between draft and Final reports has been influenced
by the discussions on management actions arising from audits.

Page 52

Although the percentage of the audit plan delivered has improved from last year the
small percentage reduction against the plan target is as a result of adhoc
management requests received during the year to undertake specific reviews and the
Corporate Manager Internal Audit providing a staff resource to the Health and
Wellbeing Team 1 day per week (refer to paragraph 6.2).
#

Performance Indictor

Target

17/18

18/19

1 100% audit recommendations accepted by management.

90%

100%

100%

2 % high priority recommendations being implemented.

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

10

7

6

10

6

6

15

16

15

7 Completed to the satisfaction of the auditee.

80%

100%

100%

8 Percentage of the audit plan delivered.

90%

71%

86%

3

100% of audit reviews completed in target or prior approved
extension by Corporate Manger – IA.

4 Number of days between the issue of brief and start of fieldwork.
5

Number of days between the completion of audit fieldwork and
issue of draft report.

6 Number of days between the issue of the draft and final report.

100%

7

Business support activities

7.1

Internal Audit aim to retain close working relationships with colleagues and have
provided support and advice on proposed system and control developments,
enhancements and changes. The material of which have been described above.
In addition, Internal Audit will undertake specific investigations and reviews at the
request of management. These are often not in the original audit plan and, if not
appropriate to an existing piece of work, are conducted at the discretion of the
Corporate Manager, Internal Audit.

7.2

Business Continuity
Internal Audit commenced a series of exercises to test individual services’ Business
Continuity Plans in practise. The Plans are “corporate” documents which give
guidance to senior managers tasked with leading recovery activities and prioritising
resources in the event of an incident/ emergency. The first exercise, 25 July 2018,
tested Customer Services, Stowmarket. Several scenarios were acted out and
learning points were noted. The exercise was positively received, and learning points
are being actively actioned.
Thereafter the responsibility for Business Continuity passed from Internal Audit into
the control of the Corporate Manager - Health & Safety, Business Continuity and
Emergency Planning.

Page 53

8.

Resources
As reported to this Committee in ‘Key Information’ above (pp4.2) one part-time
member of staff has increased hours and the section passed oversight of the
Business Continuity activity from 8th October 2018.
Subsequent to the Year End a member of the Team, the Current Specialist Lead for
Internal Audit, has resigned, again leaving a resource shortfall in the team. A current
recruitment campaign proved unsuccessful and the Corporate Manager – Internal
Audit is currently looking at other options.
At this point there is no immediate impact foreseen on the 2019/20 plan delivery but,
depending on our ability to appoint and install, the situation is being carefully
monitored by the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit to ensure that coverage and
the consequent annual audit opinion are not compromised.

9

Professional Practice

9.1

Membership of audit bodies
It is important to keep abreast of best professional practice. Internal Audit has strong
links with audit colleagues both within Suffolk and nationally and are members of the
Suffolk Working Audit Partnership (SWAPs) and the Midland Audit Group.

9.2

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
The team have fully reviewed their working practices to ensure that our Internal Audit
documents and processes comply with, and can be evidenced to, the PSIAS.
This has resulted in a refining of the Internal Audit Charter Strategy; Internal Audit
Services Manual; Internal Audit Risk Log; Quality Assurance and Improvement
Programme; procedure notes; and working papers. These documents are published
on the Councils’ intranet, ‘Connect’, and remain subject to regular review.
Subsequent to this exercise the actions arising from the review are materially
implemented.

9.3

Independence
Internal Audit will remain sufficiently independent of the activities that it audits to
enable auditors to perform their duties in a manner, which facilitates impartial and
effective professional judgements and recommendations.
The Corporate Manager – Internal Audit was also responsible for overseeing the Risk
Management and Business Continuity* arrangements across both Councils.
Separate Leads are assigned to these two disciplines which allows a degree of
independence to be monitored through the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit. Each
of these roles has an independent sponsor to champion reports and proposals. These
are vested in the Assistant Director, Law & Governance and Monitoring Officer, for
Risk; and in the Strategic Director, for Business Continuity*.

Page 54

* As mentioned in paragraph 4.2 of the ‘Key Information’, of the covering report above
Business Continuity has moved from the remit of the Corporate Manager – Internal
Audit from 8th October 2018.
10

Audit opinion
The Corporate Manager – Internal Audit is responsible for the delivery of an audit
opinion and report that can be used by the Councils to inform its governance
statement. The annual opinion concludes on the overall adequacy and effectiveness
of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control.
In giving this opinion, assurance can never be absolute and therefore, only
reasonable assurance can be provided that there are no significant weaknesses in
the processes reviewed. In assessing the level of assurance to be given, the
Corporate Manager – Internal Audit has based his opinion on:


Written reports on all internal audit competed during the course of the year, both
assurance and consultancy;



Results of any follow up exercises undertaken in respect of previous years’
internal audit work;



The results of work of other review bodies where appropriate;



The extent of resources available to deliver the internal audit work; and



The quality and performance of the internal audit service and the extent of
compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

Audit Opinion – the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit is satisfied the sufficient
assurance work has been carried out to allow him to form a reasonable conclusion
on the adequacy and effectiveness of each Council’s internal control environment.
It is the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit’s opinion that the Councils’ framework of
governance, risk management and internal control is ‘(Sufficient) – Reasonable
Assurance’ – the system, process or activity should achieve its objectives safely and
effectively. However, whilst there are some control weaknesses most key controls
are in place and operating effectively. Where weaknesses have been identified
through internal audit review, Internal Audit have worked with management to agree
appropriate corrective actions and a timescale for improvement.
11

Conclusions
The Corporate Manager – Internal Audit considers that there are no additional audit
related issues that currently need to be brought to the attention of this committee.

Page 55

Annexe 1
Changes to the Audit Assurance terminology

Page 56

Annex 2

Introduction of Executive Summary - Illustrative Example Only

Page 57

Annexe 3
Summary of Internal Audit role Description within the ‘Active Schools Project’
Purpose of the role
To be embedded within the Health and Wellbeing Team 1 day per week (or its equivalent), from February 2019 initially until the end of
June 2019, supporting delivery of outcomes around the wider determinants of health, contributing to the work of the team by ensuring
appropriate governance that supports our commitment to the delivery of Suffolk Health and Wellbeing Board Outcomes, particularly
Outcome 1: Every Child in Suffolk to have the best start in life.
Specific deliverables (to be reviewed at 6 months)


Page 58



To provide project governance for the Active Schools programme, acting as the liaison officer with Active Sport (the provider) and
the wider partnership group
To produce a position statement on how the Councils contribute to improved social mobility in the districts, to research best
practice and propose options
To examine the district council contribution to system-wide efforts to support those experiencing Adverse Childhood Experiences
(ACEs) and propose options

Expected outcomes




Active Schools programme, which seeks to reduce levels of childhood obesity/excess weight, is managed effectively with
appropriate project governance established
Ensure the Project Action Plan is SMART, progresses in line with agreed milestones and any remedial action is undertaken as
required
Options for future partnership working to improve social mobility outcomes are fully reviewed and set out in a report for
management

Draft Circulation:
Dave Muller Chair of the Joint Audit and Standards Committee – Mid Suffolk
Bryn Hurren Chair of the Joint Audit and Standards Committee – Babergh
Lee Parker (Cabinet lead for Customers, Digital Transformation & Improvement – Babergh)
Suzie Morley (Cabinet lead for Customers, Digital Transformation & Improvement – Mid Suffolk)
Senior Leadership Team, which include Katherine Steel Assistant Director, Corporate Resources (S151 Officer)

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
BABERGH AND MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCILS
TO:

Joint Audit & Standards
Committee

FROM:

OFFICER:

Katherine Steel, Assistant
Director, Corporate
Resources
Melissa Evans, Corporate
Manager, Finance
Sue Palmer, Senior
Financial Services Officer

REPORT NUMBER:

JAC/19/4

DATE OF MEETING: 29 July 2019

KEY DECISION REF NO. N/A

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT – 2018/19
1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The report is part of the Councils’ management and governance arrangements for
Treasury Management activity under the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury
Management (“the Code”). It provides Members with a comprehensive assessment
of activities for the financial year 2018/19.

1.2

The report specifically sets out the performance of the treasury management function,
the effects of the decisions taken, and the transactions executed in the past year and
any circumstances of non-compliance with the Councils’ treasury management policy
statement and treasury management practices.

1.3

The report also includes performance on Prudential Indicators which were set in the
2018/19 Treasury Management Strategy (shown in Appendix E).

1.4

The figures contained in this report are subject to the external auditor’s review which
should be concluded by the end of September.

2.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1

This report fulfils the Councils’ legal obligations to have regard to the Code and there
are no options to consider.

3.

RECOMMENDATION TO BOTH COUNCILS

3.1

That the Treasury Management activity for the year 2018/19 be noted. Further, that
it be noted that performance was in line with the Prudential Indicators set for 2018/19.
RECOMMENDATION TO BABERGH COUNCIL

3.2

That it be noted that Babergh District Council treasury management activity for
2018/19 was in accordance with the approved Treasury Management Strategy, and
that, except for one occasion when the Council exceeded its daily bank account limit
with Lloyds by £391k, as mentioned in Appendix C, paragraph 4.6, the Council has
complied with all the Treasury Management Indicators for this period.

Page 61

RECOMMENDATION TO MID SUFFOLK COUNCIL
3.3

That it be noted that Mid Suffolk District Council treasury management activity for
2018/19 was in accordance with the approved Treasury Management Strategy, and
that the Council has complied with all the Treasury Management Indicators for this
period.
REASON FOR DECISION
It is a requirement of the Code of Practice on Treasury Management that full
Council notes the position for the financial year 2018/19.

4.

KEY INFORMATION

4.1

The 2018/19 Treasury Management Strategy for both Councils was approved in
February 2018.

4.2

The strategy and activities are affected by a number of factors, including the
regulatory framework, economic conditions, best practice and interest rate/liquidity
risk. The attached appendices summarise the regulatory framework, economic
background and information on key activities for the financial year.

4.3

The Half Year Report on Treasury Management 2018/19 was presented to Members
at the Joint Audit and Standards Committee on 12 November 2018.

4.4

The Treasury Management Indicators aim to ensure that the capital investments of
local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable and that treasury
management decisions are taken in accordance with good professional practice.

4.5

Appendix D shows the position on key Treasury Management Indicators for 2018/19.

4.6

The following key points relating to activity for the year are set out below:


UK labour market data for January 2019 showed the unemployment rate at a
new low of 3.9%. However real wages (adjusted for inflation) grew by 1.4%.



Annual GDP was 1.4%, Economic growth slowed to 0.2% in the fourth quarter
as weaker expansion in production, construction and services dragged down
overall activity.



The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) raised the official
Bank Rate by 0.25% to 0.75% in August 2018.



Investment of surplus funds - As market conditions, credit ratings and Bank
ring fencing have changed during the year, institutions that the Councils invest
with and the period of the investments have been reviewed.



Credit risk scores were within the benchmark A- credit ratings.



Babergh’s long-term debt increased by £10.75m offset by a reduction in shortterm debt of £5m, to take advantage of low PWLB rates. This was mainly for
the £12.5m of approved investment in the non-treasury investments of CIFCO
Ltd.
Page 62



4.7

Mid Suffolk’s long-term debt increased by £38.2m, offset by the repayment of
£11m short term borrowing, to take advantage of low PWLB rates. This was
mainly due to the £12.5m of approved investment in the non-treasury
investments of CIFCO Ltd. and £16m in Gateway 14 Ltd.

Specific highlights relating to 2018/19 activity are provided below:
Area/Activity
Long Term Borrowing –
average interest rate
Credit Risk Scores during
the year (value weighted
average)
Compliance with
Prudential Indicators

Babergh

Mid Suffolk Comments

2.82%

3.07%

5.17 – 6.21

5.16– 5.85





All at fixed rates
Both within the score for
the approved A- credit
rating for investment
counterparties
See Appendix E

4.8

The Section 151 Officer can report that, except for one occasion when Babergh
exceeded its daily bank account limit with Lloyds by £391k, as mentioned in Appendix
C, paragraphs 4.5 and 4.6, all treasury management activities undertaken complied
fully with the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Councils’ approved Treasury
Management Strategy.

5.

LINKS TO JOINT STRATEGIC PLAN

5.1

Ensuring that the Councils have the resources available underpins the ability to
achieve the priorities set out in the Joint Strategic Plan.

6.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1

As detailed in the report and appendices.

7.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The legal status of the Treasury Management Code derives in England from
regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 (the 2003 Act).

7.2

Local authorities are required by regulation to have regard to the Prudential Code
when carrying out their duties under Part 1 of the 2003 Act.

7.3

The latest statutory guidance on local government investments was issued under
section 15(1)(a) of the 2003 Act and effective for financial years commencing on or
after 1 April 2018. Under that section local authorities are required to “have regard”
to “such guidance as the Secretary of State may issue”.

8.

RISK MANAGEMENT

8.1

This report is most closely linked to the Councils’ Significant Risk Register, Risk no.
5d. “We may be unable to respond in a timely and effective way to financial demands”.

Page 63

8.2

Key risks are set out below:
Risk Description

Likelihood

Impact

If the Councils lose
the investments
this will impact on
their ability to
deliver services.

Highly Unlikely (1)

Bad (3)

If the Councils
achieve a poorer
return on
investments than
planned, there will
be fewer resources
available to deliver
services.

Unlikely (2)

Noticeable (2)

If the Councils
have liquidity
problems, then
they will be unable
to meet their shortterm liabilities.

Unlikely (2)

Noticeable (2)

Mitigation
Measures
Strict lending
criteria for high
credit rated
institutions.

Focus is on
security and
liquidity, and
careful cash flow
management in
accordance with
the TM Strategy is
undertaken
throughout the
year.
As above.

9.

CONSULTATIONS

10.

Regular meetings have taken place with the Councils’ Treasury advisors, Arlingclose,
who also provide important updates on treasury management issues as they arise.

11.

EQUALITY ANALYSIS

11.1

An equality analysis has not been completed because the report content does not
have any impact on the protected characteristics.

12.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

12.1

None directly related to this report.

Page 64

13.

APPENDICES
Title

Location

(a) Background, Economy and Outlook

Appendix A

(b) Borrowing Strategy

Appendix B

(c) Investment activity

Appendix C

(d) Treasury Management Indicators

Appendix D

(e) Prudential Indicators

Appendix E

(f)

Appendix F

Glossary of Terms

14.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

14.1

CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management (“the Code”).

14.2

Joint Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19 (Paper JAC/17/15)

14.3

Half Year Report on Treasury Management 2018/19 (Paper JAC/18/8)

Page 65

Appendix A
Background, Economy and Outlook
1.

Introduction

1.1.

In February 2012 the Councils adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice (the
“CIPFA Code”) which requires the Councils to approve treasury management half
year and annual reports.

1.2.

The Joint Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19 was approved at both full
Councils in February 2018. Babergh District Council and Mid Suffolk District Council
have borrowed and invested substantial sums of money and both are therefore
exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect
of changing interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring and control of
risk remains central to the Councils’ Treasury Management Strategy.

1.3.

Treasury risk management at the Councils is conducted within the framework of the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in
the Public Services: Code of Practice 2017 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires
the Councils to approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each
financial year and, as a minimum, a half year and annual treasury outturn report . This
report fulfils the Councils’ legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to
have regard to the CIPFA Code.

1.4.

The 2017 Prudential Code includes a requirement for local authorities to provide a
Capital Strategy, a summary document approved by full Council covering capital
expenditure and financing, treasury management and non-treasury investments. The
Councils’ first Capital Strategy, for the financial year 2019/20, complying with CIPFA’s
Code requirement, was approved by both full Councils in February 2019.

2.

External Context

2.1.

Economic background:

2.1.1. After spiking at over $85/barrel in October 2018, oil prices fell back sharply by the
end of the year, declining to just over $50 in late December before steadily climbing
toward $70 in April 2019. UK Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) for February 2019 was
up 1.9% year-on-year, just above the consensus forecast but broadly in line with the
Bank of England’s February Inflation Report. The most recent labour market data for
the three months to January 2019 showed the unemployment rate fell to a new low
of 3.9% while the employment rate of 76.1% was the highest on record. The 3-month
average annual growth rate for pay excluding bonuses was 3.4% as wages continue
to rise steadily and provide some upward pressure on general inflation. Once
adjusted for inflation, real wages were up 1.4%.
2.1.2. After rising to 0.6% in the third calendar quarter from 0.4% in the second, fourth
quarter economic growth slowed to 0.2% as weaker expansion in production,
construction and services dragged down overall activity. Annual GDP growth at 1.4%
continues to remain below trend. Following the Bank of England’s decision to
increase Bank Rate to 0.75% in August 2018, no changes to monetary policy have
been made since.
Page 66

Appendix A cont’d
2.1.3. The US Federal Reserve continued its tightening bias throughout 2018, pushing rates
to the 2.25%-2.50% range in December. However, a recent softening in US data
caused the Fed to signal a pause in hiking interest rates at the last Federal Open
Market Committee (FOMC) meeting in March.
2.1.4. With 29 March 2019, the original EU ‘exit day’ now been and gone, there is still
uncertainty surrounding the manner of the UK’s departure on the latest proposed date
of 31 October 2019. This will depend on the approach taken by whoever is elected
as the next Prime Minister. The EU must grant any extension and its leaders have
been clear that the terms of the deal are not up for further negotiation. The ongoing
uncertainty continues to weigh on sterling and UK markets.
2.1.5. While the domestic focus has been on Brexit’s potential impact on the UK economy,
globally the first quarter of 2019 has been overshadowed by a gathering level of
broader based economic uncertainty. The US continues to be set on a path of
protectionist trade policies and tensions with China in particular, but with the potential
for this to spill over into wider trade relationships, most notably with the EU. The EU
itself appeared to be showing signs of a rapid slowdown in economic growth with the
major engines of its economy, Germany and France, both suffering misfires from
downturns in manufacturing alongside continued domestic/populist unrest in France.
The International Monetary Fund downgraded its forecasts for global economic
growth in 2019 and beyond as a consequence.
2.2.

Financial Markets:

2.2.1. December was a month to forget in terms of performance of riskier asset classes,
most notably equities. The FTSE 100 (a good indicator of global corporate sentiment)
returned -8.8% assuming dividends were reinvested; in pure price terms it fell around
13%. However, since the beginning of 2019 markets have rallied, and the FTSE 100
and FTSE All share indices were both around 10% higher than at the end of 2018.
2.2.2. Gilt yields continued to display significant volatility over the period on the back of
ongoing economic and political uncertainty in the UK and Europe. After rising in
October, gilts regained their safe-haven status throughout December and into the
new year; the 5-year benchmark gilt yield fell as low as 0.80% and there were similar
falls in the 10-year and 20-year gilts over the same period dropping from 1.73% to
1.08% and from 1.90% to 1.55%. The increase in Bank Rate pushed up money
markets rates over the year and 1-month, 3-month and 12-month LIBID (London
Interbank Bid) rates averaged 0.53%, 0.67% and 0.94% respectively over the period.
2.2.3. Recent activity in the bond markets and PWLB interest rates highlight that weaker
economic growth is not just a UK phenomenon but a global risk. During March the
US yield curve inverted (10-year Treasury yields were lower than US 3-month money
market rates) and German 10-year Bund yields turned negative. The drivers are a
significant shift in global economic growth prospects and subsequent official interest
rate expectations given its impact on inflation expectations.

Page 67

Appendix A cont’d
2.2.4. Further to this is world trade growth which collapsed at the end of 2018 falling by
1.8% year-on-year. A large proportion of this downturn in trade can be ascribed to
the ongoing trade tensions between the US and China which despite some
moderation in January does suggest that the International Monetary Fund’s (IMF) and
Organisation for Economic Co-Operation & Development’s (OECD) forecasts for
global growth in 2019 of 3.5% might need to be revised downwards.
2.3.

Credit background:

2.3.1. Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads drifted up towards the end of 2018 on the back
of Brexit uncertainty before declining again in 2019 and continuing to remain low in
historical terms. After hitting around 129 basis points in December 2018, the spread
on non-ringfenced bank NatWest Markets plc fell back to around 96bps at the end of
March, while for the ringfenced entity, National Westminster Bank plc, the CDS
spread held relatively steady around 40bps. The other main UK banks, as yet not
separated into ringfenced and non-ringfenced from a CDS perspective, traded
between 33 and 79bps at the end of the period.
2.3.2. The ringfencing of the big four UK banks (Barclays, Bank of Scotland/Lloyds, HSBC
and RBS/Natwest Bank plc) transferred their business lines into retail (ringfenced)
and investment banking (non-ringfenced) entities.
2.3.3. In February, Fitch put the UK AA sovereign long-term rating on Rating Watch
Negative as a result of Brexit uncertainty, following this move with the same treatment
for UK banks and a number of government-related entities.
2.3.4. There were minimal other credit rating changes during the period. Moody’s revised
the outlook on Santander UK to positive from stable to reflect the bank’s expected
issuance plans which will provide additional protection for its senior unsecured debt
and deposits.
3.

Local Context

3.1.

On 31 March 2019, Babergh had net borrowing of £101.016m and Mid Suffolk had
net borrowing of £125.829m arising from revenue and capital income and expenditure
activities. This is an increase of £7.499m for Babergh and £18.267m for Mid Suffolk
from the 31 March 2018 position.

3.2.

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working capital are the
underlying resources available for investment. These factors and the year-on-year
change are summarised in Table 1 as follows.

Page 68

Appendix A cont’d
3.3.

Table 1: Borrowing Summary

Babergh
General Fund CFR
HRA CFR
Total CFR
Borrowing CFR
Less: Usable reserves
Add: Working Capital
Net Borrowing Requirement

Mid Suffolk
General Fund CFR
HRA CFR
Total CFR
Borrowing CFR
Less: Usable reserves
Add: Working Capital
Net Borrowing Requirement

31.3.18
2018/19
Actual Movement
£m
£m
31.170
13.956
86.848
(0.175)
118.018
13.781

31.3.19
Actual
£m
45.126
86.673
131.799

(27.084)
2.583
93.517

(5.626)
(0.656)
7.499

(32.710)
1.927
101.016

31.3.18
2018/19
Actual Movement
£m
£m
35.817
30.468
86.759
1.211
122.576
31.679

31.3.19
Actual
£m
66.285
87.970
154.255

(30.736)
15.722
107.562

(36.855)
8.429
125.829

(6.119)
(7.293)
18.267

3.4. Both Councils’ net borrowing requirement has increased due to a rise in the CFR as
new capital expenditure was higher than the financing applied, including minimum
revenue provision. This was offset by an increase in usable reserves and a decrease
in working capital due to the timing of receipts and payments and an increase in long
term borrowing.
3.5. The current strategy is to maintain borrowing and investments below their underlying
levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing, to reduce risk and keep interest costs
low.
3.6. Table 2: Treasury Management Summary
3.7. The actual treasury management activity and position at 31 March 2019 and the yearon-year change is shown in Table 2 as follows.

Page 69

Appendix A cont’d

Babergh
Long-term borrowing
Short-term borrowing
Total borrowing
Long-term investments
Cash and Cash equivalents
Total investments
Net Borrowing

Mid Suffolk
Long-term borrowing
Short-term borrowing
Total borrowing
Long-term investments
Cash and Cash equivalents
Total investments
Net Borrowing

31.3.18
2018/19
Balance Movement
£m
86.297
12.000
98.297
9.638
2.445
12.083
86.214

31.3.19
Balance

£m
10.750
(5.000)
5.750
(0.208)
(0.024)
(0.232)
5.982

£m
97.047
7.000
104.047
9.430
2.421
11.851
92.196

31.3.18
2018/19
Balance Movement

31.3.19
Balance

£m
74.087
29.000
103.087
9.642
2.394
12.036
91.051

£m
112.287
18.000
130.287
9.423
2.880
12.303
117.984

£m
38.200
(11.000)
27.200
(0.219)
0.486
0.267
26.933

31.3.19
Average
Rate
%
2.82%
0.93%
4.91%
0.56%

31.3.19
Average
Rate
%
3.07%
0.91%
4.82%
0.59%

3.8. The figures in Table 2 are from the balance sheet in the statement of accounts,
adjusted to exclude operational cash, accrued interest and other accounting
adjustments.
3.9. Babergh and Mid Suffolk have both increased net borrowing to finance capital
expenditure mainly in relation to CIFCO Ltd (both councils) and Gateway 14 Ltd (Mid
Suffolk).

Page 70

Appendix B
1.

Borrowing Strategy during the year

1.1.

At 31 March 2019, Babergh held £104.047m of loans and Mid Suffolk £130.287m.
This was an increase for Babergh of £5.75m and an increase of £27.2m for Mid
Suffolk on the previous year. These increases are part of both Councils’ strategy for
funding previous years’ capital programmes. The year-end borrowing position and
the year-on-year change is shown in Table 3 that follows.

1.2.

Table 3: Borrowing Position

31.3.18
2018/19
Balance Movement

Babergh

£m
86.297
12.000
98.297

Public Works Loan Board
Local authorities (short-term)
Total borrowing

Public Works Loan Board
Banks (LOBO)
Local authorities (medium / long-term)
Local authorities (short-term)
Total borrowing
1.3.

£m
£m
10.750
97.047
(5.000)
7.000
5.750 104.047

31.3.18
2018/19
Balance Movement

Mid Suffolk

Table 3 - Charts: Borrowing Position

Page 71

£m
70.087
4.000
0.000
29.000
103.087

31.3.19
Balance

31.3.19
Balance

£m
£m
22.200
92.287
0.000
4.000
16.000
16.000
(11.000) 18.000
27.200 130.287

31.3.19
Average
Rate
%
2.82%
0.93%

31.3.19
Average
Rate
%
3.79%
4.21%
1.20%
0.91%

Appendix B cont’d

1.4.

The Councils’ objective when borrowing has been to strike an appropriately low risk
balance between securing low interest costs and achieving cost certainty over the
period for which funds are required, with a secondary objective of flexibility to
renegotiate loans should the Councils’ long-term plans change.

1.5.

As the Councils have increasing CFR’s due to the capital programme and an
estimated borrowing requirement as determined by the Liability Benchmark which
also takes into account usable reserves and working capital, Babergh borrowed an
additional £11.25m and Mid Suffolk £38.5m medium/longer-term fixed rate loans
during 2018/19 to provide some longer-term certainty and stability to the debt portfolio
and stay within short term borrowing limits.

1.6.

Table 4 – Medium / Long Term Borrowing Position
Babergh
Long-dated Loans borrowed
PWLB Annuity Loan 1
PWLB Annuity Loan 2
Total borrowing

Amount
£m
6.250
5.000
11.250

Rate
%
2.63%
1.71%

Period
(Years)
50
10

Mid Suffolk
Long-dated Loans borrowed
PWLB Annuity Loan 1
PWLB Annuity Loan 2
Local authority Maturity Loan 1
Local authority Maturity Loan 2
Local authority Maturity Loan 3
Total borrowing

Amount
£m
12.500
10.000
6.000
5.000
5.000
38.500

Rate
%
2.63%
1.71%
1.20%
1.20%
1.20%

Period
(Years)
50
10
2
2
2

Page 72

Appendix B cont’d
1.7.

LOBO loans: Mid Suffolk continues to hold £4m of LOBO loans (Lender’s Option
Borrower’s Option) where the lender has the option to propose an increase in the
interest rate at set dates, following which the Council has the option to either accept
the new rate or to repay the loan at no additional cost. The banks did not exercise
their option during 2018/19.

Page 73

Appendix C
1.

Treasury Investment Activity

1.1.

Babergh and Mid Suffolk hold invested funds, representing income received in
advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves. During 2018/19, Babergh’s
investment balance ranged between £11.105m and £28.766m. Mid Suffolk’s
investment balance ranged between £10.687m and £38.061m. These movements
are due to timing differences between income and expenditure. The year-end
investment position and the year-on-year changes are shown in Table 5 as follows.

1.2.

Table 5: Treasury Investment Position
31.3.18
Balance

Babergh
Banks & building societies (unsecured)
Money Market Funds
Schroder
UBS
CCLA
Funding Circle
Total investments

£m
1.445
1.000
2.000
2.000
5.000
0.638
12.083
31.3.18
Balance

Mid Suffolk
Banks & building societies (unsecured)
Money Market Funds
Schroder
UBS
CCLA
Funding Circle
Total investments

£m
0.894
1.500
2.000
2.000
5.000
0.642
12.036

Page 74

2018/19 31.3.19
Movement Balance
£m
(0.024)
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
(0.208)
(0.232)

£m
1.421
1.000
2.000
2.000
5.000
0.430
11.851

2018/19 31.3.19
Movement Balance
£m
0.586
(0.100)
0.000
0.000
0.000
(0.219)
0.267

£m
1.480
1.400
2.000
2.000
5.000
0.423
12.303

31.3.19
Average
Rate
%
0.56%
0.56%
7.20%
4.09%
4.32%
5.02%

31.3.19
Average
Rate
%
0.54%
0.64%
7.20%
4.08%
4.17%
4.78%

Appendix C cont’d
1.3.

Table 5 - Charts: Investment Position at 31 March 2019.

1.4.

Both the CIPFA Code and government guidance requires Councils to invest their
funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of their treasury
investments before seeking the optimum rate of return, or yield. The Councils’
objectives when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and
return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving
unsuitably low investment income.
Page 75

Appendix C cont’d
1.5.

Babergh and Mid Suffolk have both followed the treasury management strategy to
move investments into long term pooled funds. Given the increasing risk and falling
returns from short-term unsecured bank investments, the Councils diversified into
more higher yielding asset classes; pooled property, multi asset and equity funds. As
a result, investment risk was diversified. While the average rate of return has reduced
during the year, it is still higher than the comparable average returns of Arlingclose’s
other clients. The progression of risk and return metrics are shown in the extracts
from Arlingclose’s quarterly investment benchmarking for the year end in Table 6 that
follows.

1.6.

Table 6: Investment Benchmarking - Treasury investments managed in-house
Babergh
At 31.03.2018
At 31.03.2019
Similar Local authorities
All Local authorities

Mid Suffolk
At 31.03.2018
At 31.03.2019
Similar Local authorities
All Local authorities

Credit
Score
6.21
5.17
4.13
4.20

Credit
Bail-in
Rate of
Rating Exposure Return
A
85%
5.10%
A+
92%
4.13%
AA53%
1.75%
AA55%
1.45%

Credit
Score
5.85
5.16
4.13
4.20

Credit
Bail-in
Rate of
Rating Exposure Return
A
85%
5.08%
A+
93%
4.00%
AA53%
1.75%
AA55%
1.45%

1.7.

Bail-in involves the shareholders and creditors of a failing financial institution meeting
the costs, instead of the government. As Babergh and Mid Suffolk have relatively
small investment portfolios their bail-in exposure is proportionately higher than the
local authorities in Arlingclose’s benchmarking group. Babergh and Mid Suffolk have
chosen to adopt a strategy of generating higher returns by investing funds available
in banks and strategic pooled funds.

1.8.

Babergh has £9.430m of externally managed pooled equity, property and multi
assets funds which generated an average total income return, since the date of the
initial investments, of £1.380m (4.13%) which is used to support service provision.

1.9.

Mid Suffolk has £9.423m of externally managed pooled equity, property and multi
assets funds which generated an average total income return, since the date of the
initial investments, of £1.226m (4.00%) which is used to support service provision.

1.10.

These funds have no defined maturity date but are available for withdrawal after a
notice period. Their performance and continued suitability in meeting the Councils’
investment objectives are regularly reviewed. In light of their performance and the
Councils’ latest cash flow forecasts, investment in these funds has been maintained,
except for Funding Circle which is being reduced over the period of the repayment
of the remaining loans.

Page 76

Appendix C cont’d
1.11.

During the year the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
(MHCLG) consulted on statutory overrides relating to the IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments accounting standard effective from 2018/19.
The consultation
recognised that the requirement in IFRS 9 for certain investments to be accounted
for as fair value through profit and loss may introduce “more income statement
volatility” which may impact on budget calculations. As a result of the consultations
a time-limited statutory override of 5 years was applied to pooled funds and this was
applied in both Councils’ statements of accounts for 2018/19.

1.12.

Readiness for Brexit: With little by way of political clarity as to the exact date on
whether there would be an agreed deal prior to leaving the EU and to be prepared
for the outside chance of a particularly disruptive Brexit (such as last-minute no-deal)
on 29 March 2019, the Councils ensured there were enough accounts open at UK
domiciled banks and Money Market Funds to hold sufficient liquidity over the year
end and that its account with the Debt Management Account Deposit Facility
(DMADF) remained available for use in an emergency. It is intended to adopt a
similar approach to prepare for the impact of Brexit in view of the uncertainty around
the latest proposed leaving date of 31 October 2019.

1.13.

The Councils’ borrowing decisions are not predicated on any one outcome for
interest rates and a balanced portfolio of short- and long-term borrowing was
maintained.

2

Non-Treasury Holdings and Other Investment Activity

2.1

The definition of investments in CIPFA’s revised Treasury Management Code now
covers all the financial assets of the Councils as well as other non-financial assets
which the Councils hold primarily for financial return. This is replicated in MHCLG’s
Investment Guidance, in which the definition of investments is further broadened to
include all such assets held partially for financial return.

2.2

Investment Property

2.2.1 During 2016/17 Babergh purchased Borehamgate Shopping Centre in Sudbury for
£3.56m. This has been classified as an investment property and on 31 March 2019,
it was assessed at fair value of £2.905m. Net Income, after the deduction of direct
costs, was £177k in 2018/19 (£260k in 2017/18). The reduction in income is due to
units becoming vacant and is being actively managed by officers to try and secure
new tenants.
2.3

Trading Companies

2.3.1 At the 31 March 2019 Babergh held £2.610m of equity in BDC (Suffolk Holdings) Ltd.
and after losses incurred by the company this is valued at £301k. Babergh also has
£23.431m of loans (valued at £23.301m after £130k impairment allowance) in Capital
Investment Fund Company (CIFCO Ltd), a subsidiary of BDC (Suffolk Holdings) Ltd.
These loans have generated £868k of investment income since the start of trading.
The net position after borrowing costs is shown in Table 7.
2.3.2 Babergh’s 50% share of the loss made by CIFCO Ltd was £2.309m and is reflected
in the reduced value of the Council’s equity holding in the company. This was mainly
due to the downward valuation of the company’s investment properties which was
charged to their profit or loss account.
Page 77

Appendix C cont’d
2.3.3 At the 31 March 2019 Mid Suffolk held £4.232m of equity in MSDC (Suffolk Holdings)
Ltd and after losses incurred by the company this is valued at £398k. Mid Suffolk also
has £23.431m of loans (valued at £23.301m after £130k impairment allowance) in
Capital Investment Fund Company (CIFCO Ltd), a subsidiary of MSDC (Suffolk
Holdings) Ltd. These loans have generated £868k of investment income since the
start of trading. The net position after borrowing costs is shown in Table 7.
2.3.4 Mid Suffolk also held £14.602m of loans (valued at £14.521m after £81k impairment
allowance) on 31 March 2019 in another subsidiary of MSDC (Suffolk Holdings) Ltd,
Gateway 14 Ltd, which has generated £469k of accrued investment income since the
initial loans were advanced by the Council in August 2018.
2.3.5 Mid Suffolk also had a 50% share of the loss made by CIFCO Ltd (£2.309m), as
explained in paragraph 2.3.2 above.
2.3.6 In addition, the loss incurred by Gateway 14 Ltd was £1.525m resulting in a reduction
in the Council’s overall equity holding of £3.834m. This company is still in the early
stages of developing land and building projects for which it was created and has yet
to generate income.
3

Treasury Performance

3.1

The Councils measure the financial performance of treasury management activities
in terms of their impact on the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account revenue
budgets as shown in Table 7 that follows.

3.2

Table 7 Treasury Activity - Performance
2018/19
Budget

2018/19
Actual

£m

£m

Interest Receivable
General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
CIFCO Ltd
Total Interest Receivable

(0.437)
(0.015)
(1.064)
(1.516)

(0.459)
(0.024)
(0.782)
(1.265)

(0.022)
(0.010)
0.282
0.250

105.1
166.0
73.5
83.5

Interest Payable
General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
CIFCO Ltd
Total Interest Payable

0.018
2.847
0.594
3.458

0.000
2.831
0.118
2.949

(0.018)
(0.016)
(0.476)
(0.509)

0.0
99.4
19.9
85.3

Net Interest
General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
CIFCO Ltd
Total Net Interest

(0.419)
2.832
(0.470)
1.943

(0.459)
2.806
(0.663)
1.684

(0.040)
(0.026)
(0.193)
(0.259)

109.5
99.1
141.1
86.7

Babergh

Page 78

Variance
Adverse/
(Favourable)
£m

2018/19
Compared
to budget
%

Appendix C cont’d
2018/19
Budget

2018/19
Actual

£m

£m

Interest Receivable
General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
CIFCO Ltd
Gateway 14 Ltd
Total Interest Receivable

(0.437)
(0.010)
(1.064)
(0.470)
(1.981)

(0.490)
(0.015)
(0.782)
(0.469)
(1.755)

(0.053)
(0.005)
0.282
0.001
0.226

112.1
145.1
73.5
99.8
88.6

Interest Payable
General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
CIFCO Ltd
Gateway 14 Ltd
Total Interest Payable

0.130
2.754
1.029
0.000
3.912

0.048
2.693
0.235
0.141
3.117

(0.082)
(0.060)
(0.794)
0.141
(0.795)

37.0
97.8
22.8
100.0
79.7

Net Interest
General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
CIFCO Ltd
Gateway 14 Ltd
Total Net Interest

(0.307)
2.744
(0.035)
(0.470)
1.932

(0.442)
2.679
(0.547)
(0.328)
1.363

(0.135)
(0.065)
(0.511)
0.142
(0.569)

143.9
97.6
1,551.4
69.7
70.5

Mid Suffolk

Variance
Adverse/
(Favourable)
£m

2018/19
Compared
to budget
%

3.3

The interest receivable for Babergh and Mid Suffolk were both under budget by £250k
and £226k respectively. This is due to investments in CIFCO Ltd and Gateway 14 Ltd
being deferred whilst suitable properties to purchase were being identified.

3.4

The total interest payable for the year was under budget by £509k for Babergh and
£795k for Mid Suffolk. This is due to the timing of the purchases for CIFCO Ltd as
explained in 3.3 above and using short term local authority borrowing to fund CIFCO
Ltd and Gateway 14 Ltd at lower rates. All Babergh’s short term borrowing was
attributable to CIFCO Ltd only.

3.5

Long term investment returns
Babergh and Mid Suffolk have both invested in long term pooled funds. Tables 8.1 to
8.4 that follow show details of how these investments have performed during 2017/18
and 2018/19.

Page 79

Appendix C cont’d
3.5.1 Table 8.1 CCLA Performance
Babergh
CCLA

Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment

31.3.17
Balance
£m
5.000
4.778

2017/18
Movement
£m
0.000
0.149

31.3.18
Balance
£m
5.000
4.927

2018/19
Movement
£m
0.000
0.077

31.3.19
Balance
£m
5.000
5.004

0.356

0.227

0.583

0.216

0.799

0.221
4.97%

0.007
-0.43%

0.227
4.54%

(0.011)
-0.22%

0.216
4.32%

Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

Mid Suffolk
CCLA

Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment

31.3.17
Balance
£m
5.000
4.704

2017/18
Movement
£m
0.000
0.147

31.3.18
Balance
£m
5.000
4.851

2018/19
Movement
£m
0.000
0.075

31.3.19
Balance
£m
5.000
4.927

0.311

0.224

0.534

0.208

0.743

0.215
4.87%

0.008
-0.40%

0.224
4.47%

(0.015)
-0.30%

0.208
4.17%

Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

3.5.2 Babergh and Mid Suffolk both invested into the Schroder Income maximiser fund on
10 February 2017.
3.5.3 Table 8.2 Schroder Performance

Schroder Maximiser Fund

Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment
Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

Schroder Maximiser Fund

Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment
Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

31.3.17
Balance
£m
2.000
1.975

2017/18
Movement
£m
0.000
(0.048)

Babergh
31.3.18
Balance
£m
2.000
1.927

0.036

0.137

0.173

0.144

0.317

0.036
5.95%

0.102
0.91%

0.137
6.86%

0.007
0.35%

0.144
7.20%

31.3.17
2017/18
Balance Movement
£m
£m
2.000
0.000
1.975
(0.048)

2018/19
Movement
£m
0.000
(0.051)

31.3.19
Balance
£m
2.000
1.876

Mid Suffolk
31.3.18
2018/19
Balance Movement
£m
£m
2.000
0.000
1.927
(0.051)

31.3.19
Balance
£m
2.000
1.876

0.036

0.137

0.173

0.144

0.317

0.036
5.95%

0.102
0.91%

0.137
6.86%

0.007
0.35%

0.144
7.20%

Page 80

Appendix C cont’d
3.5.4 Babergh invested in the UBS Multi Asset income fund on 26 November 2015, whilst
Mid Suffolk invested in the fund on 28 March 2017.
3.5.5 Table 8.3 UBS Performance

UBS

Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment
Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

UBS

Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment
Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

3.5.6

31.3.17
Balance
£m
2.000
2.008

2017/18
Movement
£m
0.000
(0.085)

Babergh
31.3.18
Balance
£m
2.000
1.923

2018/19
Movement
£m
0.000
(0.024)

31.3.19
Balance
£m
2.000
1.899

0.118

0.075

0.192

0.082

0.274

0.084
4.19%

(0.009)
-0.45%

0.075
3.74%

0.007
0.35%

0.082
4.09%

31.3.17
2017/18
Balance Movement
£m
£m
2.000
0.000
2.004
(0.084)

Mid Suffolk
31.3.18
2018/19
Balance Movement
£m
£m
2.000
0.000
1.920
(0.024)

31.3.19
Balance
£m
2.000
1.896

0.022

0.075

0.096

0.082

0.178

0.022
4.39%

0.053
-0.66%

0.075
3.73%

0.007
0.35%

0.082
4.08%

Table 8.4 Funding Circle Performance

Funding Circle

Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Total Amount Invested
Bad debts to date
Accrued Interest
Valuation

Income received
Servicing costs
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment
Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

31.3.17
Balance
£m
0.638
0.025
0.663
(0.007)
0.013
0.669

2017/18
Movement
£m
(0.025)
0.000
(0.025)
(0.008)
0.006
(0.027)

Babergh
31.3.18
Balance
£m
0.613
0.025
0.638
(0.016)
0.019
0.641

2018/19
Movement
£m
(0.208)
0.000
(0.208)
(0.015)
0.003
(0.220)

31.3.19
Balance
£m
0.405
0.025
0.430
(0.031)
0.022
0.421

0.004
(0.004)

0.067
(0.004)

0.071
(0.008)

0.028
(0.003)

0.099
(0.012)

0.034

0.029

0.063

0.025

0.087

0.024
5.58%

0.014
-1.04%

0.038
4.54%

(0.013)
0.47%

0.025
5.02%

Page 81

Appendix C cont’d

31.3.17
2017/18
Balance Movement
£m
£m
0.617
0.000
0.025
0.000
0.642
0.000
(0.009)
(0.008)
0.013
0.004
0.646
(0.004)

Funding Circle

Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Total Amount Invested
Bad debts to date
Accrued Interest
Valuation

Income received
Servicing costs
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment
Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

Mid Suffolk
31.3.18
2018/19
Balance Movement
£m
£m
0.617
(0.219)
0.025
0.000
0.642
(0.219)
(0.016)
(0.023)
0.017
(0.001)
0.643
(0.243)

31.3.19
Balance
£m
0.398
0.025
0.423
(0.040)
0.016
0.399

0.041
(0.005)

0.034
(0.004)

0.075
(0.009)

0.027
(0.003)

0.102
(0.012)

0.036

0.030

0.066

0.024

0.090

0.026
5.70%

0.013
-1.07%

0.039
4.63%

(0.016)
0.16%

0.024
4.78%

4.

Compliance Report

4.1.

The Section 151 Officer can report that, except for one occasion when Babergh
exceeded its daily bank account limit with Lloyds by £391k, as mentioned in
Paragraph 4.6 below, all treasury management activities undertaken complied fully
with the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Councils’ approved Treasury Management
Strategy.

4.2.

Compliance with the authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt is
demonstrated in Table 9 as follows.

4.3.

Table 9: Debt Limits

Total Borrowing
Babergh
Mid Suffolk
4.4.

2018/19
Maximum
£m
104.047
130.287

31.3.19
2018/19
2018/19
Actual Operational Authorised Complied
£m Boundary
Limit
104.047
137.000
147.000

130.287
155.000
165.000


Since the operational boundary is a management tool for in-year monitoring, it is not
significant if the operational boundary is breached on occasions due to variations in
cash flow, and this is not counted as a compliance failure.

Page 82

Appendix C cont’d
4.5.

Table 10: Investment Limits
Compliance with specific investment limits is demonstrated in Table 10 as follows.
Babergh
Any single organisation, except the UK Central Government
Any group of organisations under the same ownership
Any group of pooled funds under the same management
Negotiable instruments held in a broker’s nominee account
Foreign countries
Registered Providers
Unsecured investments with Building Societies
Loans to unrated corporates
Money Market Funds
Mid Suffolk
Any single organisation, except the UK Central Government
Any group of organisations under the same ownership
Any group of pooled funds under the same management
Negotiable instruments held in a broker’s nominee account
Foreign countries
Registered Providers
Unsecured investments with Building Societies
Loans to unrated corporates
Money Market Funds

2018/19
Maximum
£2.391m
£0m
£5m
£0m
£0m
£0m
£0m
£0.638m
£2m

31.3.19
Actual
£1.421m
£0m
£5m
£0m
£0m
£0m
£0m
£0.430m
£2m

2018/19
Limit
£2m
£1m
£5m
£10m
£2m
£5m
£2m
£1m
£2m

2018/19
Maximum
£1.927m
£0m
£5m
£0m
£0m
£0m
£0m
£0.642m
£2m

31.3.19
Actual
£1.480m
£0m
£5m
£0m
£0m
£0m
£0m
£0.423m
£2m

2018/19
Limit
£2m
£1m
£5m
£10m
£2m
£5m
£2m
£1m
£2m

Complied
x









Complied










4.6. It should be noted that both Council’s treasury management activity for 2018/19 was
in accordance with the approved Treasury Management Strategy, and that, except
for one day when Babergh exceeded its daily bank account limit with Lloyds by £391k,
both Councils have complied with all the Treasury Management Indicators for this
period. This was due to the timing of a refund from a Money Market Fund not being
returned when expected, causing the limit to be exceeded.

Page 83

Appendix D
1. Treasury Management Indicators
1.1.

The Councils measure and manage their exposure to treasury management risks
using the following indicators:

1.2.

Security: Babergh and Mid Suffolk have adopted a voluntary measure of their
exposure to credit risk by monitoring the value-weighted average credit score of their
investment portfolios. This is calculated by applying a score to each investment
(AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the arithmetic average, weighted by the size of each
investment. Unrated investments are assigned a score based on their perceived risk.
These are shown in Table 11 that follows.

1.3.

Table 11: Credit Scores
Credit Scores
Babergh Portfolio average Credit Score
Mid Suffolk Portfolio average Credit Score

31.3.19
Actual
5.17
5.16

2018/19
Target
7.00
7.00

Complied



1.4.

Interest Rate Exposures: This indicator is set to control the Councils’ exposure to
interest rate risk. The upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures,
expressed as the proportion of net principal borrowed are shown in Table 12 that
follows.

1.5.

Table 12: Fixed Interest rate exposure

Babergh Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposure
Babergh Upper limit on variable interest rate exposure

31.3.19
Actual
£m
97.05
7.00

Mid Suffolk Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposure
Mid Suffolk Upper limit on variable interest rate exposure

112.29
18.00

Fixed Interest rate exposure

2018/19 Complied
Limit
£m
136.00

35.00

154.00
40.00




1.6.

Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is fixed
for at least 12 months measured from the start of the financial year or the transaction
date if later. All other instruments are classed as variable rate.

1.7.

Maturity Structure of Borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Councils’
exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of
fixed rate borrowing are shown in Table 13 as follows.

Page 84

Appendix D cont’d
1.8.

Table 13: Maturity Structures
Babergh Mid Suffolk
Lower Upper
31.3.19
31.3.19
Complied
Limit Limit
Actual
Actual
7.71%
14.85%
0%
50%

0.90%
13.33%
0%
50%

1.74%
2.66%
0%
50%

14.39%
16.08%
0%
100%

69.73%
24.41%
0%
100%

3.64%
22.57%
0%
100%

1.89%
6.10%
0%
100%


Age Profile of Maturity
Under 12 months
12 months and within 24 months
24 months and within 5 years
5 years and within 10 years
10 years and within 20 years
20 years and within 40 years
Over 40 years

1.9.

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.

1.10. Table 13 Chart: Maturity Structures

1.11. Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 365 days: The purpose of this
indicator is to control the Councils’ exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking
early repayment of investments. The limits on the long-term principal sum invested
to final maturities beyond the period end are shown in Table 14 that follows.

Page 85

Appendix D cont’d
1.12. Table 14: Principal Sums
Babergh
Actual principal invested beyond year end
Limit on principal invested beyond year end
Complied

2018/19
£0
£2m


2019/20
£0
£2m


2020/21
£0
£2m


Mid Suffolk
Actual principal invested beyond year end
Limit on principal invested beyond year end
Complied

2018/19
£0
£2m


2019/20
£0
£2m


2020/21
£0
£2m


1.13. Whilst the investments that have been made in CCLA, UBS, Schroder and Funding
Circle are intended to benefit from longer term higher returns, they can be redeemed
on a short-term basis.

Page 86

Appendix E
1.

Prudential Indicators

1.1.

Introduction

1.1.1. The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Councils to have regard to the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code) when determining how much
money it can afford to borrow. The objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure,
within a clear framework, that the capital investment plans of local authorities are
affordable, prudent and sustainable, and that treasury management decisions are
taken in accordance with good professional practice. To demonstrate that councils
have fulfilled these objectives, the Prudential Code sets out the following indicators
that must be set and monitored each year.
1.1.2. This report compares the approved indicators with the outturn position for 2018/19.
Actual figures have been taken from, or prepared on a basis consistent with, the
Councils’ Statements of Accounts for 2018/19.
1.2.

Capital Expenditure

1.2.1. The Councils’ capital expenditure and financing may be summarised as follows:
1.2.2. Table 15: Capital Expenditure and Financing

Babergh District Council
Capital Expenditure and Financing
General Fund
HRA
Total Expenditure
Capital Receipts
Grants and Contributions
Revenue Contributions and Reserves
Major Repairs Reserve
Borrowing
Total Financing

Page 87

2018/19
Budget

2018/19
Actual

£m
16.460
13.860
30.320
1.220
0.400
10.220
3.300
15.180
30.320

£m
15.665
7.226
22.891
1.519
0.396
2.236
3.530
15.210
22.891

Variance
Adverse /
(Favourable)
£m
(0.795)
(6.634)
(7.429)
0.299
(0.004)
(7.984)
0.230
0.030
(7.429)

Appendix E cont’d
Mid Suffolk District Council
2018/19
Capital Expenditure and Financing

Budget

General Fund
HRA
Total Expenditure
Capital Receipts
Grants and Contributions
Revenue Contributions and Reserves
Major Repairs Reserve
Borrowing
Total Financing

£m
36.880
11.650
48.530
3.440
1.000
6.590
3.400
34.100
48.530

2.

Prudential Indicator Compliance

2.1.

Capital Financing Requirement

2018/19

Variance
Adverse /
Actual
(Favourable)

£m
34.711
9.954
44.665
3.407
1.120
3.855
3.761
32.522
44.665

£m
(2.169)
(1.696)
(3.865)
(0.033)
0.120
(2.735)
0.361
(1.578)
(3.865)

2.1.1. The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures the Councils' underlying need
to borrow for capital purposes.
2.1.2. Table 16: Capital Financing Requirement
Babergh District Council
Capital Expenditure and Financing
General Fund
HRA
Total CFR

31.3.19
Budget

31.3.19
Actual

£m
45.420
86.350
131.770

£m
45.126
86.673
131.799

31.3.19
Budget

31.3.19
Actual

£m
67.750
88.080
155.830

£m
66.285
87.970
154.255

Variance
Adverse /
(Favourable)
£m
(0.294)
0.323
0.029

Mid Suffolk District Council
Capital Expenditure and Financing
General Fund
HRA
Total CFR

Variance
Adverse /
(Favourable)
£m
(1.465)
(0.110)
(1.575)

2.1.3. The CFR increased during the year for Babergh by £13.781m and for Mid Suffolk by
£31.678m as capital expenditure financed by debt outweighed resources put aside
for debt repayment. These figures are shown in Appendix A Table 1.

Page 88

Appendix E cont’d
3.

Actual Debt

3.1.

The Councils’ actual debt at 31 March 2019 was as follows:

3.1.1. Table 17: Total Debt
31.3.19
Budget

Total Debt

£m
113.880
133.830

Babergh District Council
Mid Suffolk District Council

31.3.19
Actual

Variance
Adverse /
(Favourable)
£m
£m
104.047
(9.833)
130.287
(3.543)

4.

Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement

4.1.

In order to ensure that over the medium-term debt will only be for a capital purpose,
the Councils should ensure that debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the
total of capital financing requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates of any
additional capital financing requirement for the current and next two financial years.
This is a key indicator of prudence.

4.2.

The total debt remained below the CFR during the forecast period.

4.2.1. Table 18: Debt and Capital Financing Requirement
Babergh District Council
Debt and CFR
Total Debt
Capital financing requirement
Headroom

31.3.19
Actual
£m
104.047
131.799
27.752

31.3.20
Estimate
£m
147.680
162.470
14.790

31.3.21
Estimate
£m
169.700
184.630
14.930

31.3.19
Actual
£m
130.287
154.255
23.968

31.3.20
Estimate
£m
166.120
188.150
22.030

31.3.21
Estimate
£m
187.580
208.620
21.040

Mid Suffolk District Council
Debt and CFR
Total Debt
Capital financing requirement
Headroom

5.

Operational Boundary for External Debt

5.1.

The operational boundary is based on the Councils’ estimate of the most likely (i.e.
prudent but not worst case) scenario for external debt. It links directly to the Councils’
estimates of capital expenditure, the capital financing requirement, and cash flow
requirements, and is a key management tool for in-year monitoring.

Page 89

Appendix E cont’d
5.1.1. Table 19: Operational Boundary and Total Debt
Operational Boundary and Total Debt
Babergh District Council
Mid Suffolk District Council

31.3.19
31.3.19
Boundary Actual Debt
£m
£m
133.000
104.047
156.000
130.287

Complied



6.

Authorised Limit for External Debt

6.1.

The authorised limit is the affordable borrowing limit determined in compliance with
the Local Government Act 2003. It is the maximum amount of debt that the Councils
can legally owe. The authorised limit provides headroom over and above the
operational boundary for unusual cash movements.

6.1.1. Table 20: Authorised Limit and Total Debt
31.3.19
31.3.19
Limit Actual Debt
£m
£m
148.000
104.047
171.000
130.287

Authorised Limit and Total Debt
Babergh District Council
Mid Suffolk District Council

Complied



7.

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream

7.1.

This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing
and proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget
required to meet financing costs, net of investment income (shown as a percentage).

7.2.

Table 21: Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream
Babergh District Council
Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue
Stream

31.3.19
Budget
%
(2.33)
18.00

General Fund
HRA

31.3.19
Actual

Variance
Adverse /
(Favourable)
%
%
(1.22)
1.11
17.55
(0.45)

Mid Suffolk District Council
Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue
Stream

31.3.19
Budget
%
(7.83)
19.59

General Fund
HRA

Page 90

31.3.19
Actual

Variance
Adverse /
(Favourable)
%
%
(2.93)
4.90
18.58
(1.01)

Appendix E cont’d
8.

Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code

8.1.

Both Councils adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s
“Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 2011 Edition” in
February 2012.

9.

HRA Limit on Indebtedness

9.1.

The limit imposed on the Council’s HRA borrowing by the Ministry for Housing,
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) has now been removed.

Page 91

Appendix F
Glossary of Terms
BPS

CDS

CFR
CIPFA
CPI
CCLA
DMADF
Funding
Circle
GDP
HRA

LIBID
LOBO

MHCLG
MPC

MRP
PWLB
UBS

Base Points. A unit of percentage measure equal to 0.01%. Basis points are
commonly used when discussing changes to interest rates, equity indices,
and fixed-income securities.
Credit Default Swap. In effect, insurance against non-payment. Through a
CDS, the buyer can mitigate the risk of their investment by shifting all or a
portion of that risk onto an insurance company or other CDS seller in
exchange for a periodic fee. In this way, the buyer of a credit default swap
receives credit protection, whereas the seller of the swap guarantees the
credit worthiness of the debt security.
Capital Financing Requirement. The underlying need to borrow to finance
capital expenditure.
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. This is the
leading professional accountancy body for public services.
Consumer Price Index. This measures changes in the price level of
consumer goods and services purchased by households.
Churches, Charities and Local Authority Property Fund
Debt Management Account Deposit Facility.
Accounts set up to lend money to local and national businesses at
competitive rates
Gross Domestic Product. This is the market value of all officially recognised
goods and services produced within a country in a given period of time.
Housing Revenue Account. The statutory account to which are charged the
revenue costs of providing, maintaining and managing Council dwellings.
These costs are financed by tenants’ rents.
London Interbank Bid Rate. The interest rate at which banks bid to take
short-term deposits from other banks in the London interbank market.
Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option. This is a loan where the lender has
certain dates when they can increase the interest rate payable and, if they
do, the Council has the option of accepting the new rate or repaying the
loan.
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government. This is a
ministerial department.
Monetary Policy Committee. A committee of the Bank of England which
decides the Bank of England’s Base Rate and other aspects of the
Government’s Monetary Policy.
Minimum Revenue Provision. Local authorities are required to make a
prudent provision for debt redemption on General Fund borrowing
Public Works Loan Board - offers loans to local authorities below market
rates.
UBS Multi Asset Income Fund (UK) – a pooled fund.

Page 92

Agenda Item 10
BABERGH AND MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCILS

TO:

Joint Audit and Standards
Committee

REPORT NUMBER:

JAC/19/5

DATE OF MEETING: 29 July 2019
OFFICER:

Claire Crascall, Audit &
Risk Management Services

KEY DECISION REF NO. N/A

END OF YEAR RISK POSITION STATEMENT AND PROGRESS REPORT AND REVISIONS
TO RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The attached report details movements of Significant Risks up to 31 st March 2019,
revisions to the Risk Management Strategy and the work undertaken around risk
management processes since April 2018.

2.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1

Risk management as an activity must accomplish the following tasks: identify and agree
objectives; identify risks and assess (i.e.: Treat, Transfer, Tolerate or Terminate the
risk); allocate risk owners; manage and control and monitoring and reporting.

3.

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That the contents of this report, supported by Appendix A, B and C, be noted.
REASON FOR DECISION

To provide assurances that risk management processes in place are robust and effective.
4.

KEY INFORMATION

4.1

This report details movements of Significant Risks up to 31st March 2019 (see Appendix
A) and the work undertaken around risk management processes since April 2018.

4.2

There are currently 27 risks on the register, of these risks; 16 are scored as medium, 9
as high and 2 as very high.

4.3

The risk register has been enhanced to now include Target Scores. These scores are
based on the successful completion of actions in the ‘Further Actions/Comments’
column as seen in Appendix A. The tables below demonstrate the movement of risk
scores from Original to Current and also detail the anticipated Target score derived as
above. Also, below is a brief update on outstanding actions for each risk, this should
be read in conjunction with the register and risk matrix (Appendix A and B).
Key:

Low score
(1-3)

Medium score
(4-6)

Page 93

High score
(8-9)

V. High score
(12-16)

Score increased

Score stayed the same

(since previous qtr)

(since previous qtr)

Score decreased
(since previous qtr)

Theme 1 – Housing Delivery

5.1

current scores
Original scores
Owner: AD - Planning and
Communities / AD - Housing

Objective 1: Housing Delivery

Impact / Consequence

1a

Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

1b, 1c,
1d, 1e

Noticeable
/Minor

2

1a

Minimal

1

1b
1

2

3

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

4

Highly
Probable
Probable

Probability / Likelihood

Current scores
Owner: AD - Planning and
Communities / AD - Housing

Impact / Consequence

Objective 1: Housing Delivery

Disaster

1c

4
1b, 1c,
1d, 1e

Bad/Serious 3
Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

1a

1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

3

4

Highly
Probable
Probable

1d

Probability / Likelihood

Target scores
Owner: AD - Planning and
Communities / AD - Housing

Impact / Consequence

Objective 1: Housing Delivery

Disaster
Bad/Seri
ous
Noticeab
le /Minor
Minimal

4
3

1b, 1c,
1d

2

1a, 1e

1e

1
1

2

3

4

Highly
Highly
Unlikely Probable
Unlikely
Probable

Risk: We may not have an up to date
understanding of housing need and
demand.
Further Action(s): Joint Local Plan for
consultation; Support for Local Housing
Needs Surveys.
Risk: We may not have a sufficient,
appropriate supply of land available
in the right
locations.
Further Action(s): Joint Local Plan for
consultation; Continue to endeavour to
unblock 'stalled sites' – with support
from Navigus Planning.
Risk: We may be unable to meet the
Governments new Housing Delivery
test.
Further
Action(s):
Developing
relationships with Developers; Working
on Infrastructure Strategy; Navigus
appointed to bring forward delivery.
Risk: Development may be stifled
and/or unsustainable
Further Action(s): Creating Local Plan
Infrastructure Delivery Plan; Working
closely with infrastructure providers;
Review of Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL).
Risk: There may be an insufficient
local supply to appropriate homes
for the ageing population.
Further Action(s): Implementation of
Homes and Housing Strategy Action
Plan; Development of Housing Action
Plan; Development of a BDC/MSDC
Older Person Strategy.

Probability / Likelihood

5.1.1 There have been no changes to current scores since the previous quarter
Page 94

Theme 2 – Business Growth and Increased Productivity

5.2

current scores
Original scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 2: Business Growth &
Increased Productivity
Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

2a

Owner: AD - Economic
Development & Regeneration

1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

2a, 2b, 2c

2d

3

4

2b

Highly
Probable
Probable

Probability / Likelihood

Current scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 2: Business Growth &
Increased Productivity
Disaster

Owner: AD - Economic
Development & Regeneration

2c

4
2a, 2b,
2c, 2d

Bad/Serious 3
Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1
1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

3

4

Highly
Probable
Probable

2d

Probability / Likelihood

Target scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 2: Business Growth &
Increased Productivity
Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

Owner: AD - Economic
Development & Regeneration

Risk: We may not understand the
needs and aspirations of our
businesses.
Further Action(s): Develop close
relationships with new Central Suffolk
Chamber of Commerce Board
Members; Establish Visitor Economy
Sub Group of Board.
Risk: We fail to deliver on the
aspirations articulated in the Vision
for Prosperity.
Further Action(s): Develop Future
High Street capital bids.
Risk: We fail to deliver on the
aspirations articulated in the Vision
for Prosperity.
Further
Action(s):
Establish
Stowmarket Steering Group to guide
Vision
of
Prosperity
Delivery
Programme; Develop Future High
Street capital bids.
Risk: We may not identify and
provide the right amount of
employment land and property in
the right places.
Further Action(s):
Complete
Stowmarket
Technology
Hub
feasibility study.

2a, 2b,
2c, 2d

1

2

3

4

Highly
Highly
Unlikely Probable
Unlikely
Probable
Probability / Likelihood

5.2.1 There have been no changes to current scores since the previous quarter.

Page 95

Theme 3 – Community Capacity

5.3

current scores
Original scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 3: Community Capacity
Building and Engagement
Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

3a

Owner: AD - Planning and
Communities

3a

1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

Risk: We may not be able to help
communities
become
more
sustainable.
Further
Action(s):
Formal
mechanisms agreed to consult on
Local Plan; Engagement with key
Town
Councils;
Direct
officer
engagement
with
communities;
Creation of Delivery Plan in
association with Community Strategy.

Probability / Likelihood

Current scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 3: Community Capacity
Building and Engagement
Disaster

Owner: AD - Planning and
Communities

4

Bad/Serious 3
Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

3a

1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

3

4

Highly
Probable
Probable

Probability / Likelihood

Target scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 3: Community Capacity
Building and Engagement
Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

Owner: AD - Planning and
Communities

3a

1

2

3

4

Highly
Highly
Unlikely Probable
Unlikely
Probable
Probability / Likelihood

5.3.1 There have been no changes to current scores since the previous quarter.

Page 96

Theme 4 – Assets and Investments

5.4

current scores
4a

Original scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 4: Assets and Investments
Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

Owner: AD - Assets and
Investments and AD - Housing
4a

4d
4b, 4c

4b

1
1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

3

4

Highly
Probable
Probable

Probability / Likelihood

Current scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 4: Assets and Investments
Disaster

Owner: AD - Assets and
Investments and AD - Housing

4c

4

Bad/Serious 3
Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

Risk: We may be unable to meet
the income projections for the
Councils.
Comments: Revised Business Plan
being prepared for approval.

4a, 4b

1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

4c, 4d

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

4d

Probability / Likelihood

Risk: The affordable homes
programme does not achieve the
forecast returns on investment.
Further Action(s): Agree project
plans for the site development of the
HQ sites.
Risk: We may not manage our
asset portfolio effectively.
Further
Action(s):
Asset
Management Plan being prepared;
Data project to cleanse data; Staff
recruitment exercise.
Risk:
Income and Capital
projections
and
economic
outcomes may not be delivered.
Further
Action(s)/Comments:
Developing Delivery Model.

Target scores

Impact / Consequence

Objective 4: Assets and Investments
Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

Owner: AD - Assets and
Investments and AD - Housing

4a, 4b,
4c, 4d

1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

Probability / Likelihood

5.4.1 One risk from theme 4 was removed in quarter 3. ‘We may fail to deliver the
financial projection set out within the BMBS business plan’ All associated
risks are now captured within the operational risk register and there is a revised
business plan. This Business Plan has now moved from profit to net cost of
service.
5.4.2 All current scores for the remaining risks, remain unchanged.
Page 97

5.5

Theme 5 – An Enabled and Efficient Organisation
current scores
Original scores

5a

Objective 5: An Enabled and Efficient
Organisation

Owner: Various
5c, 5d

Disaster

4

5j (MSDC)

5d (BDC),
5g

(MSDC)

5j (BDC)
Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1
1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

5a, 5b,
5e, 5i, 5k

5f, 5h

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

5b

Probability / Likelihood

Current scores
Objective 5: An Enabled and Efficient
Organisation
Disaster

4

Owner: Various

5c
5c, 5j (BDC) 5d (BDC),
5d (MSDC)
5g

5j (MSDC)

Bad/Serious 3
Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1
1

5b, 5e, 5i,
5k

5a, 5f,
5h

2

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

5d
MSDC

Probability / Likelihood

5d
Objective 5: An Enabled and Efficient
Organisation

Disaster

4

5j (MSDC)

Owner: Various

BDC
5d (MSDC),
5d (BDC),
5g, 5j
(BDC)

Bad/Serious

3

5a, 5b,
5c, 5i, 5f

Noticeable
/Minor

2

5e, 5k

Minimal

1
1

2

Highly
Unlikely
Unlikely

5h

5e

3

4

Probable

Highly
Probable

Probability / Likelihood

Page 98

Risk: We will not transform, and
become more efficient using IT.
Further Action(s):
HR Training
programme including IT skills; Training
underway for applications such as
PowerBI; Developing actions from
Partnership review; Developing ICT
Strategy with SCC IT.
Risk: Our data sources will not be
reliable.
Further Action(s): Data cleanse
ongoing; Joining up and reconciling
various databases; Plans to reconcile
HR database with Payroll system.
Risk: We may not deliver a robust
HRA business plan.
Further Action(s):
Review of
scenarios in light of removal of HRA
borrowing
cap;
Train
Housing
Management staff to embed new
business model. Modelling of Business
Plan to support council house build
programme.
Risk: We may be unable to respond
in a timely and effective way to
financial demands.
Further Action(s): Identifying options
over next 4 years under Review,
Remodel and Reinvent.
Risk: We will be unable to
successfully target and provide our
services.
Further Action(s): Prototyping other
forms of customer service; Undertaking
lean review across all services of
transactional processes.

current scores
Risk: The Councils may be perceived to be untrustworthy and have a poor
reputation.
Further Action(s): Values and Behaviours Natural Work Team ongoing; 4 year
rolling Member Development Programme roll out following elections May 2019;
Recruitment to Comms Team.

5f

Risk: The safety, health, welfare and wellbeing of individuals may be
compromised.
Further Action(s): Annual review of H&S Policy; Service Areas to complete Risk
Assessments; H&S Training programme; Review of IOSH Managing Safely course;
Lone working IT solution to be rolled out to Members; Review of H&S action plan;
Ending Violence at Work Charter standards to be met.

5g

Risk: Rent arrears will increase.
Further Action(s)/Comments: Developing Income Management Policy; Changes
to Universal Credits benefit; CAB taking responsibility from UC Financial Advisors;
Review of Income Management Strategy and its outcomes.

5h

Risk: There may be staff shortages within service areas
Further Action(s)/Comments: Developing People Strategy and action plan;
Revision of current Recruitment Policy and development of toolkit.

5i

5j

MSDC

Risk: The Councils may not be financially sustainable
Comments: Work on exploring alternative structural models for both Councils is
currently on hold.

5j

BDC

Risk: We may not be as efficient as we need to be, including the use of new
technologies
Further Action(s): Actions identified from recent staff survey; Other practices
planned e.g. daily meetings / target setting / target tracking / rewards and
recognition; Microsoft TEAM sites and mobile phone technology enabling remote
working and regular comms.

5k

5.5.1

There have been no changes to current scores since the previous quarter.

Page 99

Current scores for all Significant Risks have been plotted on the matrix below to provide
an overview of levels of risks across the five themes:

Impact / Consequence

5.6

Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

5c,
5j (BDC),
5d (MSDC)

5j (MSDC)

1b, 1c, 1d, 1e,
2a, 2b, 2c, 2d,
4a, 4b, 5b, 5e,
5i, 5k

5d (BDC), 5g

3a, 4c, 4d, 5a,
5f, 5h

1a

1

2

3

4

Highly Unlikely

Unlikely

Probable

Highly Probable

Probability / Likelihood

Operational Risks:
5.7

Risk registers are now in place for all service areas and the Risk Officer prompts the
update of these on a quarterly basis and oversees that this is done. More time has been
allocated to the Risk Officer helping ensure these registers are of a better, more
consistent quality going forward into 19/20. In addition, the introduction of a
performance measure relating to completion of operational registers is being devised
which will enable closer monitoring and reporting of this process on a monthly basis.

Project Risks:
5.8

Project risk registers are beginning to be created and provided to the Risk Officer for
uploading to the Connect site along with the Significant and Operational registers.
Project Managers and Corporate Managers will need to work together to highlight links
between Operational risks and Project risk registers. This will help further embed the
risk process at operational level and highlight areas where there is cross over into
different service areas.

Other work:
5.9

The Audit and Risk Management Services team continue to work with report authors
offering guidance and assistance with capturing and recording the appropriate risks and
scores in Committee/Cabinet reports. The creation and maintenance of the operational
and project risk registers assist with this process enabling officers to identify relevant
risks. Once reviewed, reports are ‘signed off’ before submission to ensure correct use
of risk wordings and scorings.

5.10

Following the May elections Member training on risk management was offered and
delivered to a number of Members with possible further sessions due to be held.

5.11 The annual review of the Risk Management Strategy has been undertaken and is
attached at Appendix C. Minor revisions have been made to the risk matrix which now
Page 100

includes more detailed descriptors for impact/consequence on the risk matrix, enabling
the risk owner to determine the appropriate impact rating. The example risk register at
the end of the document has also been updated to reflect the new format of reporting
which includes a target score. Finally, the wording in the risk appetite section of the
Strategy has slightly altered to acknowledge that due to the nature of services provided
‘one size’ does not fit all (Operational/Service Delivery Risk).
5.12 Lastly, plans have been made to slightly amend future risk reporting dates to ensure
they align with both performance and finance reports thus enabling Councillors to gain
the ‘full picture’ at the same meeting. The frequency of reporting remains unchanged.
6.

LINKS TO JOINT STRATEGIC PLAN

6.1

The Joint Strategic Plan and the Work Programme to deliver it covers all of the service
delivery and development activity planned to be undertaken across both Councils in the
next five years. The way we manage key corporate risk is therefore intrinsic to this
strategy and plan of work, and will be embedded in each key activity, project and
programme.

7.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

8.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1

There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.

9.

RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1

As set out in the body of this report.

10.

CONSULTATIONS

10.1

Risk owners were consulted on their relevant risks. This report and supporting
appendices have been approved by Senior Leadership Team and Cabinets in June.

11.

EQUALITY ANALYSIS
Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) not required.

12.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

12.1

N/A

13.

APPENDICES
Title

Location

(a) Significant Risk Register

Attached

(b) Risk Matrix

Attached

(c) Risk Management Strategy

Attached

Page 101

Authorship:
Claire Crascall
Audit and Risk Management Officer

Tel: 01449 724570
Email: claire.crascall@baberghmidsuffolk.gov.uk

Sponsor:
Emily Yule
Tel: 01449 724694
Assistant Director – Law & Governance Email: emily.yule@baberghmidsuffolk.gov.uk
& Monitoring Officer

Page 102

Appendix A
BABERGH AND MID SUFFOLK SIGNIFICANT RISK REGISTER - MARCH 2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

2

4

2

3

6

1 - HOUSING DELIVERY
CAUSE:

Having the right evidence base e.g.
making use of Suffolk Housing Need
Survey and existing Local Housing Need
Surveys.

If we do not have the
appropriate evidence base
RISK:
RISK
1a

We may not have an up to date
understanding of housing need
and demand

Assistant
Director Planning and
Communities

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

2

6

CONSEQUENCE(S):
We will not know if we are
addressing and delivering the
housing need and demand

Published the Strategic Housing Market
Assessment as part of evidence base for
Joint Local Plan. Assessment as part of
evidence base for Joint Local Plan.
Creating Joint Local Plan. Creating
Housing Strategy.

2

2

4

Stayed the
same

Creating Joint Local Plan - next
stage due for consultation.

June 2019

Page 103

Support for Local Housing Needs
Surveys (6 completed to date)

Ongoing

New Joint Local Plan with
comprehensive site allocations
currently being drafted - due for
consultation.

June 2019

Continue to endeavour to unblock
'stalled sites'. Navigus Planning are
engaged to help unblock stalled
sites.

May 2019

Housing Strategy created and approved
by Full Council.

CAUSE:
If planning permissions are not
granted for deliverable
schemes

Current local plans in place, call for sites
undertaken.

RISK:
RISK
1b

We may not have a sufficient,
appropriate supply of land
available in the right locations
CONSEQUENCE(S):
We may be unable to meet
housing needs in the district.
The reputation of the Councils
may be impacted

Assistant
Director Planning and
Communities

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

3

9

Current land supply for MSDC - 5.06
years, BDC - 6.7 years unblock 'stalled
sites'. Navigus Planning are engaged to
help unblock stalled sites. Current land
supply for MSDC - 6.5 years, BDC - 6.7
years

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

RISK
1c

Assistant
Director Planning and
Communities

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

CAUSE:
If development does not come
forward in a timely way or sites
become stalled
RISK:
We may be unable to meet the
Governments new Housing
Delivery test
CONSEQUENCE(S):
We may be unable to deliver
the right housing in the right
locations.

Current scores

I

S

L

I

3

9

2

3

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Have Infrastructure and Delivery Officer
in post.
3

Further Actions / Comments

6

Approach to unblocking stalled sites
which has been agreed by Cabinet.

Stayed the
same

Develop relationships with
Developers e.g. client side panel
hosted by Development
Winter 19/20
Management. Working on
Infrastructure Strategy and working
Suffolk-wide to understand
infrastructure funding and delivery.
Additional resources provided in
Mid Suffolk to bring forward
delivery - Navigus Planning engaged
to undertake this.

Unable to unlock future
housing growth.

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

2

3

6

May 2019

Housing targets not met,
reputation of the Councils may
be impacted
CAUSE:
Page 104

If we do not secure investment
in infrastructure
Adopted Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL) and CIL expenditure framework
adopted by Council.

RISK:
Development may be stifled
and/or unsustainable
RISK
1d

CONSEQUENCE(S):
Housing targets not met.
Reputation of the Councils may
be impacted.
Quality of life for residents
could be affected.

Assistant
Director Planning and
Communities

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

3

9

Secured investment on infrastructure via
planning process (e.g. S106).
New Anglia LEP Economic Strategy,
endorsed by Cabinet in October 2017.
Suffolk Framework for Inclusive Growth
endorsed by Cabinet in May 2018.

Access to services may be
restricted.
Ongoing

Creating Local Plan Infrastructure
Delivery Plan.

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Currently working closely with
infrastructure providers to provide
evidence to inform Local Plan
allocations.
Review of Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

June 2019

Ongoing

June 2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

2

4

2

3

6

CAUSE:
If consideration is not given to
the demographics of the
districts in relation to housing
needs

Implement of Homes and Housing
Strategy Action Plan - including
Mar 19 to April
actions relevant to older person
2023
housing

RISK:
There may be an insufficient
local supply of appropriate
homes for the ageing
population
RISK
1e

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Assistant
Director Housing

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

3

9

Housing targets not met.
Our communities may
experience a reduced quality of
life.

Creating BMSDC Housing Strategy,
Creating Joint Local Plan, Health and
Housing Charter, Suffolk Older Persons
Housing Strategy, Housing strand being
developed for Suffolk Growth
Programme Board

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Housing Strategy signed off

Page 105

There will be cost implications
to the public sector.

Development of Local Plan to be
discussed at Cabinet

June 2019

Development of a Housing Action
Plan led by the Suffolk Housing
Board and agreed by Suffolk Chief
Officer Group

Ongoing

Development of a Babergh/Mid
Suffolk Older Person Strategy

2019/2021

There will be a reduced
turnover in housing stock
2 - BUSINESS GROWTH AND INCREASED PRODUCTIVITY
CAUSE:
Lack of engagement with
businesses and failure to
undertake data gathering and
analysis
RISK:

RISK
2a

We may not understand the
needs and aspirations of our
businesses

CONSEQUENCE(S):
We will be unable to focus our
interventions and resources in
a way which will provide the
right support

Assistant
Director Economy and
Regeneration

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

3

9

Implementing a two-tier method of
Business Relationship Management
/Linking our business data and intel into
FAME CRM system facilitated by NALEP/
Increasing our direct business
engagement with key sectors through
our Chambers of Commerce, Growth Hub
and other business support
organisations/networking opportunities
including joint lobbying on significant
issues such as major infrastructure and
national Industry Strategy / We have
increased evidence based including
Visitor Economy 'Volume and Value'
studies and the draft NLP Ipswich Area
Economic Sector needs data now in
which is informing our Economic
Development Strategy / Economic Open
for Business Strategy has now been
adopted and published / Central Suffolk
Chamber of Commerce launched

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Develop close working relationships
with new Central Suffolk Chamber
of Commerce Board Members

Ongoing

Establish Visitor Economy Sub
Group of Board

September
2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

S

2

3

6

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

2

3

6

CAUSE:

9

1.) Continued evolution of a delivery
programme and actions/interventions to
deliver growth projects
2.) Regeneration activities through
investment programme, collaborations
and enabling communities e.g.
Gainsborough House, Kingfisher Leisure
Centre, Customer Service Centre
3.) Established inter-authority officer
level working group to coordinate Vision
for Prosperity Delivery Programme
4.) Future High Street funding bid
approved
5.) Re-established Sudbury Steering
Group to guide the Vision of Prosperity
Delivery Programme

9

1.) Continued evolution of a delivery
programme and actions/interventions to
deliver growth projects
2.) Regeneration activities through
investment programme, collaborations
and enabling communities e.g.
Gainsborough House, Kingfisher Leisure
Centre, Customer Service Centre
3.) Established inter-authority officer
level working group to coordinate Vision
for Prosperity Delivery Programme.
4.) Investigated establishment of
Stowmarket Steering Group to guide the
Vision of Prosperity Delivery Programme.
5.) Future High Streets funding bid
approved

Failure to engage with the
communities of Sudbury
Failure to secure necessary
investment
RISK:
RISK
2b

We fail to deliver on the
aspirations articulated in the
Vision for Prosperity

Assistant
Director Economy and
Regeneration

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

3

CONSEQUENCE(S):
We may not maximise the
economic potential of our
largest market towns.

Stayed the
same

Develop Future High Street capital
bids

Summer 2020

Page 106

CAUSE:
Failure to engage with the
communities of Stowmarket
Failure to secure necessary
investment
RISK:
RISK
2c

We fail to deliver on the
aspirations articulated in the
Vision for Prosperity
CONSEQUENCE(S):

We may not maximise the
economic potential of our
largest market towns.

Assistant
Director Economy and
Regeneration

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

3

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Establish Stowmarket Steering
Group to guide Vision of Prosperity
Delivery Programme.
Develop Future High Street capital
bids.

June 2019

Summer 2020

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

I

S

CAUSE:
Lack of engagement with land
owners, developers, investors
and businesses
RISK:

RISK
2d

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Assistant
Director Economy and
Regeneration

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

We may not identify and
provide the right amount of
employment land and property
in the right places

Current scores

4

3

12

Our current businesses may
not be able to remain in our
districts and we may not attract
new businesses

1.) The development of our Joint Local
Plan
2.) Delivery of the Economic Open for
Business Strategy
3.) Provision of officer support and
expertise to ensure Space to Innovate
and Food Enterprise Zones are delivered
within timescales
4.) Our Open for Business engagement
approach including with investors,
developers and businesses (existing and
new) facilitating retention and growth
within the district. 5.) Planning
permission granted for Gateway 14
(Stowmarket) and for infrastructure and
first occupier at Sproughton.

L

I

S

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

Complete Stowmarket Technology
Hub feasibility study

June 2019

Joint Scrutiny Committee review
undertaken.

Formal mechanisms agreed to
consult on the joint Local Plan consultation due.

June 2019

Town and Parish Council Liaison
meetings in place and frequency
increased.

Engagement with key Town
Councils by Strategic Directors.

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

2

3

6

3 - COMMUNITY CAPACITY BUILDING AND ENGAGEMENT
Page 107

CAUSE:
Officer capacity added to help
communities deliver Neighbourhood
Plans.

Lack of effective engagement
with communities to
understand their future needs
RISK:

RISK
3a

We may not be able to help
communities become more
sustainable
CONSEQUENCE(S):
Increased demand on services
Reduced quality of life
Reduced access to services

Assistant
Director Planning and
Communities

Cabinet
Members for
Communities

3

3

9

3

3

9

Stayed the
same

ongoing

Tenant involvement strategy creates a
full menu of involvement options.

Officer employed to engage directly
with communities in the Council's
own development.

ongoing

Statement of Community Involvement:
Planning Matters approved by Full
Council.

Create Delivery Plan in association
with Community Strategy

September
2019

Community Strategy adopted by full
Council.

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

S

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

4 - ASSETS AND INVESTMENTS
CAUSE:
If the Capital Investment Fund
(CIF) does not generate
forecast investment returns
RISK:
RISK
4a

We may be unable to meet the
income projections for the
Councils

Assistant
Director Assets and
Investments

Cabinet
Members for
Assets and
Investment

2

4

8

Phase 1 CIFCO has now invested 100% of
the fund in line with its business plan.

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Revised business plan is being
prepared for approval.

March 2021

2

3

6

12

1) Project team in place to ensure early
liaison with planners and adequate preapp advise is sought
2) Iceni engaged to act as development
partner with strong track record /
Judicious use of consultancy support
resource
3) Development Partner and Project
team in place including cost and viability
consultants included in project team / A
higher percentage of open market sale
homes are included in the programme /
Ability to 'couple' schemes within the
programme resulting in a policy
compliant position across all schemes
even though individual schemes might
fall short
4) Local authorities with revised
indebtedness determinations will be able
to draw down additional borrowing from
April 2019 onwards.
5.) Mid Suffolk Growth and Babergh
Growth Limited established to aid
delivery of housing within our region.

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Agree project plans for the
development of the HQ sites

September
2019

2

3

6

CONSEQUENCE(S):
There may be a drain on
General Fund resources
CAUSE:

Page 108

Lack of specialist advice in the
fields of delivery, design and
engagement with planners

RISK:

RISK
4b

The affordable homes
programme does not achieve
the forecast returns on
investment

CONSEQUENCE(S):

There may be a drain on the
Housing Revenue Account and
General Fund resources

Assistant
Director Assets and
Investments

Cabinet
Members for
Housing

4

3

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

RISK
4c

We may not manage our asset
portfolio effectively
CONSEQUENCE(S):

Assistant
Director Assets and
Investments

Cabinet
Members for
Assets and
Investment

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

CAUSE:
Lack of understanding of the
capabilities of our assets and
how to operate them
RISK:

Current scores

4

I

3

S

12

L

1.) Dedicated Strategic Asset expertise
within the Councils staff teams to
maximise opportunities
2.) Partnership with SCC and IBC in One
Public Estate Board Programme

I

Asset Management Plan is being
prepared.
3

3

Page 109

RISK
4d

Income and Capital projections
and economic outcomes may
not be delivered
CONSEQUENCE(S):
Land remains under-utilised

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

9

Stayed the
same

This may result in lost
opportunity, loss of capital
value, increased revenue costs
and loss of public confidence
CAUSE:
Gateway 14 Ltd fails to bring
forward the development of
site
RISK:

Further Actions / Comments

Data project to cleanse data and
sort into appropriate database.

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

2

3

6

September
2019

December
2019

Staff recruitment exercise
December
2019

Assistant
Director Assets and
Investments

Cabinet
Members for
Assets and
Investment

3

4

12

Appropriate treasury management advice
being applied. Gateway 14 Ltd has
engaged a knowledgeable and
experienced Board of Director to enable
the delivery of the scheme and is being
supported by market leading experts in
preparing a delivery strategy for the site.

3

3

9

Stayed the
same

Developing Delivery Model

July 2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

5 - AN ENABLED AND EFFICIENT ORGANISATION
CAUSE:
If we do not keep abreast of
new information technology,
developments and
opportunities, and improve our
skills.

A new IT Board has been set up to
monitor a range of IT projects including
some managed by SCC. Regular
meetings take place between us and SCC
to further develop relationships and
deliver upon requirements.

RISK:
RISK
5a

We will not transform, and
become more efficient using IT.

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Page 110

We will be unable to provide
the services people need in the
most appropriate way.

Assistant
Director Customer
Services

Cabinet
Members for
Organisational
Delivery

3

3

9

A refreshed Customer Access Strategy
identified new technological
developments.
An IT review has been carried out by
Foresight

3

3

9

Stayed the
same

A training programme is being
developed by HR which will include
IT skills.

TBC

Specific and focused training is
underway for software applications
and tools such as PowerBI.

June 2019

Working on plan to take forward
actions from partnership review.
In conjunction with SCC IT we are
developing our ICT Strategy based
on our needs of our Customer
Access Strategy. Next phase is to
work with our service areas to
understand how we can develop
and deliver our services more
effectively in a digital age.

November
2019

June 2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

2

3

6

CAUSE:
We are continuing to cleanse the
enforcement data and running
approximate 2 months behind - this
is due to two initial members of the
5 cleansing team members finding
other jobs. We have decided to let
the project slip by two months,
rather than re-hire and spend time
training new staff members up
again (which balances out time
wise).

If we do not hold up to date,
accurate and clean data.

We are setting clear data standards as
part of General Data Protection
Regulations and are currently
undertaking a review to ensure that all
staff have competed the GDPR training.

RISK:

RISK
5b

Our data sources will not be
reliable.

Assistant
Director Customer
Services

Cabinet
Members for
Organisational
Delivery

3

3

9

CONSEQUENCE(S):
Page 111

The Information Asset Register has now
been completed and provides a clear
understanding of all the data sets we
own, who the information asset owner is
and their retention periods. This will be
reviewed annually.

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

We will not have a strong
evidence base to support
organisational decisions and
assumptions.

Further plans in place to reconcile
the HR database with the Payroll
system to look for any potential
errors.

CAUSE:
If there is no understanding,
collective responsibility and
ownership by the Housing
Management Team of the HRA
business plan
RISK:
RISK
5c

We may not deliver a robust
HRA business plan
CONSEQUENCE(S):
We may be unable to meet our
stated ambitions and
responsibilities for our
residents

Power BI has enabled us to join up
and reconciling various databases
to enable us to make better
decisions. For example: We are
looking at sickness records, verify
who has done the GDPR training,
how often mobile phones are used,
how many people use the office
space on Gold and Lime, Printer
usage, BT landline usage from
external properties.

Assistant
Director Housing

Cabinet
Members for
Housing

3

4

12

Data quality issues to be addressed /
HMT to undertake quarterly reviews of
the HRA 30 year business plan to ensure
it is realistic and relevant / Develop an
understanding of the HRA Finance
Modelling software within the HRA
Finance Team and Corporate Managers
through examination and training /
Develop and maintain a set of scenario
tests and stress tests / Review the
structure and links between Asset
Management, Property Services, Building
Services and Finance / Corporate Finance
Team taken on responsibility / New
business model implemented / Quarterly
budget monitoring with Corporate
Managers taking responsibility

Review of scenarios in light of the
removal of the HRA borrowing cap

2

4

8

Stayed the
same

Train Housing Management staff to
embed new business model
Modelling of Business Plan to
incorporate additional
borrowing/use of reserves to
support council house build
programme

August 2019

September
2019

June 2019

September
2019
August 2019

August 2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores
Mitigation to date

L

I

S

L

I

MSDC

CAUSE:

If we do not understand our
financial position

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

3

4

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

MSDC

12

2

4

8

Use of one-off funding to change the
business model and support functions
during change

I

S

MSDC

Stayed the
same

2

4

8

RISK:
BDC
RISK
5d

We may be unable to respond
in a timely and effective way to
financial demands

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Assistant
Director Corporate
Resources

Cabinet
Members for
Finance

4

4

16

Engagement of councillors to understand
options
19/20 budget set in February 19

Page 112

We may be unable to deliver
the entirety of the Joint
Strategic Plan

BDC

Modelling and analysis to understand
impact (e.g. Capital Investment Fund),
Identifying income generating activities
to replace government grants (e.g. PV
panels, rental income from properties)

BDC
Identifying options over next 4
years under 3 categories of; review,
remodel and reinvent. Aim to have
4 year costed action plan rather
than looking at just the next year.

3

4

12

Stayed the
same

Jun-19

2

4

8

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

2

4

CAUSE:

We are prototyping other forms of
customer service to ensure
geographical coverage i.e. using
pop-up or self-service kiosks in
libraries and we will be reviewing
the aesthetics of our Stowmarket
customer access point.

If we don’t provide effective
public access arrangements

RISK:

RISK
5e

We will be unable to
successfully target and provide
our services.

Page 113

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Our customers will not receive
the service and support that
they need.

Assistant
Director Customer
Services

Cabinet
Members for
Organisational
Delivery

3

3

9

We have a refreshed Customer Access
Strategy which will form the basis to
scope a range of customer centred
projects to improve our public access
arrangements.

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

We will undertake a lean review
across all services to better
understand the number of
transactions we process, how long
they take and how we process
them either over the phone, face to
face or online, so that we can make
improvements where needed. We
are seeking to understand our
online user journeys on our website
so as to ensure it is easy to use and
transactions are clear and concise.
Further work will be undertaken to
encourage our customers to use
our online services where possible.

June 2019

March 2020

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

I

S

CAUSE:

RISK:

I

Chief Executive

Cabinet
Members for
Assets &
Investments

4

3

12

To ensure more effective communication
and engagement a dedicated Strategic
Communications Lead Officer has been
recruited, Communications Strategy is
being put in place, which will include proactive engagement through all channels
e.g. social media and dedicated training
and support for media management.

Page 114

Strengthened Parish / Town Council
relationships have been put in place
through dedicated officer liaison links,
regular clerks meetings and refreshed
Parish Liaison Meetings.
Council will adopted the constitutional
amendments .

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

L

I

S

2

3

6

June 2019
The Values and Behaviours Natural
Work Team is ongoing and will
overlap with the equivalent
Rewards & Recognition work.

Work has commenced to introduce a
thorough and integrated Member
Development, Senior Management and
Leadership programmes.

The Councils may be perceived
to be untrustworthy and have a
poor reputation

This may prevent us from
entering into positive
partnerships, secure funding
and ultimately may affect our
ability to work with partners,
businesses and key
stakeholders in achieving the
strategic priorities.

L

Further constitution reviews are
underway of governance systems and
processes to optimise openness,
transparency and engagement in all our
approaches .

If we do not maintain the trust
of our stakeholders and
promote our public image and
reputation

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

RISK 5f

Current scores

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

3

3

9

Stayed the
same

The 4 year rolling Member
Development Programme will roll
out in full following elections in
May 2019.
Recruitment to the one remaining
position within the
Communications Team.
The Councils approach to
engagement will be finalised upon
completion for the Communities
Strategy consultation and adoption
of that strategy.

May 2019

September
2019

September
2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Annual Review of H&S Policy
Development of a H&S Training
programme: IOSH Managing Safely
course has been rolled out for Managers
and Team Leaders

If we fail to protect our
employees and other persons
to whom we owe a duty of care

A lone working IT solution has been
rolled out to relevant staff

The safety, health, welfare and
wellbeing of individuals may be
compromised
Page 115

Chief Executive

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Cabinet
Members for
Finance

The creation of a Corporate Manager
post for Health and Safety to ensure
focus and a consistent approach
throughout the organisation
4

4

16

An organisational H&S action plan has
been developed with status monitored
by the H&S Board
A H&S working group meets with
representation from high risk services to
discuss and develop focus and strategy

Injury or harm to employees.
Fines from the HSE.
Reputational impact to the
Councils

Development of wellbeing resources,
participation in the national Mental
Health Awareness week (14-20 May) and
introduction of Mental Health First
Aiders
The Stress Management Toolkit has been
completed and was launched on the 1st
of this month.

L

I

S

2

4

8

April 2019

Generic Risk Assessments
completed, Service areas to
complete theirs as part of the
Service Plan round for 2019/20.

A comprehensive H&S Training Matrix
has been developed and budgeted for all
staff and is being implemented

RISK:

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

CAUSE:

RISK 5g

Further Actions / Comments

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

3

4

12

Stayed the
same

H&S Training programme: matrix
for Health and Safety and
Loneworking created. Most
managers having completed the
IOSH Managing Safety training and
remaining Corporate Managers will
be scheduled to do this - this year.
In addition there have been some
Managing Personal Safety Courses
and all managers with staff who
work alone/remotely will complete
this during this year.
Some trials of courses have been
undertaken but not published;
some managers have completed
IOSH Managing Safely course, a
review required at H&S Board
Lone working IT solution to be
rolled out to Members

March 2020

August 2020

April 2019

Review of H&S action plan
Both Councils have committed to
The Ending Violence at Work
Charter and have 12 months to
meet the standards.

May 2019

April 2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Income Management Policy
currently in development

If tenants in receipt of
Universal Credits do not utilise
this benefit for payment of
their housing rent
RISK:
Rent arrears will increase
CONSEQUENCE(S):
Resulting in increased costs in
rent collection, enforcement
action and possible tenant
evictions

Assistant
Director Housing

Cabinet
Members for
Housing

4

3

12

Working with DWP and stakeholders to
increase awareness / stakeholder events
/ Increased bad debt provision by 0.25%
/ Income Strategy / Income Management
Policy / Forming relationships and
partnerships - working with the Job
Centre / Looking and learning best
practice from others / Training and
awareness for staff / Increasing the
capacity of Tenancy Support Officers /
Affordability assessment tools / Income
Strategy review undertaken.

Government slowed down
Universal Credits (UC) roll out /
Changes to UC benefit

3

3

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

CAUSE:

RISK 5h

Further Actions / Comments

9

Stayed the
same

CAB taking responsibility from UC
Financial Advisor
Affect monitoring of rent arrears
cases by staff and effective
performance monitoring by
managers
Review of Income Management
Strategy and its outcomes

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

3

3

9

June/July 2019

Ongoing

April 2019

Ongoing

May 2019

Page 116

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

I

S

If we experience challenges
with staff recruitment and
retention

RISK:
Assistant
Director Corporate
Resources

Cabinet
Members for
Finance

3

3

9

Page 117

This may start to impact on
performance, our income, the
costs of potential legal
challenge, government
scrutiny, staff morale and
public confidence.

CONSEQUENCE(S):
We may be unable to deliver
key services in the future

A report to Babergh Overview and
Scrutiny Committee in January 2019
showed that the number of people
leaving April-September 2018 was 20,
compared to 122 in the whole of
2017/18.

2

3

S

L

I

S

6

Stayed the
same

In process of developing a People
Strategy and action plan that will
include elements aimed at
improving recruitment and
retention. Unable to give clear
timescale until the new Corporate
Manager HR & OD is recruited.

TBC
(new post)

2

3

6

Work is underway to revise the
current recruitment policy and to
develop a toolkit to sit alongside
the policy to improve the
recruitment experience.

MSDC

If the Councils do not adopt a
new delivery model

The Councils may not be
financially sustainable

Planned
completion
date(s)

The Councils adopted the Violence at
Work Charter in March 2019.

CAUSE:

RISK:

I

Key policies and toolkits have been
developed or reviewed to give greater
clarity around how staff will be managed.
These are sickness absence,
organisational change and mental health
and wellbeing as well as a new
behavioural framework linked to the
Values.

CONSEQUENCE(S):

RISK
5j

L

Further Actions / Comments

Workforce Strategy in development,
Suffolk-wide People Strategy in place,
memorandum of understanding in place
between partner agencies is
standardising a new approach to appoint
and retain skilled staff

CAUSE:

There may be staff shortages
within service areas

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

RISK 5i

Current scores

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

2

Assistant
Director - Law &
Governance

4

MSDC

8

BDC

Leaders of the
Councils

3

4

12

The Cabinets have committed to
exploring alternative forms of council
structure which could potentially
generate financial savings and
efficiencies / the councils have an
integrated workforce and joint strategic
plan / the councils have a joint medium
term financial strategy

1

4

4

MSDC

Stayed the
same
Work on exploring alternative
structural models for the Councils is
currently on hold.

BDC

2

4

8

1

Stayed the
same

4

4

BDC

N/A

2

4

8

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

2

4

CAUSE:

If we fail to take advantage of
the benefits of working in an
agile environment.

RISK:

RISK 5k We may not be as efficient as
we need to be, including the
use of new technologies.

CONSEQUENCE(S):
Valuable time and effort will be
wasted with a de-motivated
workforce.

Assistant
Director Customer
Services

Cabinet
Members for
Organisational
Delivery

3

3

9

A People Strategy is under development
underpinned by a significant piece of
work with staff to develop our values and
behaviours. Corporate managers will
receive support from HR to manage staff
remotely and a range of tools are
available such as Skyguard. Staff now
use a range of technologies such a Skype
(voice, video technology and screen
sharing)

A recent staff survey identified a
number of actions with regard to
agile working and these are
underway, with a repeat of the
survey in the future.

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Other practices are in planned such
as daily meetings, target setting,
target tracking, rewards and
recognition.
Microsoft team sites, mobile phone
technology etc all enabling remote
working and regular
communications.

June 2019

December
2019

June 2019

Page 118

Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Impact

Impact / Consequence

Appendix B

1

Minimal

4 (Medium)

8 (High)

12
(Very High)

16
(Very High)

3 (Low)

6 (Medium)

9 (High)

12
(Very High)

2 (Low)

4 (Medium)

6 (Medium)

8 (High)

1 (Low)

2 (Low)

3 (Low)

4 (Medium)

1

2

3

4

Highly
Unlikely

Unlikely

Probable

Highly
Probable

Probability / Likelihood
Likelihood

1

Highly Unlikely

2

Unlikely

3

Probable

4

Highly probable

Less than 25%
Has never occurred before
Would only happen in exceptional circumstances
26% - 50%
Not expected to occur but potential exists
Has occurred once in the last ten years
51% - 75%
May occur occasionally
Has occurred within the last 5 years
Reasonable chance of occurring again
Over 76%
Expected to occur
Occurs regularly or frequently

Impact / Consequence
Finance

Compliance

Safety

Service Delivery

Reputation
No
noticeable
media
interest
Local media
coverage

1

Minimal

Minor loss
<£5,000

Small, single
noncompliance

No harm to
persons
/community

Very minor
disruption (less
than 1 day)

2

Noticeable
/ Minor

Moderate
loss
£5,001 –
£50,000

Potential for illhealth, injury
or equipment
damage

Some service
disruption,
(more than one
day)

3

Bad /
Serious

Significant
loss
£50,101 –
£250,000

Sustained
single or few
short-term
noncompliance
Multiple
sustained
noncompliance

Potential for
serious harm
or injury (nonlife
threatening)

Critical service
disruption
(statutory
services not
delivered)

Adverse
local/national
media
coverage

4

Disaster

Substantial
loss
>£250,000

Significant
noncompliance Litigation,
custodial
sentence

Fatality, major
injury (life
threatening or
life impacting)

Systemic or
sustained
service loss

Adverse/
prolonged
national
media
coverage

Red text = Health and Safety Descriptors
Page 119

*

This page is intentionally left blank

RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

1|Page
Page 121

Document Control
Reference
Risk Management Strategy
Date
January 2016
Author
Corporate Manager – Internal Audit and the Lead for Risk
Emily Yule – Assistant Director – Law & Governance and
Monitoring Officer (sponsor)
Approved by
Management Board and Joint Audit and Standards
Committee
Version History
Date
January 2016
May 2016
December 2017
January 2019

Version Number Revision Notes
V0.1
First Draft of revised Strategy
V0.2
Second Draft of Strategy following
Administration meetings
V0.3
Update of Roles and Responsibilities
following introduction of Cabinet model
V0.4
Recognition of the corporate ‘Values’
within the Councils’ Risk Appetite.

2|Page
Page 122

CONTENTS
1

Policy Statement

2

Statement of Commitment

3

Our Approach

4

Risk Management Principles

5

Risk Appetite Statement

6

Risk Management Levels

7

Escalation of Risks

8

Risk Management Process

9

Risk Matrix

10

Risk Register System

11

Roles and Responsibilities

12

Guidance, Education and Training

13

Summary

14

Review

3|Page
Page 123

1. Policy Statement

The effect of uncertainty on an organisation’s objectives is risk. Risk management is
the process of ascertaining what might go wrong, what the potential consequences
may be, what could trigger the occurrence and deciding how best to minimise the risk
materialising. If it does go wrong, as some things inevitably will, proactive risk
management will ensure the impact is kept to a minimum.
To structure and formalise the risk management arrangements across all functions,
Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils have developed a systematic and logical
process of managing business risk within a comprehensive framework to ensure it is
managed effectively, efficiently and coherently across the organisation. The Councils’
adopted approach sets out the methodology for identification, evaluation and control
of risk to ensure the continued financial and organisational well-being of the Councils.
Council wide ownership and accountability for managing risk is critical to the success
of the organisation.
When implemented and maintained, the effective management of risk enables the
organisation to:


Increase the likelihood of achieving its goals and delivering outcomes



Improve the identification of opportunities and threats



Improve governance, stakeholder confidence and trust



Establish a reliable basis for decision making and planning



Effectively allocate and use resources for risk treatment



Improve organisational resilience.

It is the role of the Audit and Risk Management Services team within the Councils to
provide support, guidance, professional advice and the necessary tools and
techniques to enable the organisations to take control of the risks that threaten
delivery. The role of the team is also to provide a level of challenge and scrutiny to the
risk owners. The work of the team will be directed to effect the achievement of the
following risk management objectives:


Align the organisations culture with the risk management framework



Integrate and embed the risk management framework across the organisations



Enable the organisations to recognise and manage the risks it faces



Minimise the cost of risk



Anticipate and respond to emerging risks, internal & external influences and a
changing operating environment



Implement a consistent method of measuring risk.

4|Page
Page 124

2. Statement of Commitment

Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils are committed to adopting good practice in
its management of risk to ensure retained risk is of an acceptable and tolerable level
in order to maximise opportunities and demonstrate it has made full consideration of
the implications of risk to the delivery and achievement of outcomes.
The Councils are clear that the responsibility for managing risk belongs to everyone
and that there needs to be an appropriate level of understanding of the nature of risk
by all stakeholders.
As a corporate body, the Councils are obligated to protect its material assets and to
minimise its losses and liabilities. It recognises the need to equip its workforce with the
skills and expertise to manage risk on its behalf and provides the necessary resources
to ensure this can be delivered.
The Councils’ risk management objectives are a long term commitment, inherent to
good governance practices and fully supported by senior management and its
Councillors.
John Snell – Corporate Manager – Internal Audit
Emily Yule – Assistant Director Law & Governance
and Monitoring Officer - Sponsor

3. Our Approach

For risk management to be successful, it is imperative that there is a single approach
for the management of business risk, adopted through all levels of the organisation.
This risk management strategy is one part of the overall risk framework, the essential
elements of which include:





Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy (including governance and
accountabilities)
Risk Management Methodology, Tools and Guidance to support the methodology
and Training
Risk Management Reporting
Risk Assurance Statement.

Our approach is that the discipline of effectively managing risk is integrated throughout
the organisation and involves all key stakeholders including - but not limited to officers,
senior management, Councillors, partners and suppliers.
5|Page
Page 125

Primarily Councillors and senior management will be focussed on the strategic and
business critical risks that could impact on the achievement of objectives or successful
delivery of outcomes. More detailed business operations risks will be the primary
concern of services and functions, where managers will be controlling and monitoring
their risks and escalating these to a strategic level if they are no longer containable
and manageable at a functional level.
Identified key risks and mitigations are managed through the Councils’ Significant Risk
Register and is regularly discussed, reviewed and updated. Frequent risk reporting
takes place across all levels of the organisation. The governance and reporting
arrangements which set out what risk information is reported to which audience and
when is covered in more detail in section 11 of this Strategy.
It is the role of the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit and his team to develop and
set the framework for the organisation to follow; ensuring that this adds value to the
organisation.
Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Council’s risk management framework is our end to
end process of managing risk
Objective Setting
Risk
Management
Policy
Statement
and Strategy

Process/Delivery
Risk
Management
Methodology,
Tools,
Guidance,
and Training

Governance
Risk
Governance &
Reporting
Framework and
Accountabilities

Assurance
Risk
Assurance
Statement

4. Risk Management Principles

At Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils, we are committed to ensuring risk
management is embedded across the whole organisation. To do this, we ensure we
adhere to the spirit of the principles of risk management as set within the OGC’s
Management of Risk Framework and in accordance with the International Risk
Management Standard (ISO:31000).

6|Page
Page 126

Enbles
Achievement
of our Goals
Facilitates
Continual
Improvement

Fits the
Context

Risk
Management
Principles
Informs
Decision
Making

Engages
Stakeholders

Provides
Clear
Guidance

5. Risk Appetite Statement

Risk Appetite is the level of risk we are prepared to tolerate or accept in the pursuit of
our strategic outcomes. Our aim is to consider all options to respond to risk
appropriately and make informed decisions that are most likely to result in successful
delivery whilst also providing an acceptable level of value for money.
The acceptance of risk is subject to ensuring that all potential benefits and risks are
fully understood and that appropriate measures to mitigate risk are established before
decisions are made. We recognise that the appetite for risk will vary according to the
activity undertaken and the ability to exercise controls and hence different appetites
and tolerances to risk apply.
Underpinning our approach to risk management are the Councils’ Values. Having our
values will help establish trust, understanding and behaviour change from our
residents, and enable us to be able to make decisions, confident in the knowledge that
we have the support of the wider organisation. It is critical therefore that our values
now become real for us all through everything we do, how we do it and our wider
behaviours.
The Councils’ appetite for risk reflects the different types of risk that could impact on
the Councils’ ability to meet its statutory requirements and strategic outcomes,
including likely reputational impact and potential financial implications and are
described in more detail below.
7|Page
Page 127

These risks can be defined as follows:
Strategic Transformational Risk
This is the risk arising from the possible consequences of strategic decisions taken by
the Councils, or the risk of a failure to achieve our strategic vision. The environment
the Councils’ work in is continually changing through both its internal operations and
the services it provides. The Councils recognise that this may require increased levels
of risk and is comfortable accepting the risk subject to always ensuring that risks are
appropriately managed.
Operational/Service Delivery Risk
This is the risk arising from the nature of the Councils’ business and operations, for
example, the risk of a failure to deliver statutory or other services to residents, to fail
to provide required quality in services, or to provide appropriate services in the event
of an emergency and as such accepts a high level of risk arising. In terms of risk
appetite it is acknowledged that due to the nature of services provided ‘one size’ does
not fit and therefore each service area would determine their level of risk appetite
based on a risk-reward basis.
People and Culture Risk
The Councils’ recognise that its staff are critical to achieving its objectives and
therefore the support and development of staff is key to making the Councils’ an
inspiring and safe place to work. It has a high appetite for decisions that involve staffing
or culture to support transformational change and ensure the Councils’ are continually
improving.
Financial Risk
This is the risk of changes in the Councils’ financial condition and circumstances, such
as for example, in its balance sheet assets and liabilities, its funding, income and
spending levels. The Councils’ aims are to maintain its long term financial viability and
its overall financial strength whilst aiming to achieve its strategic and financial
objectives.
Reputational Risk
It is regarded as essential that the Councils’ preserve a high reputation and hence it
has set a moderate appetite for risk in the conduct of any of its activities that puts its
reputation in jeopardy through any adverse publicity.
Legal and Compliance Risk
The Councils’ recognise the need to place high importance on compliance, regulation
and public protection and has no appetite for breaches in statue, regulation,
professional standards, ethics, bribery or fraud and corruption.

8|Page
Page 128

Duty of Officers
All of the Councils’ elected Councillors and its officers, including when they are working
in partnership with other organisations, have a duty and responsibility as part of their
actions to manage risk as an integral part of their role, which includes ensuring they
comply at all times with provisions of the risk appetite of the Councils’ as outlined in
this document.
General Risk Appetite Statement
The Councils’ recognise that its long term sustainability depends upon the delivery of
its strategic objectives and its relationship with its partners. As such, the Councils’ will
not accept risks that are in breach of legal compliance, regulations and ethical
behaviour. However, the Councils’ have a greater appetite to take considered risks in
terms of their impact on strategic and organisational issues and actively encourage
officers to pursue innovation and creativity and challenge current working practices
where positive benefits can be anticipated within the constraints of the regulatory
environment.

6. Risk Management Levels

Our approach to risk management is founded upon ensuring risk is effectively and
consistently managed across all levels of the organisation. The risk culture that
emanates from the senior management throughout the organisation is essential in
ensuring all levels buy into and adhere to the corporate risk process.
The Levels:
Service Level: The day to day management activities provide reasonable assurance
that the main tactical and operational risks arising from service operations are
identified, assessed, managed and monitored. Close links between the service
managers and the Audit and Risk Management Services’ team strengthen the process
and ensure consistency in the risk messages delivered within the services.
Programme/Project Level: The identification of risks from the initial business case
stage in a programme/project and continued risk management throughout the project
lifecycle to ensure the objectives can be achieved.
Leadership/Strategic Level: The highest level of risk is managed at this level.
Reports on the top business critical risks are reviewed quarterly by the Senior
Leadership Team and the Audit and Risk Management Services’ team. This level sets
the tone for effective risk management across the whole organisation. At this level, the
risk management strategy is agreed and endorsed and its principles championed by
senior management of the Councils.
9|Page
Page 129

7. Escalation of Risks

In the event that a single risk or group of risks exceed a pre agreed threshold, then
the risks should be escalated to a senior level and the Audit and Risk Management
Services’ team. The Risk owner will initially be responsible for either deciding on a
course of action or escalating the information further up the process to a senior level.
Similarly it should also be clear where a risk can be delegated to a lower level for
action.
Process
If as a risk owner you identify that the risk needs to be moved because it fits into one
of the categories as stated above, initially seek the advice of the Audit and Risk
Management Services’ team regarding moving the risk. If a risk is multi service or
organisation wide the risk owner should consult with other relevant parties before
recommending a change of level.

Strategic/
Leadership level
Programme/Project level

Service level

A risk may need to be escalated to a higher level if:


the risk becomes too unwieldy to manage at the current level



the risk rating cannot be controlled/contained within its current level



the risk remains very high even after mitigations are implemented



the risk will impact on more than one service/project if the risk event materialises



instinct tells the owner it is out of their control

10 | P a g e
Page 130



the risk moves outside the appetite boundaries / comfort zone.

A risk may need to be moved to a lower level if:


the risk can be controlled / managed at a lower level



the risk rating decreases significantly



the risk event will only affect one service area / team and the impact will be limited
then this should be controlled more locally at a lower level.

8. Risk Management Process

The risk management process is a series of logical steps which are carried out in
sequence to progress through each stage of managing a risk. The process is cyclical
and it is often necessary to revisit earlier steps and carry them out again to ensure you
have a complete picture of the risks to the activity/outcome you are assessing.
The process consists of six main stages:

Identify

Monitor
and
Reporting

Assess
Objective

Setting

Manage
and Control

Ownership

 Objective setting – Identify and agree the objectives for the Councils including how
services, projects and partnerships support the delivery of these projects.

11 | P a g e
Page 131

 Risk identification - Identify and record the risks, relating to the achievement of the
Councils’ objectives/priorities. An Example risk register template is shown in
Section 11 – Risk Register System.
 Risk Assess - Having identified areas of potential risk, we assess them with the use
of a risk matrix to give an assessment of impact and likelihood and calculate and
overall risk score (See Section 9 – Risk Matrix). Firstly the ‘Inherent’ score is
assessed (the score with no controls in place) then a ‘current’ score (with controls
in place). The results are recorded in the risk register.
 Risk ownership – the identified risks need to be allocated a risk owner to take
responsibility for managing the risk.
See also Section 11 – Roles and
Responsibilities.
 Manage and Control – Assess what is already in place to manage the risk and
planning to put further controls in place if required; progress of projects linked to
strategic priorities, action plans (use the 4 T’s to determine if we will tolerate,
terminate, transfer or treat the risk). This would also include maximising any
positive opportunities.
 Identify how the risk is currently controlled and then what gaps there are, how these
can be addressed and who by. Risks can be managed in the following ways:o Tolerating – The benefits gained by undertaking the process causing the
risk, outweigh the costs involved to mitigate the risk entirely, or there is
no justification of the expense involved in introducing measures to
control the risk, therefore it is simply accepted that there is a risk.
o Treating – Control the risk as much as possible to bring it back to an
acceptable level that can be tolerated.
o Terminating – To get rid of the risk altogether by either controlling it fully
or not doing the task causing the risk, so that there is no risk.
o Transferring – Transfer the risk to another party so that they become
responsible, for example insurance. If insurance is an option this should
be discussed with the Risk Lead who would liaise with the Finance Team
who oversee the insurance function.
Remember – more risk can be taken if it is felt that the benefits in doing so would
outweigh the risk itself. The idea of Risk Management is not to become risk averse,
but to ensure that risks are managed i.e. Risk Management.


Monitoring and reporting – Risks can change over time and therefore need to be
monitored on a regular basis to ensure that controls in place remain effective and
actions have been implemented. New risks can also be added to the risk register
and those that are no longer a risk can be removed. All changes must be recorded
and reported appropriately.

12 | P a g e
Page 132

9. Risk Matrix

A risk matrix is used to evaluate the risks so that there is an understanding of the risk
exposure faced, which in turn influences the level of risk treatment that should be
applied to manage/reduce/prevent the risk from occurring. At Babergh and Mid Suffolk
District Councils the adopted matrix for assessing risk is shown in the diagram below
supported by guidance on how to determine the appropriate score for both probability
and impact.

Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Impact

Impact / Consequence

Ensuring that all business risks are assessed and managed through the adopted risk
management methodology drives consistency through the risk management
framework and enables risks to be compared and reported on against a like for like
basis. It also provides the Councils with the ability to map their collective risk exposure
of a particular activity, objective, outcome, function(s) or indeed whole Councils’
operation.

1

Minimal

4 (Medium)

8 (High)

12
(Very High)

16
(Very High)

3 (Low)

6 (Medium)

9 (High)

12
(Very High)

2 (Low)

4 (Medium)

6 (Medium)

8 (High)

1 (Low)

2 (Low)

3 (Low)

4 (Medium)

1

2

3

4

Highly Unlikely

Unlikely

Probable

Highly
Probable

Probability / Likelihood

Likelihood
1

Highly Unlikely

2

Unlikely

3

Probable

4

Highly probable

Less than 25%
Has never occurred before
Would only happen in exceptional circumstances
26% - 50%
Not expected to occur but potential exists
Has occurred once in the last ten years
51% - 75%
May occur occasionally
Has occurred within the last 5 years
Reasonable chance of occurring again
Over 76%
Expected to occur
Occurs regularly or frequently

13 | P a g e
Page 133

Impact / Consequence
Finance

Compliance

Safety

Service Delivery

Reputation

1

Minimal

Minor loss
<£5,000

Small, single
noncompliance

No harm to
persons
/community

Very minor
disruption (less
than 1 day)

No noticeable
media interest

2

Noticeable /
Minor

Moderate
loss
£5,001 –
£50,000

Potential for illhealth, injury or
equipment
damage

Some service
disruption, (more
than one day)

Local media
coverage

3

Bad /
Serious

Significant
loss
£50,101 –
£250,000

Sustained
single or few
short-term
noncompliance
Multiple
sustained noncompliance

Potential for
serious harm or
injury (non-life
threatening)

Adverse
local/national
media
coverage

4

Disaster

Substantial
loss
>£250,000

Significant
noncompliance Litigation,
custodial
sentence

Fatality, major
injury (life
threatening or
life impacting)

Critical service
disruption
(statutory
services not
delivered)
Systemic or
sustained service
loss
*

Adverse/
prolonged
national
media
coverage

Red text = Health and Safety Descriptors

10. Risk Register System

As part of good governance, the Councils’ manage and maintain a register of its
Significant Risks - assigning named individuals as responsible officers for ensuring the
risks and their treatment measures are monitored and effectively managed.
The risk register is a critical tool for the service in capturing and reporting on risk
activity and the organisations risk profile. The risk register is a working spreadsheet
where new risks are captured, others are managed to extinction and some require
close and regular monitoring.
The data within the register is used to inform the business of the threats it faces in
delivering outcomes and services to the Councils. It is part of the Councils’ internal
governance and performance frameworks and is used to ensure the organisation
operates effectively. An example of the risk register template is shown at Appendix
A.

14 | P a g e
Page 134

11. Roles and Responsibilities

The importance of establishing roles and responsibilities within the risk management
framework is pivotal to successful delivery. The focus must be on ensuring that
consideration of risks is embedded into policy approval (Strategic) and into service
delivery (Operational).
The agreed roles and responsibilities within the risk management framework at
Babergh and Mid Suffolk Councils’ are outlined in the table below.
Group/Stakeholder
BDC and MSDC Cabinet

Role Description
 Strategic decision-making in respect of ‘Strategic
Risk Management’
 Responsible for approving the Risk Management
Strategy

Joint Audit and Standards
Committee



To ‘consider the effectiveness of the joint risk
management arrangements’



‘Be satisfied that the joint Annual Governance
Statement properly reflects the risk environment
and any actions taken to improve it’.



This Committee discharges the Audit Committee
function for the authorities providing a strengthened
governance assurance mechanism to Members as
a focussed control mechanism in this time of
change and increased risk of governance failure.



Responsible for noting the Council’s risk
management strategy and reviewing and
monitoring the arrangements for managing risk.

Babergh and Mid Suffolk
Audit Committees

 To ‘support the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit

Leader of each Council

 To sign the Annual Governance Statement.

Lead Cabinet Members



for ensuring that effective arrangements are in
place with regard to risk management
arrangements’.

A clear understanding and responsibility of the
nature of the key risks facing the Councils,
particularly those within their allocated portfolios.

15 | P a g e
Page 135

Group Leaders



A clear understanding and responsibility of the
nature of the key risks facing the Councils.

Chief Executive



To ensure that risk management is included within
the job descriptions of Management Team.

 To sign the Annual Governance Statement.
The Accounts and Audit
Regulations

 Require that the Council’s financial management is

S151 Officer

 Is responsible for providing advice to underpin the

adequate and effective and that there is sound
system of financial control that facilitates the
effective exercise of the Council’s functions and
that includes risk management arrangements.

financial regulations that Members, officers and
others acting on behalf of the authority are required
to follow.
Assistant Directors



Responsible for ensuring that all staff in their
service are aware of the existence and content of
the authority’s financial regulations and associated
procedures/guidance that is issued and that they
comply with them.



Can identify the risks & implications of various
courses of action and can articulate how business
continuity can be maintained.



Engagement with Lead Cabinet Members



Oversight of Corporate Manager’s Operational Risk
Registers

Senior Leadership Team
and Extended Leadership
Team

 Are responsible for reviewing the effective

Corporate Managers

Produce and maintain their operational risk registers
and any projects / programmes they are responsible
for.

Corporate Manager –
Internal Audit



management of risks and internal controls and
governance, supported by the Corporate Manager
– Internal Audit and the s151 Officer.

Is responsible for preparing the Council’s risk
management strategy and for promoting it
throughout the Council and maintaining and
reporting on the Council’s Integrated Significant
Business Risk Register.

16 | P a g e
Page 136



Will advise and report to management and the Joint
Audit and Standards Committee on whether the
Council’s governance
–
appropriate risk
management processes, control systems and
operational procedures – are in place and operating
properly.

Note: This scope will extend to systems or services
provided wholly by, or in conjunction with other
organisations, including partnership arrangements.
Councillors



Employees involved in
appointments

 Must ensure that these are made on the basis of

New employees



To apply the rules in the Planning Charter which
seeks to explain and supplement the Members
Code of Conduct and the law on decision making
for the purposes of planning control. If Members do
not abide the Charter they put:
o The Councils at risk of proceedings on the
legality of the related decision or
maladministration; and
o Themselves at risk of being named in a
report made to the Council or, if the failure is
also likely to be a breach of the interest
provisions of the Localism Act 2011, a
complaint being made to the police to
consider criminal proceedings.

merit. There is a strong risk of illegality if an
employee makes an appointment based on
anything other than the ability of the candidate to
undertake the duties of the post.
Required to read the ‘New Employee Induction
Pack’, which provides all new staff with an overview
and general understanding of risk management
across the Councils.

12. Guidance, Education and Training

The Audit and Risk Management Services team are responsible for developing
workforce risk management capability across the organisation, through the provision
of guidance, education, training and support.

17 | P a g e
Page 137

Guidance materials are under regular review to ensure they reflect the needs of the
organisation and are compatible with the organisations structure having the flexibility
to adapt to new and changing structures.
The risk management strategy, guidance and training materials are reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure they continue to meet the needs of the organisation and
incorporate the very latest industry best practice.

13. Summary

Risk management is a continuous and improving process that the Councils are
committed to. Risk management should be embedded into the culture of the Councils,
led by senior management but with responsibility assigned through all levels of the
Councils’ structure. Risk management is therefore not an add-on to the role and
responsibilities of management but is actually a fundamental and inherent part of it.

14. Review

The Risk Management Strategy, guidance and associated working templates will be
annually reviewed by the Corporate Manager – Internal Audit as part of the Councils’
overall approach to the risk management process and overseen by the Assistant
Director Law & Governance and Monitoring Officer as Management sponsor.
The Risk Management Strategy and Significant Business Risk Register are available
to Members and staff and placed on the Authorities websites and intranets.

18 | P a g e
Page 138

APPENDIX A

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion
of all further actions)

L

I

S

2

2

4

1 - HOUSING DELIVERY
CAUSE:

Having the right evidence base e.g.
making use of Suffolk Housing Need
Survey and existing Local Housing Need
Surveys.

If we do not have the
appropriate evidence base

Page 139

RISK:
RISK
1a

We may not have an up to
date understanding of housing
need and demand
CONSEQUENCE(S):
We will not know if we are
addressing and delivering the
housing need and demand

Assistant
Director Planning and
Communities

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

2

6

Published the Strategic Housing Market
Assessment as part of evidence base for
Joint Local Plan. Assessment as part of
evidence base for Joint Local Plan.
Creating Joint Local Plan. Creating
Housing Strategy.
Housing Strategy created and approved
by Full Council.

19

2

2

4

Stayed the
same

Creating Joint Local Plan - next
stage due for consultation.

June 2019

Support for Local Housing Needs
Surveys (6 completed to date)

Ongoing

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
BABERGH AND MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCILS
TO:

Joint Audit and
Standards Committee

REPORT NUMBER:

FROM:

Monitoring Officer

DATE OF MEETING: 29 July 2019

OFFICER:

Jan Robinson Corporate Manager,
Democratic Services

KEY DECISION REF NO. N/A

JAC/19/6

REPORT FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER
1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The report provides the Committee with an update on Code of Conduct
complaints received or determined since the last time that such complaints
were reported to the Committee and also to provide an update on the recently
issued report on Local Government Ethical Standards from the Committee on
Standards in Public Life (CSPL)

2.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1

The Monitoring Officer is required by the constitution to regularly report
complaints to the Joint Audit and Standards Committee. The update on the
report from the Committee on Standards in Public Life is to inform the
Committee on the 26 recommendations and 15 best practice recommendations
for information. Many of the recommendations require legislative change and
are directed at Government . A commentary has been provided (in italics)
including the current position for Babergh and Mid Suffolk where relevant.

3.

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That the Code of Conduct Complaints monitoring information contained in
Paper JAC/19/6 be noted.

3.2

That JASC consider the recommendations from the CPSL report and decide
if any further action is required.

4.

KEY INFORMATION

4.1

This report covers complaints received in the 9 months from 31 October 2018
– 18 July 2019. The complaints are listed in the table below:

Page 141

Table 1: Summary of complaints
BDC

MSDC

TOTAL

21

12

33

5

3

8

16

9

25

1

2

3

13

8

21

3

1

4

4

1

5

Number of complaints
received since last meeting
Number of complaints against
District Councillors
Number of complaints against
Parish Councillors
Number of complaints upheld
& action taken
Number of findings of no
breach of the Code & no
action taken
Number of complaints where
complainant is referred to the
Police ( not within the powers
of the Monitoring Officer)
Number of complaints under
consideration/
pending decision
4.2

The Monitoring Officer and Deputies continue to receive a high number of
enquiries for pre-complaint advice and from Town and Parish councils
requesting procedural and governance advice. Queries regarding informal
advice are now being recorded to monitor the volume and nature of the
enquiries and to ensure that all respondents are providing consistent advice.

4.3

The Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL) have recently issued their
report on Local Government Ethical Standards. This follows an extensive
review of the current arrangements, involving stakeholder meetings, roundtable
seminars, local authority visits and requests for feedback.

4.4

The Executive Summary of the CSPL Report is included as Appendix A and the
full report is available here:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/
attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local
Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF

4.4

The CSPL have made 26 recommendations and 15 best practice
recommendations, detailed in the report . Many of the recommendations
require legislative change and are directed at Government. A commentary has
been provided (in italics), including the current position for Babergh and Mid
Suffolk District Council where relevant.

Page 142

Number

1

Recommendation

Responsible
body

The Local Government Association should create an
updated model code of conduct, in consultation
with representative bodies of councillors and officers
of all tiers of local government.

Local Government
Association

The Suffolk Code of Conduct is generally
consistent with the previous model code of
conduct provided by the Standards Board for
England. A model code would need to follow
legislative change.

2

The government should ensure that candidates
standing for or accepting public offices are not
required publicly to disclose their home address.
The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests) Regulations 2012 should be amended to
clarify that a councillor does not need to register
their home address on an authority’s register of
interests.

Government

This has been recommended by the CSPL to
reduce the possibility of intimidation of candidates
and councillors. At present, to avoid having their
details published, councillors need to demonstrate
to the Monitoring Officer that they may be subject
to violence or intimidation if their interests were
disclosed.

3

Councillors should be presumed to be acting in an
official capacity in their public conduct, including
statements on publicly-accessible social media.
Section 27(2) of the Localism Act 2011 should be
amended to permit local authorities to presume so
when deciding upon code of conduct breaches.
At present, when a complaint is received, part of
the initial assessment by the Monitoring Officer
(and discussed with the Independent Person) is
whether the councillor was acting in their official
capacity when the alleged conduct occurred.
Members of the public do not generally make the
distinction.

Page 143

Government

4

Section 27(2) of the Localism Act 2011 should be
amended to state that a local authority’s code of
conduct applies to a member when they claim to
act, or give the impression they are acting, in their
capacity as a member or as a representative of the
local authority.

Government

At present, when a complaint is received, part of
the initial assessment by the Monitoring Officer
(and discussed with the Independent Person) is
whether the councillor was acting in their official
capacity when the alleged conduct occurred.
Members of the public do not generally make the
distinction.

5

The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests) Regulations 2012 should be amended to
include: unpaid directorships; trusteeships;
management roles in a charity or a body of a public
nature; and membership of any organisations that
seek to influence opinion or public policy.

Government

At present, roles that are required to be recorded
as Disclosable Pecuniary Interests are those that
generate an income or benefit. Others are
recorded as local non-pecuniary interests.

6

Local authorities should be required to establish a
register of gifts and hospitality, with councillors
required to record any gifts and hospitality received
over a value of £50, or totalling £100 over a year
from a single source. This requirement should be
included in an updated model code of conduct.
The Suffolk Code of Conduct currently
requires declaration of gifts and hospitality
above £25.

Page 144

Government

7

Section 31 of the Localism Act 2011 should be
repealed, and replaced with a requirement that
councils include in their code of conduct that a
councillor must not participate in a discussion or
vote in a matter to be considered at a meeting if they
have any interest, whether registered or not, “if a
member of the public, with knowledge of the relevant
facts, would reasonably regard the interest as so
significant that it is likely to prejudice your
consideration or decision-making in relation to that
matter”.

Government

This would be clearer for councillors when
considering whether they have an interest that
should be declared and whether they should
leave the meeting. At present, councillors are
advised that they should leave the meeting to
avoid accusations of bias and to meet the
principles of public life, but this is not supported
by legislation.
8

The Localism Act 2011 should be amended to
require that Independent Persons are appointed
for a fixed term of two years, renewable once.

Government

For the Barbergh and Mid Suffolk , the
Independent Persons are appointed for two
years with an option to extend for a further two
years. One Independent Person was
reappointed for a further term during the recent
recruitment exercise. The other three were new
appointments.

9

The Local Government Transparency Code
should be updated to provide that the view of
the Independent Person in relation to a decision
on which they are consulted should be formally
recorded in any decision notice or minutes.
At present the advice from the Independent
Person is recorded by the Monitoring Officer.
“Decision Notices” are not normally prepared
or published but this can be introduced in the
future.

Page 145

Government

10

A local authority should only be able to
suspend a councillor where the authority’s
Independent Person agrees both with the
finding of a breach and that suspending the
councillor would be a proportionate sanction.

Government

For Babergh and Mid Suffolk, if a breach of
the Code of Conduct is found to have
occurred then the Suffolk Joint Standards
Board would decide on any sanction. The
Board would be aware of the views of the
Independent Person before taking their
decision. Clearly compliance with the
legislation would be required, but this may
change the status of the Independent
Person. Currently the Independent Person’s
views must be sought and taken into
account in any decision, rather than
requiring their agreement.

11

Local authorities should provide legal indemnity
to Independent Persons if their views or advice
are disclosed. The government should require
this through secondary legislation if needed.

Government /
all local
authorities

This can be investigated further if required.

12

Local authorities should be given the discretionary
power to establish a decision-making standards
committee with voting independent members and
voting members from dependent parishes, to
decide on allegations and impose sanctions.

Government

Should a meeting of the Suffolk Joint Standards
Board be required to consider a case involving a
councillor, currently this would be formed of
councillors from the other Councils on the Board.

13

Councillors should be given the right to appeal to
the Local Government Ombudsman if their local
authority imposes a period of suspension for
breaching the code of conduct.
There is currently no right of appeal due to the
lack of sanctions. It is correct that if that
situation changes then there should be a right of
appeal.

Page 146

Government

14

The Local Government Ombudsman should be
given the power to investigate and decide upon an
allegation of a code of conduct breach by a
councillor, and the appropriate sanction, on appeal
by a councillor who has had a suspension
imposed. The Ombudsman’s decision should be
binding on the local authority.

Government

There would already have been an investigation
before reaching the appeal stage. To have a
further investigation would seem to be excessive.
The appeal could be based on the evidence
already provided.

15

The Local Government Transparency Code should
be updated to require councils to publish annually:
the number of code of conduct complaints they
receive; what the complaints broadly relate to (e.g.
bullying; conflict of interest); the outcome of those
complaints, including if they are rejected as trivial or
vexatious; and any sanctions applied.

Government

The Monitoring Officer already ensures that this
information is reported regularly to JASC.

16

Local authorities should be given the power to
suspend councillors, without allowances, for up
to six months.

Government

If legislated this would provide a sanction that
has been lacking in the current arrangements,
and this would be welcomed by the public

17

The government should clarify if councils may
lawfully bar councillors from council premises or
withdraw facilities as sanctions. These powers
should be put beyond doubt in legislation if
necessary.
It has not been necessary to apply any such
restrictions at Babergh and Mid Suffolk district
Council.

Page 147

Government

18

The criminal offences in the Localism Act 2011
relating to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests should be
abolished.

Government

This should not be interpreted as an indication that
the importance of declaring interests is lessened as
this is a key element of the governance framework.

19

Parish council clerks should hold an appropriate
qualification, such as those provided by the
Society of Local Council Clerks.
This would be welcomed, SALC already
encourages new clerks to undertake this
training
Section 27(3) of the Localism Act 2011 should

20

Parish councils

Government

be amended to state that parish councils must
adopt the code of conduct of their principal
authority, with the necessary amendments, or
the new model code.
In Suffolk, the County Council, all district and
borough councils, and the majority of parish
and town councils have adopted the Suffolk
Code.

21

22

Section 28(11) of the Localism Act 2011 should be
amended to state that any sanction imposed on a
parish councillor following the finding of a breach is
to be determined by the relevant principal
authority.
Currently the district council can only recommend
a sanction

Government

The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England)
(Amendment) Regulations 2015 should be
amended to provide that disciplinary protections
for statutory officers extend to all disciplinary
action, not just dismissal.

Government

This would correct an anomaly with the current
legislation.

Page 148

23

The Local Government Transparency Code should
be updated to provide that local authorities must
ensure that their whistleblowing policy specifies a
named contact for the external auditor alongside
their contact details, which should be available on
the authority’s website.

Government

Our Whistleblowing Policy makes reference the
Corporate Manager for Audit and Risk as the
contact details.
24

25

Councillors should be listed as ‘prescribed
Government
persons’ for the purposes of the Public Interest
Disclosure Act 1998.
‘This is an Act to protect individuals who make
certain disclosures of information in the public
interest; to allow such individuals to bring action in
respect of victimisation; and for connected purposes.’
Councillors should be required to attend formal
induction training by their political groups. National
parties should add such a requirement to their
model group rules.

Political groups
National
political
parties

For the political parties and groups to consider
and action.

26

Local Government Association corporate peer
reviews should also include consideration of a
local authority’s processes for maintaining ethical
standards.

Local Government
Association

For the LGA to consider and action.
5.

The best practice recommendations are directed to local authorities, and
the CSPL expect that any local authority can and should implement them.
The CSPL intend to review the implementation of our best practice in 2020.
Best practice 1: Local authorities should include prohibitions on bullying and
harassment in codes of conduct. These should include a definition of bullying
and harassment, supplemented with a list of examples of the sort of behaviour
covered by such a definition.
The Suffolk Code has a reference to bullying. The Code can be reviewed by the
principal authorities and this best practice adopted.
Best practice 2: Councils should include provisions in their code of conduct
requiring councillors to comply with any formal standards investigation and
prohibiting trivial or malicious allegations by councillors.
The Code can be reviewed by the principal authorities and this best practice
adopted.

Page 149

Best practice 3: Principal authorities should review their code of conduct each
year and regularly seek, where possible, the views of the public, community
organisations and neighbouring authorities.
An annual review can be programmed. The benefits of having on Suffolk Code
should not be underestimated and it would be disappointing if annual reviews led
to variations across the county.
Best practice 4: An authority’s code should be readily accessible to both
councillors and the public, in a prominent position on a council’s website and
available in council premises.
Agreed, the Code is readily available on the Council’s website.
Best practice 5: Local authorities should update their gifts and hospitality
register at least once per quarter, and publish it in an accessible format, such as
CSV.
Gifts and hospitality declarations by councilors are published as soon as they are
received.
Best practice 6: Councils should publish a clear and straightforward public
interest test against which allegations are filtered.
Guidance Notes for complainants are available on the website, and these provide
details of how complaints are considered
Best practice 7: Local authorities should have access to at least two
Independent Persons.
Four Independent Persons have been appointed and are used in rotation.
Best practice 8: An Independent Person should be consulted as to whether to
undertake a formal investigation on an allegation and should be given the option
to review and comment on allegations which the responsible officer is minded to
dismiss as being without merit, vexatious, or trivial.
The Monitoring Officer currently consults with an Independent Person before
progressing any complaint.
Best practice 9: Where a local authority makes a decision on an allegation of
misconduct following a formal investigation, a decision notice should be
published as soon as possible on its website, including a brief statement of facts,
the provisions of the code engaged by the allegations, the view of the
Independent Person, the reasoning of the decision-maker, and any sanction
applied.
Currently this information is not published. It has been felt that unless an
allegation is proven that the councillor has a right of anonymity.
Best practice 10: A local authority should have straightforward and accessible
guidance on its website on how to make a complaint under the code of conduct,
the process for handling complaints, and estimated timescales for investigations
and outcomes.
Guidance Notes for complainants are available on the website, and these provide
details of how complaints are considered
Best practice 11: Formal standards complaints about the conduct of a parish
councillor towards a clerk should be made by the chair or by the parish council
as a whole, rather than the clerk in all but exceptional circumstances.
This would help with the assessment of a complaint..
Best practice 12: Monitoring Officers’ roles should include providing advice,
support and management of investigations and adjudications on alleged
breaches to parish councils within the remit of the principal authority. They should
be provided with adequate training, corporate support and resources to
undertake this work.

Page 150

This is already happening, SALC also provides advice to parish councils
Best practice 13: A local authority should have procedures in place to address
any conflicts of interest when undertaking a standards investigation. Possible
steps should include asking the Monitoring Officer from a different authority to
undertake the investigation.
Having two Deputy Monitoring Officers reduces the risk of a conflict of interest.
Independent investigators are used where necessary, including monitoring
officers from a different authority Babergh and Mid Suffolk have recently
undertaken a hearing for another Council where there was a conflict of interest.
Best practice 14: Councils should report on separate bodies they have set up
or which they own as part of their annual governance statement and give a full
picture of their relationship with those bodies. Separate bodies created by local
authorities should abide by the Nolan principle of openness and publish their
board agendas and minutes and annual reports in an accessible place.
The Business Plan for CIFCO is taken to Council for approval The Audit and
Standards Committee review the financial arrangements for the companies
regularly.
Best practice 15: Senior officers should meet regularly with political group
leaders or group whips to discuss standards issues.
The committees view on this will be sought at the meeting
Sources of further information
Committee on Standards in Public Life – Local Government Ethical Standards https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attac
hment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Govern
ment_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF

Page 151

6.

LINKS TO JOINT STRATEGIC PLAN

6.1

Good governance underpins the delivery of all priorities within the Joint Strategic
Plan. The Suffolk Local Code of Conduct is an integral part of that governance
framework.

7.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

8.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1

Under the Localism Act 2011, the Monitoring Officer is required to establish a local
code of conduct for councillors and to investigate complaints made relating to
breaches of that code.

9.

RISK MANAGEMENT

8.1

Key Risks are set out below:

Risk Description

Likelihood

Complaints are not
handled promptly

2 - Unlikely

Decisions
sound

are

not

2 - Unlikely

Impact
1 - Minimal

3 - Bad

Mitigation
Measures
Monitoring of
complaints
Apply adopted
procedures

10.

CONSULTATIONS

10.1

Where appropriate the Monitoring Officer is required to consult the Independent
Person when considering Code of Conduct complaints.

11.

EQUALITY ANALYSIS

11.1

Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) not required.

12.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

12.1

There are no environmental implications associated with this report.

13.

APPENDICES
Title

Location

(a) Executive Summary of the CSPL Report
14.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

14.1

None.

Page 152

Attached

APPENDIX A
Executive summary - Committee On Standards In Public Life Local Government Ethical
Standards

Local government impacts the lives of citizens
every day. Local authorities are responsible
for a wide range of important services: social
care, education, housing, planning and
waste collection, as well as services such as
licensing, registering births, marriages and
deaths, and pest control. Their proximity to
local people means that their decisions can
directly affect citizens’ quality of life.
High standards of conduct in local government
are therefore needed to protect the integrity of
decision-making, maintain public confidence,
and safeguard local democracy.
Our evidence supports the view that the vast
majority of councillors and officers maintain
high standards of conduct. There is, however,
clear evidence of misconduct by some
councillors. The majority of these cases relate
to bullying or harassment, or other disruptive
behaviour. There is also evidence of persistent
or repeated misconduct by a minority of
councillors.
We are also concerned about a risk to
standards under the current arrangements,
as a result of the current rules around
declaring interests, gifts and hospitality, and
the increased complexity of local government
decision-making.
Giving local authorities responsibility for
ethical standards has a number of benefits.
It allows for flexibility and the discretion to
resolve standards issues informally. We have
considered whether there is a need for a
centralised body to govern and adjudicate on
standards. We have concluded that whilst the
consistency and independence of the system
could be enhanced, there is no reason to
reintroduce a centralised body, and that local

authorities should retain ultimate responsibility
for implementing and applying the Seven
Principles of Public Life in local government.
We have made a number of recommendations
and identified best practice to improve
ethical standards in local government. Our
recommendations are made to government
and to specific groups of public officeholders. We recommend a number of
changes to primary legislation, which would
be subject to Parliamentary timetabling; but
also to secondary legislation and the Local
Government Transparency Code, which we
expect could be implemented more swiftly.
Our best practice recommendations for local
authorities should be considered a benchmark
of good ethical practice, which we expect that
all local authorities can and should implement.
We will review the implementation of our best
practice in 2020.
Codes of conduct
Local authorities are currently required to
have in place a code of conduct of their
choosing which outlines the behaviour
required of councillors. There is considerable
variation in the length, quality and clarity of
codes of conduct. This creates confusion
among members of the public, and among
councillors who represent more than one tier
of local government. Many codes of conduct
fail to address adequately important areas
of behaviour such as social media use and
bullying and harassment. An updated model
code of conduct should therefore be available
to local authorities in order to enhance the
consistency and quality of local authority
codes.

Page 153

There are, however, benefits to local authorities
being able to amend and have ownership of
their own codes of conduct. The updated model
code should therefore be voluntary and able to
be adapted by local authorities. The scope of
the code of conduct should also
be widened, with a rebuttable presumption that
a councillor’s public behaviour, including
comments made on publicly accessible social
media, is in their official capacity.
Declaring and managing interests
The current arrangements for declaring and
managing interests are unclear, too narrow and
do not meet the expectations of councillors
or the public. The current requirements for
registering interests should be updated to
include categories of non-pecuniary interests.
The current rules on declaring and managing
interests should be repealed and replaced
with an objective test, in line with the devolved
standards bodies in Scotland, Wales and
Northern Ireland.
Investigations and safeguards
Monitoring Officers have responsibility for
filtering complaints and undertaking
investigations into alleged breaches of the
code of conduct. A local authority should
maintain a standards committee. This
committee may advise on standards issues,
decide on alleged breaches and sanctions, or
a combination of these. Independent members
of decision-making standards committees
should be able to vote.

Person agrees both that there has been a
breach and that suspension is a proportionate
sanction. Independent Persons should have
fixed terms and legal protections. The view
of the Independent Person in relation to a
decision on which they are consulted should
be published in any formal decision notice.
Sanctions
The current sanctions available to local
authorities are insufficient. Party discipline,
whilst it has an important role to play in
maintaining high standards, lacks the
necessary independence and transparency
to play the central role in a standards system.
The current lack of robust sanctions damages
public confidence in the standards system
and leaves local authorities with no means of
enforcing lower level sanctions, nor of
addressing serious or repeated misconduct.
Local authorities should therefore be given the
power to suspend councillors without
allowances for up to six months. Councillors,
including parish councillors, who are
suspended should be given the right to appeal
to the Local Government Ombudsman, who
should be given the power to investigate
allegations of code breaches on appeal.
The decision of the Ombudsman should be
binding.
The current criminal offences relating to
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests are
disproportionate in principle and ineffective in
practice, and should be abolished.

Any standards process needs to have
safeguards in place to ensure that decisions are
made fairly and impartially, and that councillors
are protected against politically- motivated,
malicious, or unfounded allegations of
misconduct. The Independent Person is
an important safeguard in the current system.
This safeguard should be strengthened and
clarified: a local authority should only be able
to suspend a councillor where the Independent

Page 154

Town and parish councils
Principal authorities have responsibility for
undertaking formal investigations of code
breaches by parish councillors. This should
remain the case. This responsibility, however,
can be a disproportionate burden for principal
authorities. Parish councils should be required
to adopt the code of their principal authority
(or the new model code), and a principal
authority’s decision on sanctions for a parish
councillor should be binding. Monitoring
Officers should be provided with adequate
training, corporate support and resources
to undertake their role in providing support on
standards issues to parish councils, including
in undertaking investigations and
recommending sanctions. Clerks should also
hold an appropriate qualification to support
them to uphold governance within their parish
council.

take steps to prevent and manage potential
conflicts of interest, particularly if councillors sit
on these bodies. They should also ensure that
these bodies are transparent and accountable
to the council and to the public.
Our analysis of a number of high-profile cases
of corporate failure in local government shows
that standards risks, where they are not
addressed, can become risks of corporate
failure. This underlines the importance of
establishing and maintaining an ethical culture.
Leadership and culture
An ethical culture requires leadership. Given
the multi-faceted nature of local government,
leadership is needed from a range of
individuals and groups: an authority’s
standards committee, the Chief Executive,
political group leaders, and the chair of the
council.

Supporting officers
The Monitoring Officer is the lynchpin of the
current standards arrangements. The role
is challenging and broad, with a number of
practical tensions and the potential for conflicts
of interest. Local authorities should put in
place arrangements to manage any potential
conflicts. We have concluded, however, that
the role is not unique in its tensions and can
be made coherent and manageable with the
support of other statutory officers. Employment
protections for statutory officers should be
extended, and statutory officers should be
supported through training on local authority
governance.
Councils’ corporate arrangements
At a time of rapid change in local government,
decision-making in local councils is getting
more complex, with increased commercial
activity and partnership working. This
complexity risks putting governance under
strain. Local authorities setting up separate
bodies risk a governance ‘illusion’, and should

Political groups have an important role to play
in maintaining an ethical culture. They should
be seen as a semi-formal institution sitting
between direct advice from officers and formal
processes by the council, rather than a parallel
system to the local authority’s standards
processes. Political groups should set clear
expectations of behaviour by their members,
and senior officers should maintain effective
relationships with political groups, working with
them informally to resolve standards issues
where appropriate.
The aim of a standards system is ultimately to
maintain an ethical culture and ethical practice.
An ethical culture starts with tone. Whilst
there will always be robust disagreement in a
political arena, the tone of engagement should
be civil and constructive. Expected standards
of behaviour should be embedded through
effective induction and ongoing training.
Political groups should require their members
to attend code of conduct training provided
by a local authority, and this should also be

Page 155

written into national party model group rules. Maintaining an ethical culture day-to-day relies
on an impartial, objective Monitoring Officer who has the confidence of all councillors and
who is professionally supported by the Chief Executive.
An ethical culture will be an open culture. Local authorities should welcome and foster
opportunities for scrutiny, and see it as a way to improve decision making. They should
not rely unduly on commercial confidentiality provisions,or circumvent open decisionmaking processes. Whilst local press can play an important role in scrutinising local
government, openness must be facilitated by authorities’ own processes and practices.

Page 156

Agenda Item 12
BABERGH AND MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCILS
TO:

Joint Audit and Standards
Committee

JAC/19/7

REPORT NUMBER:

FROM: Corporate Manager –
Democratic Services

DATE OF MEETING: 29 July 2019

JOINT AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN
Date of Committee – 30 September 2019
Topic
Statement of Accounts and
Auditors Report 2018/19

Purpose
To approve the final audited
Statements of Accounts and
the joint external auditor’s
report for 2018/19

Lead Officer
Corporate Manager –
Financial Services

Constitutional Update

To agree any Constitutional
amendments as reported by
the Monitoring Officer

Monitoring Officer

Complaints Monitoring report

To note

Monitoring Officer

Date of Committee – 25 November 2019
Topic

Purpose

Lead Officer

Mid Year Report on Treasury
Management 2019/20

To note and make
Recommendations to both full
Councils

Corporate Manager –
Financial Services

Interim Internal Audit Report
2019/20

To note the progress of the
Audit Plan

Corporate Manager –
Internal Audit

Constitutional Update

To agree any Constitutional
amendments as reported by
the Monitoring Officer

Monitoring Officer

Complaints Monitoring report

To note

Monitoring Officer

Page 157

Date of Committee – 27 January 2020
Topic

Purpose

Lead Officer

Joint Annual Audit Letter for
2018/19

For comment and agreement

Corporate Manager –
Financial Services

Joint Capital, Investment and
Treasury Management
Strategies

To note and make
Recommendations to both full
Councils

Cabinet Members Finance

Certification of Claims and
Returns Annual Report
2018/19

To note

Ernst and Young

Joint Audit Plan 2018/19

To note

Ernst and Young

Constitutional Update

To agree any Constitutional
amendments as reported by
the Monitoring Officer

Monitoring Officer

Complaints Monitoring report

To note

Monitoring Officer

Date of Committee – 30 March 2020
Topic

Purpose

Lead Officer

Managing the Risk of Fraud
and Corruption - Annual
Report

For comment and agreement

Corporate Manager –
Internal Audit

Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

For comment and agreement

Corporate Manager –
Internal Audit

External Audit Interim
Update Report 2018/9

To note

Ernst and Young

Constitutional Update

To agree any Constitutional
amendments as reported by
the Monitoring Officer

Monitoring Officer

Complaints Monitoring report

To note

Monitoring Officer

Page 158

Date of Committee – 11 May 2020
Topic

Purpose

Lead Officer

Constitutional Update

To agree any Constitutional
amendments as reported by
the Monitoring Officer

Monitoring Officer

Complaints Monitoring report

To note

Monitoring Officer

Page 159

This page is intentionally left blank

